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EB-2008-0413
(

IN THE MATTER OF the Municipal Franchises Act, R.S.O.
1980, c. 309, as amended;

AND IN THE MATTER OF the application by Natural
Resource Gas Limited ("NRG") for a Franchise Agreement
Renewal with the Town of Aylmer.

TOWN OF AYLMER

PRE-FILED EVIDENCE OF MARGARET HEATHER ADAMS

1. I am the Chief Administrative Officer of The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer (the

"Town") and as such have knowledge of the matters herein.

The Municipal Areas Served by NRG and the Franchise Agreements in Place

2. The Town is one of six municipalities that are served by the natural gas distribution

system operated by the Applicant, Natural Resource Gas Limited ("NRG").

3. In that regard, the Town is party to a Franchise Agreement dated February 27, 1984 with

NRG regarding the supply of natural gas to customers within its area, a copy of which is found at

Tab "C-2" of NRG's Exhibit Binder. In addition, I understand that the NRG service area

includes all or parts of the areas served by the Corporations of the Townships of Malahide, and

South-West Oxford, and of the Municipalities of Bayham, Central Elgin and Thames Centre.

NRG has one or more Franchise Agreements with each of these municipalities, each of which

have different renewal dates. To the best of the Town's knowledge, information and belief, the

relevant renewal dates are as follows:

a. The Township of Malahide: 2012 and 2014

Corporation of the Municipality of Thames Centre: 2012

( "

b.



c. The Municipality of Bayham: 2012 and 2015

Corporation of the Township of South-West Oxford: 2013

Corporation of the Municipality of Central Elgin: 2016

( d.

e.

4. Attached as Tab "A" is a recent NRG System Map which has been provided by NRG to

the Town.

5. I understand that the NRG service area is entirely surrounded by franchise areas served

by the Intervenor, Union Gas Limited ("Union"), and that NRG is dependent upon Union to

supply gas to its service area.

Summary of the Town's Position and Concerns

6. In recent proceedings before the Board, circumstances have arisen which have shaken the

confidence of the Town and its constituents in NRG as the incumbent supplier of natural gas to

( customers within the municipal area of the Town. These concerns relate both to the financial

viability of NRG, and to the quality and reliability of its service to customers. The Town has

detailed these concerns in its interventions in EB-2006-0243 (Compliance Order dated June 29,

2007, and Order dated March 12, 2008) and EB-2008-0273 (Decision and Order dated

November 27, 2008), and in the Town's Submissions in response to the Board's consultation

regarding revisions to its Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-03 13).

7. It should be emphasized that these concerns do not originate with the Town of Aylmer or

its own corporate interests. Rather, they are concerns raised by NRG's own customers, both

individual and industrial/commercial, who have requested that the Town bring them to the

attention of the Board forcefully and urgently at this time.

8. The most pertinent of the Town's concerns arising from these recent developments are

( documented in a comprehensive Report from me to Council, dated October 8, 2008. A copy of
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that Report is attached at Tab "B", and a copy of the Resolution of Council dated October 14,

2008 adopting the recommendations set out in that Report is attached at Tab "C".

9. The Town's position and proposal specifically with respect to renewal of its Franchise

Agreement, was developed based on these concerns, and approved by Council on December 15,

2008 and presented to NRG the next day. A copy of my Report to Council dated December 11,

2008, with attached proposed Draft Franchise Agreement, are found at the back of Tab D- 1 of

NRG's pre-filed evidence, together with the cover letter enclosing them to NRG dated December

16, 2008, which sets out the Resolution of Council approving this position. That Report, as

adopted by Council, set out the following key goals to address these concerns, as follows:

. Ensure the continued supply of cost-effective natural gas to Aylmer

. Ensure that the customer service and security deposit concerns expressed by the

residents of Aylmer are dealt with effectively and efficiently

. Respect the role ofthe Ontario Energy Board as the regulator of monopoly natural

gas distributors in Ontario

. Ensure that the economic development opportunities for the community are

enhanced by having a supportive natural gas distributor who supplies a cost-
effective alternative source of energy

. Repair the negative image of Aylmer in the context of our natural gas distributor

. Restore confidence in and respect for the natural gas distributor by their
consumers, other residents and the Town as they put in place a permanent
acceptable customer relations policy

10. The Town is generally supported by other municipalities with respect to these goals, and

the position it has outlined with regard to NRG as set out in that Report. The Town received

specific letters of support from the Municipality of Thames Centre and from the Township of

Malahide for these positions, when they were advanced in the Town's recent intervention before

the Board in EB-2008-0273. Copies of these letters are attached at Tab "D".

1 1. Further, and specific to the Town's position in this proceeding, the Town has received

(
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( further letters and resolutions of support from the Township of Malahide, the Municipality of

Bayham and the Township of South West Oxford, copies of which are also included at Tab "D".

1 2. In summary, the following issues addressed in that Report are pertinent to this proceeding

(a) Widespread customer complaints about NRG's quality of 
service;

(b) Widespread customer concerns about NRG's security deposit practices;

(c) NRG's rates generally exceed those charged by Union in surrounding areas;

(d) NRG's recent poor record of support for new industrial development; and

(e) NRG's lack of responsiveness to these concerns.

The Term of the Franchise Agreement Renewal

13. In order to address these concerns in a manner consistent with the goals it has set out, the

Town has proposed to renew its Franchise Agreement with NRG, initially, for a term of three

years. This term has been chosen for several reasons, principally:

(a) to allow NRG an opportunity in this time frame to regain the confidence of its

customers within the Town as their incumbent gas supplier; and

(b) to permit the next renewal to come up in 2012, at a time to coincide with the

pending renewals of NRG's Franchise Agreements with the Township of

Malahide, the Municipality of Thames Centre, and the Municipality of Bayham.

14. The Town believes that, in order to allow all affected municipalities to consider the full

range of alternatives with respect to the future supply of gas in these areas, including the option

of renewal with NRG for a longer term, it is important to make provision for the various

( Franchise Agreements in NRG's service area to have the same renewal terms. This change wil
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( also enable all of the municipalities to exercise greater collective influence upon NRG,

particularly with respect to the quality and reliability of its service to customers.

15. The Town neither intends, nor accepts the concern raised by NRG, in suggesting that this

renewal may affect its ability to refinance its long term debts in the interim. I note, first, that

NRG itself has been arranging financing on a relatively short term (5-year on-demand) basis and

not on anything like a 20-year term. NRG has been able to conclude such arrangements even at

times when NRG's Franchise Agreements with the Town and other municipalities have had

shorter terms than 5-years remaining prior to renewaL. That situation appears to have had no

impact on NRG's ability to refinance its debt, or to finance new construction, in 2006 and 2008.

16. The Town believes that the fact that NRG's debt would be fully secured against assets

regulated by the Board pursuant to its statutory mandate to regulate in the public interest has

been, is, and would remain the strongest assurance of repayment to any existing or new lender to

NRG. That mandate includes ensuring continuity of gas supply to customers, as well as the

financial viability and quality of service of gas distributors such as NRG.

Requiring NRG to Apply to the Board for a Comprehensive Rate Hearing

17. The second aspect of the Town's proposal in paragraph 1 of Schedule "A" to its proposed

Draft Franchise Agreement is that NRG immediately apply to the Board for a comprehensive

rate hearing.

18. This arises in part from the concerns that have been raised that NRG's current rates for

gas service remain generally higher than those charged by Union in surrounding areas.

19. In addition, however, it is driven by the fact that NRG's rates currently include a

( significant "return on equity" payable to NRG's shareholders on some $13,461,418 of
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( "retractable" Class C shares. As noted in NRG's most recent 2007 and 2008 Financial

Statements, and as recently found by the Board in its Decision and Order in EB-2008-0273, these

shares should be shown as a liability (debt) rather than as equity, because they are redeemable

and retractable at the option of the shareholders at any time. A copy of NRG's audited 2008

Financial Statement is attached at Tab "E", and a copy of the Board's Decision and Order dated

November 27,2008 in EB-2008-0273 is attached at Tab "F".

20. The Town believes that no return on equity should be included in rates in respect of these

shares, and that the Board should have the earliest possible opportunity to address that issue.

21. The Town's concern also arises in part from the general concerns about NRG's financial

viability, as highlighted by the continued qualification in its 2008 financial statements, and by

Union's recent application in EB-2008-0273 as reflected in the Board's decision.

(
22. Although NRG is correct that the Town did not formally intervene in the previous rate

case in EB-2005-0544, which was decided in 2006, in fact the Mayor and several members of the

public did attend the hearing in that case, which was held in Aylmer. In any event, as noted, the

Town's concerns about NRG's financial viability and customer service have generally arisen

since 2005. The Town's request for an immediate rate hearing in the proposed Draft Franchise

Agreement reflects the new circumstances as they have arisen and as they exist, today, and is not

based on any historical review.

Customer Service and NRG's Supportfor New Industrial Development

(

23. Next, the Town's proposal, in paras. 2(a) and 3(b) and (c) of Schedule "A" to its

proposed Draft Franchise Agreement, would require that NRG immediately commit to

implement the proposed amendments to the Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-03 1 3)
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( regarding customer service measures by December 15, 2009, and also by May 15, 2009 adopt a

written complaint process and a new policy regarding new and relocating retail, commercial and

industrial customers. These measures aim at effecting improvements to NRG's service quality

and reliability, generally, but especially to address its current poor record of support for new

industrial development within the Town.

24. The most recent and alarming example of this poor support and lack of effective and

responsive communication, involves the development of an ethanol plant within the Town by

Integrated Grain Processors Co-Operative Inc. and IGPC Ethanol Inc. ("IGPC"), and the related

application for leave to construct a new pipeline to service that facility heard by the Board under

EB-2005-0544 and/or EB-2006-0243. During that project, the Town and IGPC were faced with

an inexplicable refusal by NRG to execute Board-approved contract documents, even following

the Board's decision and Compliance Order dated June 29,2007. Later, in February 2008, NRG

again inexplicably sought additional payments with resulting delays in the project, which were

addressed by the Board's Order, made on consent of the parties on February 28, 2008, and

subsequent written Decision dated March 12, 2008. The challenges encountered by the ethanol

plant project, as well as significant dissatisfaction expressed by Aylmer and area customers of

NRG as outlined below, have been the subject of recent media coverage which has, in the

Town's view, created a very negative atmosphere in which it seeks to attract much needed new

industrial, commercial and residential development to its area.

(

25. More generally, the Town has become aware of widespread customer complaints by

residents and business owners within its area about the quality of NRG's natural gas service

generally. A further customer concern relates to the diffculties customers have experienced in

contacting NRG with their complaints. As a result, the Town has received numerous complaints

from NRG customers, public 'letters to the Editor' have appeared in the local newspaper. Copies
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of some of these letters are attached at Tab "G". Customer concerns are similarly outlined in a

letter from some customers to the Board (which is also attached at Tab G). Further, a petition

was presented to Town Council at its July 21,2008 meeting, signed by 457 people along with an

online petition with 65 entries. Copies of both the online and paper petition are attached at Tab

"H". The petition makes the following request:

"We are asking that NRG carefully review their deposit policy
requirements. We ask that they take into account letters of reference
from other utility companies as well as past credit history with them.
We also ask that they have a clear policy for refunding deposits. We
ask that deposits be FULLY refunded automatically one year to the
date that the deposit was made if an account is in good standing. Also
the deposit should be refunded in the form of a cheque or cash and
NOT in the form of credit to the account. "

26. When considered together, these factors have caused the Town to be extremely

concerned about NRG's commitment to provide high quality, uninterrpted supply of natural gas

to customers within the Town's area, on reasonable terms and at reasonable rates. The proposals

by the Town simply require NRG to adopt a proactive approach to these issues, based upon

written commitments. The Town hopes NRG could apply these consistently in the three-year

renewal period. This is essential, in order to restore customer confidence in NRG's service

quality, communications, and responsiveness.

27. It is ironic that it is only in response to the Town's expressed concerns between July and

December, 2008 that NRG has produced, in response, the copy of its existing Gas Service Rules

and Regulations attached at Tab D-9 of its pre-filed evidence. If it had any meaning to NRG,

this document should have been publicly available and displayed to customers all along. Instead,

a review of its terms in relation to the customer complaints documented in Tabs "B", "G" and

"H" only reinforces the concern, and suggests that it is not being consistently applied or
,. .6

complied with by NRG on an ongoing basis.\,
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28. The Town's proposal seeks to have the requirement for these, and perhaps other Rules

and Regulations, incorporated into its Franchise Agreement with NRG. The Town proposed

some such additional Rules and Regulations in adopting my October 8 Report, at page 4. NRG

has never responded to these suggestions, even in its materials filed in support of this

Application.

(

29. With respect to the Town's request that NRG adopt its own written complaint policy, the

issue is raised squarely by customers concerns as expressed to the Town. NRG's response on

this issue is a clear acknowledgment that it currently has no formal process to document receipt

of a complaint, or the steps it has taken in response. Customers' complaints of telephone calls

not returned at all, or only after an extended time, cannot be refuted or ignored. NRG does not

provide a formal process to file a written complaint, nor does it track the responses to any

complaints received in writing, even informally. As a result, the Town has become the default

mechanism for receiving a complaint, but has no means to follow up. However, an external

complaint process, whether it be through the Town or the Board, cannot substitute for an

effective internal process at NRG.

(

30. Including these provisions in the Franchise Agreement would serve both as a point of

reference for the Town to assess the customer complaints which are referred to it, and as a means

to monitor and enforce compliance by NRG during the coming term of its relationship with the

Town. This may enable the Town to suggest other, better Rules and Regulations where it

appears these are not working effectively. It would reinforce, without in any way pre-empting,

the Board's own continued efforts to improve such Rules and Regulations for the gas distribution

industry as a whole. However, given the current chronic problems at NRG, some special Rules

and Regulations may be required beyond those applicable to the broader industry. It is

imperative to our community's continued development that we have a positive and responsive

9



relationship with our monopoly supplier of natural gas.

Unsecured and rising customer security deposits

31. A further, major concern addressed by paras. 3(a) and 4 of Schedule "A" to the Town's

proposed Draft Franchise Agreement, would require that NRG immediately address concerns

about its practice of requiring large security deposits from customers, seemingly without regard

to their creditworthiness and prior payment history, and of delays and difficulties in customers

securing the release of such deposits

32. From Aylmer's perspective and that of its customers, there was significant evidence from

NRG's financial statements as filed in the recent Union Application (EB-2008-0273) indicating

that customer security deposits in the hands of NRG have risen dramatically recently, from

approximately $105,000 in 2005, to $280,000 in 2006, again to $603,000 in 2007. In NRG's

audited 2008 Financial Statement attached at Tab "E" it appears these deposits have risen yet

again to $757,065 in 2008. This represents an astounding 650% increase over 3 years. It cannot

represent "business as usual", or be defended as such. It coincides with a massive increase in

customer complaints to the Town about NRG's security deposit practices. Yet NRG offers no

substantive explanation of, or response to this issue.

33. These deposits are not held in secure, segregated trust accounts, but rather are used as

working capital in NRG's day-to-day business. Various versions of NRG's security deposit

policy are attached at Tab "I". Those policies and other circumstances also raise a concern that

NRG is demanding larger amounts by way of security deposits, from a wider range of customers,

and holding them longer, than would be permitted by the Board's proposals in its consultation

regarding revisions to the security deposit provisions of its Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-

( 2008-0313)
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( 34. This is of concern, because the Board's Decision and Order dated November 27,2008 in

EB-2008-0273 (attached at Tab "F") specifically found, among other things, that Union was

justified in its concerns that NRG's creditworthiness had become unsatisfactory, and that a

significant increase in the financial risk associated with NRG had been disclosed. The concern is

again compounded, because NRG's retractable Class C shares otherwise permit its shareholder

to claim priority, after the Bank and Union but ahead ofNRG's customers, to the monies it holds

as "security deposits" from them. This concern is also highlighted by the express qualifications

placed upon NRG's audited financial statements for 2007 and 2008.

35. The Town is concerned that, after repayment ofthe Bank and Union, there may simply be

no assets within NRG with which to repay these customer deposits.

36. When considered together, these factors have caused the Town to be extremely

concerned about NRG's financial position, and the security of the significant amounts in

customer deposits that NRG is currently holding. In the circumstances that NRG is currently in,

the Town is requesting that NRG maintain these deposits in segregated trust accounts. The

Town has recommended this be adopted as policy for the entire industry in its submission

responding to the Board's consultation. However, even if that is not accepted on an industry-

wide basis, the Town submits it is appropriate for NRG at this time, and that the current

franchise renewal hearing presents an opportunity to implement this measure.

Development of the Town's Proposalfor new Franchise Agreement

37. The Town's Franchise Agreement with NRG is due for consideration and possible

renewal on February 27, 2009, and those of other surrounding municipalities are due to follow

on various dates between 2012 and 2016. In those circumstances, the Town began to examine its

( options for renewal and revisions to that agreement in the summer of 2008.
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( 38. Contrary to the suggestions on page 1 of Tab D-1 ofNRG's pre-filed evidence, the Town

did not "refuse to disclose its position" when the issue was first raised in June, 2008: it

specifically advised NRG that the Town was not prepared to discuss renewal until the IGPC

ethanol plant was supplied with gas. Nor was the Town slow in responding to NRG. I was first

contacted on June 6, got direction from the next Council meeting on June 16, and called Mr.

Bristow with a response on June 17. I then received a letter of June 20, obtained direction at the

next Council meeting on July 7, and provided a response by July 8.

39. As noted, during this exchange in July, Council was presented with the unprecedented

petition by NRG customers referred to in Tab "B".

40. Indeed, this history shows the priority and importance given to this issue both by myself

and CounciL. After the ethanol plant was supplied in July, the delay in meeting with NRG was

( solely due to the vacation schedules of 
both parties.

41. On September 11,2008, the Mayor and I met with NRG's Mark Bristoll and Tony Graat.

Again contrary to page 2 of Tab D-1 of NRG's pre-filed evidence, at this meeting, there were

extensive discussions about NRG, including a detailed outline from me to NRG about the

Town's concerns with the deposit issue, customer service concerns, complaints received from

residents, police involvement by residents with respect to deposits, and our concerns relating to

the Union Gas application. A copy of an email sent by me to the Town Mayor, Bob Habkirk, and

the Town's counsel, reporting on this meeting, is attached at Tab "J".

42. Following the September 11,2008 meeting, there were continued discussions with NRG

which are not referred to in the NRG outline. On September 17, 2008, I sent a detailed email to

Mr. Bristoll, outlining issues that the Town's natural gas retailer, Comsatec, had in respect of

( NRG (attached at Tab "K"). There were also follow-up phone calls with Mr. Bristoll on or
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( about September 25 and October 14,2008. After the Town's Report and resolution at Tabs "B"

and "C" were provided to NRG, there were further phone discussions about all of these issues on

or about October 29, 30, and November 11, 2008 with Mr. Jack Howley of NRG, pertaining to

service issues and the security deposit issue. I met with Mr. Howley for further discussions on or

about October 31, 2008. It was made clear by me throughout these discussions that these issues

would have to be addressed in the context of any agreement for renewal of the Town's Franchise

Agreement with NRG. The Town's position was also made clear to NRG in October in the

context of the Town's intervention in Union Gas's Application EB-2008-0273.

43. These discussions throughout October, November and December, 2008 culminated on

December 11,2008, when I presented a second Report to Town Council, along with the Town's

proposed Draft Franchise Agreement. On December 15, 2008, Town Council met and passed a

resolution adopting the recommendation set out in my December 1 1, 2008 memo, and approving

the Draft Franchise Agreement, based on renewal for a period of three years and the specific

commitments outlined in Schedule "A" to our Draft Franchise Agreement.

44. A copy of my December 11, 2008 memo (with the draft franchise agreement attached)

and the minutes of the December 15, 2008 Town Council meeting are attached at Tab "L".

45. The Town believes that the conditions it has proposed are consistent with the Board's

public interest mandate, and involve no material difficulty for NRG.

Date: February 10, 2009 Stockwoods, LLP
M. Philip Tunley LSUC#: 26402J
Tel: (416) 593-3495
Fax: (416) 593-3945

Counsel for The Corporation of the Town of
Aylmer

(,
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AYLMER COUNCIL
OCTOBER 14, 2008
AGENDA ITEM #8(e)

NATURAL GAS RESOURCES LTD.

Memo Proud Heritage. Bright Future.

To: Council

From: M. Heather Adams
Administrator

October 8,2008

Natural Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG)

Date:

Re:

BACKGROUND:

At its meeting of July 7,2008 Council passed the following resolution:

Resolution 257-08:
"That the letter from the CAO/Clerk of the Township of Malahide regarding .NRG be
received and be referred to Staff tçi review and to submit a report to a future Council

. meeting." (see attachement "A")

At its meeting of July 23, 2008 Council passed the following resolution:

('?

ResoJution 277-08;
"That the 'petition submitted by Mrs. Jeanette Brubacher, on behalf of 100al

rt3sidents, with respect to the deposit policy and businesspractices.ofNRG, be
referred to Staff for consideration in their review of this marter." (see Attachment "B")

On August 1, 2008, Uiiión Gas Limited filed 'an application with the Ontario Energy Board

(OEB) for "leave to discon.tin.ue service to Natural Resource Gas Limíted ("NRG"). Union
brings its. application on the basis of NRG's failure to provide "Financial Assurances" to Union
as required by the terms of the contracts between the parties."

On September 18.2008, the' Clerks of Municipalities within the NRGfranohise areas

(Malahide, ßayham, Central Elgin, Thames Centre, South-West Oxford and Aylmer) received.
notice from Union Gas (as ordered b'y the OEB) of hearings regarding Union's application to
be held on Oct. 15 in Toronto and, if necessåry, Oct. 20 and 21 in Aylmer. (see l\ttachment.C1 . .



On February 27,2009, the Town of Aylmer's existing 25 year Franchise Agreement with NRG
expires. NRG has provided a written request for renewal as is provided for in the Agreement. ()
They are recommending the use of the Model Franchise Agreement developed by a joint
committee of Gas Company and AMO representatives and endorsed by the OEB.

DISCUSSION:

In the preparation of this report to Council, staff has considered the items outlined in the
background section above and the following activities since the Spring of 2006.

July 18,2006- Mayor of Aylmer appears at an OEB hearing to consider NRG. rates
which was held in Aylmer and requests assurances that NRG could and would be able
to supply natural gas to the proposed ethanol plant

July 24, 2006 - during the rate hearing, OEB requests an undertaking from NRG
solicitor to provide a monthly status report on the "leave to construct" application for
the IGPC pipeline.

September 7, 2006 - Mayor of Aylmer writes to OEB Vice Chair expressing concern
that the ethanol plant project is in serious jeopardy due to the lack of progress in
obtaining natural gas.

Jan/Feb, 2007 - OEB hearing and resulting OEB order dated February 2, 2007
approving leave to construct the natural gas pipeline required to serve the ethanol plant.

Town of Aylmer is an intervener and appears at 
the hearing.

June, 2007 - OEB hearing is held in Toronto to resolve issues stallng the
construction of the pipeline to serve the ethanol plant. Town of Aylmer is an
intervener and appears at the hearing.

(
I

February, 2008 - OEB hearing is held in Aylmer to again resolve issues stalling
the construction of the pipeline to serve the ethanol plant. 'Town of Aylmer is an
intervener and appears at the hearing.

June 2007 to present - Town staff receive complaints from NRG customers
regarding requirements for security deposits for both new and long-time customers;
lack of answers and responses from NRG to questions and complaints about service;
complaints from a business constructing a new facility about the unreasonableness of
NRG in its requirements in order to provide natural gas service to the new facility-

subsequently company used propane; concerns 
from pote ritia I residents/customers

about building/buying property in Aylmer given lack of service from the local natural gas

utility.

June, 2007 until September, 2008 - NRG staff does not respond to invitations nor
attend at Town pre-construction meetings for major infrastructure projects.

Spring, 2006 until present, NRG has had five different General Managers and has had
a notable turnover in other staff and advisors.

. Page 2
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June, 2007 to present - Town and East Elgin Commutiity Complex enter into an
agreement with Comsatec Inc. to purchase our natural gas as part on an aggregate
purchase with the Elgin Middlesex Oxford Purchasing Group and signed documents
authorizing Comsatec Inc. to do so. From the beginning, there were major issues with
NRG regarding their transportation charges, delays in providing information, and not
responding to inquiries regarding this project.

A significant number of rate increases have been requested by and approved for NRG
distribution services. NRG's service rates generally exceed those of Union Gas Ltd.
who is the other distributor operating in Southwestern Ontario. Service rate increases
where approved by OEB orders on the following dates:

March 25, 2008;
June 25,2008; and
September 26, 2008

however, notice of such hearings was not provided to the Town of Aylmer. A
comparison of NRG service rates in the General Seivice Class Rate 1 and the
Special Large Volume Contract Rate 3 to those of Union Gas Ltd in comparable

. classes shows that NRG service rates are higher than those of Union. (see Attachment~l .
l.

In recent years, the Town has not been advised of any distribution system
improvements in the pipelines within the Town's boundaries. Since our franchise
agreement requires that we be notified we must assume that no maintenance or
improvement of these underground facilities has been carried out. While there have
been approvals for system expansion in the southeast portion of the NRG franchise,
maintenance of the existing infrastructure does not appear to be a priority. Further, in a
specific instance in the Summer of 2008, a resident obtained the required locate from
NRG for its pipes on or near that residentsproperty prior to having a contractor
commence digging. NRG did provide the locate for one pipe on the propert but did
not identify a second of their pipes on the property and the contractor hit that
unidentified pipe while digging.

After consideration of the above, staff believes that the 'issues can be summarized as follows":

· Quality of infrastructure
· Rates not competitive

· Reluctance to serve new commercial/industrial customers
· Significant customer service issues
· Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are troubling
· Deterrent to local economic development

Subsequent to the identification of these issues, the Mayor and I met with representatives of
NRG on September 11).2008. A number of the' issues outlined above were identified and
NRG representatives provided some additional information which included a copy of their
written Residential Security Deposit Contract and a letter of commitment to work with the
Town of Aylmer. This expression of willingness to work with the Town is helpful however the
significance of the issues and the length of time they have been outstanding would indicate
that a more permanent resolution is required. (see Attachment "E")

l . Page 3



Options available to the municipality to resolve these issues are limited. NRG has a
monopoly on the distribution of natural gas which is granted by its franchise agreement
authorized by Provincia/legislation and regulated by the Ontario Energy Board. Any
mechanism for the permanent resolution of the issues needs to be within the set of rules and
regulations established by the OEB for natural gas distributors and/or provided for in any
fran'chise agreement between the distributor and the municipality; such agreement also
requires the approval of the OEB.

When looking for options and/or tools that might be useful to resolve some of these issues,
. staff reviewed options used in the electricity distribution system; also a monopoly system

designed to provide the distribution of electricity in Ontario and regulated by the OEB. A
cursory review of the electrical utilty sector provides some examples of OEB rules and
regulations which would be of assistance in ensuring the provision of quality customer
services in ,the natural gas utilty sector.

. When the electricity sector was changed substantially by the Province's
legislation, the' Energy Competiion Act, 1995 in contemplation of an open
market in electricity, the OEB was tasked with regu.lating in this new area. One
issue raised by consumers during this time was that of security deposit policies
of the local electricity distributors (LOC's). In response, the OEB established a
working group to broadly consult and make recommendations on this issue.
The results were specific amendments to the Distribution System Code for
LOC's which provides detailed and consistent rules for customer deposits which
can be enforced by the OEB. A similar set of consistent rules for natural gas
utilties which is adopted and enforced by the OEB would go a long way to
resolving the issues experienced in Aylmer.

. In the electricity sector, LDC's are required to keep statistics and report to the

OEB on a'number of customer service indicators and whetheror not they have
'achieved established. minimum acceptable performance standards. Some of

these include:
- time frame for the connection of new customer services;
- time frame for completing requests for service locates;
- time frames for answering incoming calls;
- how often appointments made to meet with customers are
fulfilled; and
- how long it takes to provide written responses to customerrequests. '

These are meant to ensure a minimum standard of basic customer seNice.

. In the electricity sector, the LOC is also required to keep records of customer
complaints, the response provided by the LOC, and written records of the details'
of the complaint and these are available to the OEB. .

. These measures, and other Codes of Conduct governing electricity seNice,
enable the OEB'to administer a reasonably prompt and effective customer
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complaint resolution process for the electricity sector, which is currently lacking
in respect of gas supply.

A review of a recent speech by the Chair & CEO of the Ontario Energy Board to the Ontario
Energy Association Annual Conference in September provides some additional insight into
the OEB's goals in the electricity sector that would also benefit the natural gas sector. Mr.
Howard Wetston notes that there has been significant change in energy regulation in Ontario
and that one of the Board's four key focus areas includes "the way we are ensuring that
consumers have a voice in energy regulation..." and goes on to note that "we have issued
new service quality requirements for electricity distributors..." and that "the Board believes
that now is the time to accelerate our initiatives focused on the consumer." The speech goes
on to note that consumers are an important constituency for the Board and they are
committed to seeking out consumer input into energy policies and services. (see Attachment
"F")'

In its role as natural gas regulator, the OEB issued an amendment to the Gas Distribution
Access Rule effective January 1 J 2007 that sets out a similar set of service quality indicators

. as is used in the electricity sector. Howeveraccess to those reports is not generally available
to the public and penalties for not meeting the minimum standards and enforcement options
are not clear,

(~

Today, October 8,2008, the OEB posted a notice on its website of its proposal to amend the
Gas Distribution Access Rule to provide for standard policies for the requirement for
consumers to provide security deposits to gas distributors (see Attachment "G"). These
provisions are similar to those in the electricity sector. The OEB is receiving comments on
these proposed changes until November 19, 2008.

Recommendation:

That Council approve the recommendations outlined bel.ow in supporf.of resolving the issues
identified in this report and by our residents regarding the natural gas distribution activities of
NRG. The following resolution is recommended for the consideration of Council:

''The Council of the Town of Aylmer hereby endorses the report dated October 8,2008,.

prepared by the Administrator, regarding Natural Resource Gas (NRG);

AND FURTHER THAT Council hereby approves-the actions outlned below.

1. Ensure that the Ontario Energy Board is fully aware of the concerns regarding
NRG by:

· providing a copy of this report and the petitions received from the local
residents regarding the issues with NRG and request that the OEB use
its regulatory and oversight tools to fully inquire into the issues identified;

· Endorsing the OEB proposed amendment to the Gas Distribution Access
Rule provide direction to natural gas distributors regarding customer
security deposil~; and

~.' . Page 5



. Intervening at OEB hearings which involve NRG to ensure the OEB is

aware of issues of concern to the Town and its residents generally (

identified as follows:
Quality of infrastructure;

. Rates not competitive;
Reluctance to serve new commercial/industrial customers;
Significant customer service issues; .

Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are troubling;
and
Deterrent to local economic development.

2. Request that the DEB consider the following regulatory and/or policy changes in
order to improve customer service requirements of natural gas distributors

. Require that customer service measures are made available to the public

. Require that the annual audited financial statements of the distribution

companies are made available to the public
. Provide a clear complaint arid enforcement process, including contact

. information, for natural gas consumers to have complaints heard and
resolved

. Require that consumer security deposits be kept in a trust fund and not
used as working capital for distribution companies

3. Request that the DEB establish a process for a review of the 
legislation and

regulations which require that municipalities and natural gas distributors enter into
franchise agreements. The realities of the current process for these agreements do (

not operate such that they improve the distribution of natural gasto its customers. .
The municipality has no real abilty to negotiate even the minimum of service
delivery requirements, no realistic abilty to enforce the' provisions of the franchise
agreement when a distribution company does not meet them and no real abilty to
change who provides the serVice. The legislation guiding franchises is outdated
and its pro'i¡"~ions such as the requirement for a public vote typically are replaced
with the DEB appröval process.

4, Circulate this report to. the other municipalities with franchise agreements with
NRG for their consideration and endorsement.

5. Forward the report and recommendation to the Minister of Energy and
Infrastructure and our local M. PP., the Honourable 

Steve Peters.".

cÇ~.~.
M. Heafher"Adams

Attachments (7)

/ha

(,
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Proud Heritage. Bright Future.

Â+fa~W A - J
The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street, West, Aylmer, Ontario NSf- IJ7

Office: 519-773.3164 Fax: 519.765.)446
W\""'VI. aylmer.ca

July 14, 2008

Township of Malahide
87 John Street South

Aylmer ON N5H 2C3

Attn: R. Millard, CAO/Clerk

RE: Natural Resource Gas Ltd. - Franchise Agreements/Business Practices

At its meeting held on July 7, 2008, the Town of Aylmer Council received your letter
dated June 23,2008 with respect to the above concerns and resolved:

Resolution No. 257~08

Moved by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin and seconded by Councillor M. French:.

"That the letter from the C.A.O.lClerk of the Township of Malahide regarding
NRG be received and be referred to Staff to review and to submit a report to a

future Council meeting,"

The motion is Carried

Further information will be submitted to you following receipt of the above-noted
repon by Council.

Yours truly,.

~
Naneie J.lrv~
Clerk, Jown of Aylmer

ciIWW"s, Administrator
J. Reynaerl, Director of Finance & Human Resources
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MÃLAHrDIÍ
87 John Sireel Souih.

Ayliie/, On Iorio N5H 2C3
lela phone: 519.773.5344
For.: 5) 9.773.5334
viww.lownship.malahide .on.co A proud tradition, a bright Ju ture.

June 23, 2008

Town of Aylmer,
Municipality of Central Elgin
Municipality of Bayham,
Municipality of South West Oxford
Municipality of Thames Centre

County ofElgin
County of Norfolk

County ofMjddlesex

Deal' Sirs:

RE: Naturiil Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG)
Franchise Agrcements.
Busincss Practices - Deposits.

Malahide Township has received concerns about Natural Resource Gas Limited 

(NRG)

and their practice of obtaining deposits.

While individuals were advised deposits would be returned upon request, a large number
still appeal' to be held. Requests to have them returned are ignored. A sample Jetter
received is enclosed.

Council is interested in lmowing if you have experienced similar concerns and have
concerns about this business practice. .

The Township of Mala hide was amalgamated with two other municipaHties (Village of

Springfield and Township of South Dorchester) who had franchise agreements with NRG
in 1997.

Each Franchise Agreement has a 
different renewal elate but the Corporation questions if

any onhe existing franchise holders has experience with incorporating conditions into
their last franchise. One agreement for M.alahide comes due in 2010 and al J will be
addressed at that time.

Specifically, Council CJuestions if conditions for deposits can be addressed tJu'ougJi "the
franchise.

Council questions if there is existing legislation that addressed this issue. An alternative
to each Franchise setting out terim might be to petition the government to regulate this.
This is apparently regulated in the electrical industry.

RANDALL R. MILLARD
c./o..O./Clerl:

SUSAN E. WILSON
Trea,uier

Ir eo'ui erlílown,liip. molohide .an. c.o
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June 23,2008.

Page2.

Malahide Township Council would work with anyone who has experience with the
franchises or wisbes to pursue correcting tbe issue regarding deposits.

Your assistance and response to this inquiry would be appreciaLed.

Yours vel')' truly,
TOWNSHIP OF MALAHIDEd~
R. MILLARD, c,A.O,/CLERK

Copy - MPP Steve Peters
. Malahide Township Council

l \\iiolnhideis.locolliiscrslies:ildioniililinno's lieslRnl1dy iOOßll1ri~ concerns. viirioiis iiunicilJllilies jiiiic23.doc
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June 11,2008

The Mayor and Council ofthe Municipality of 

Bay ham

Re: Natural Resource Gas Limited (NRG)

Dear Madame Mayor et al:

I am a long time customer of the local natural gas distribiitor NRG and a life-long
resident of Bayhain. My wife and I are currently building a new home at 54157 Heritage

Line about one half of a kilometre below Richniond; a community which NRGrecently
extended its natural gas distribution service to. We were well aware that there was no gas
service at this location when we purchased our property on Heritage Line but NRG' s

_ exteißicmJl1to-Rjdimond-gave lIs-Bøme-bope-thai _JlhapS_JIý~ cQuld indeed connect to

NRG's gas service for OUl' home energy needs. -- ---

.Our building contractor first contacted NRG on our behalf in this regard in October 2007.
I have worked in a utility industry (telephone and cable) for over thirty years and as we
are not strangers to such requests, we made it very clear to NRG that we recognized there
would likely be a cost assessed to us for construction and that we were prepared to
entertain that. You see, we are ardent fans of the convenience and economics of 

nat mal

. gas and we use it currently to fire our furnace, hot water heater (NRG rental no less),
stove and even our barbecue. We had plans to extend that to a cozy gas fireplace and a
standby electrical generator at our new loc.ation neal' Richmond. NRG advised our
contractor at that time that they would look at aliI' request and get back to us.

We waited patiently for many months for an answer 01' at least some direction as to the
possibility of gas from NRG as we planned our new home and we delayed key decisions
on home heating and appliances and such. Our contractor would on occasion remind
NRG of our enquiry and always received the same response; they were working on oLlr

. request.

i became quite frustrated at our wail and in early March 2008, went La NRG's Aylmer
offce to see the local manager whom 1 had worked with previously (l-Ie appar'ently has
since left the Company) and thus knew personall);. ltwas not whai lwould call a pleasant
customer-friendly experience. J was refused access to the manager and after being
ignored for a suffciently annoying period while the NRG receptionist handled sevúal
calls that came into her swilch board (well after J had come in her fronl door) and after
she had taken a paymenl fi'om another customer thai had come in to pay his bill, 1 was

finally ushered in 10 see a sales person. In contrast to the initial reception, the sales person
was very friendly but renew nothing of our long standing request for consideration of un

.~
(

I

--I

(

-r

I

c



11-5

extension ofthe gas line to our new home and he brought in the coinpan)i's engineer who
apparently looked after requests for such service extensions. This gentleman

acknowledged that he knew of our request but had not yet had an opportunity to look into
it. Remember. this was some 4-5 months following our initial enquiry. J advised the two
of them that another new house was under construction between our home and Richmond
and that there was another horne across the road that might perhaps be interested in the
service. There are also two brand new homes a few hundred metres up the hiJl in addition
to two or thi'ee older homes. The engineer promised' to revisit our request. The sales
persoii acknowledged that NRG had some room for improvement in handling such
requests and assured me he would not Jet this fall through the cracks again.

Now, jump ahead to ApriJ4, 2008. Still awaiting an answer. I sent 

a plea for either a yes

or no response 01' better still a firm estimate ofthe cost of a service extension Yia email t.o
NRG to the attention of the sales persaii and the engineer. J reminded them of their
commitment to jrnproving customer service. I received no answer whatsoever. However,
our contractor did have some comrnünicatjon with them immediately following my
emaiL. NRG advised him they would poll the neighbours to gage interest in natural gas
service and also advised that the cost to extend would likely be in the $6,000 range.
Following this "flurry" of communication, we once again descended into the black hole
ofNRG silence.

l Now jump ahead to mid May. I received a call from an NRG employee who was
enquiring as to the exact location of oUl new home. He appeared to be looking on
Richmond Road rather than all Heritage Line. I redirected him and he advised ine that he
was going to discuss the matter wHh our neighbours. He also raised the spectre of a
$6,000 cost if no other customer was interested in the extension but they had not yet done
any engineering to verify that cost nor had they determined if they (NRG) would even
consider buJJding the extension. He apologized for this matter haYing fallen through the
cracks (yet again) citing high employee turnover at NRG as the reason and he committed
to staying on top of this until we received aii answer. Immediately thereafter, we once
again descended into the NRG black hoJe.

I telephoned this einployee at NRG on June 2, 2008 and was astounded to hear that since
the engineer had recently left the company. they could not provide me with a firm answer
on cost or even the likelihood of this extension request until a new engineer was hired.
He assured me though thai they were conducting interviews.

Obviously. we are frustrated jn the extreme. by the treatment, or morc uccurately lack of
treatmenl, by this coinpany. NRG enjoys a very privileged position in our municipality
through the franchise process and it is after all a monopoly, ncar-essentia'i service

provider. 1 firmly believe that you as our elected officials bear a clear and distinct
responsibility to the constituents of the municipality, not the utility, when awarding the
distribution franchise in Dayham. .J do not know if NRG's franchise is due for
reconsideration. but i would suggest this company does not deserve to simply have its
renewal rubber stamped by our municipality. I understand clearlyhow difficult it must be
to disenfranchise the utility if that is deemed to be in Bayham's best long-term interests,

l.
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but 1 suggest that this is no reason to simply renew NRG's monopoly in the municipality,
1 do not suggest this simp!)' because of the shabby treatment that we have received,

although if this is the way all potential customers are dealt with that is reason enough for
some serious scrutiny of this company. J am more compelled to demand this uti Iity be
carefu i Iy and thoi'oiighly scrutinized, and sanctioned if warranted, as a result of the
stories of Jate in the letters to the editoi' of the Aylmer Express regarding NRG's
dracon ian deposit policy, J hope you are well aware of the plight and cries for help from

. NRG customers who are required to pay substantial deposits to the utility simply because
they move ÍÌOIJ one location to another within .the utility's fi'anchîse area and the many
people who have been refused repaynienl of their deposits after establishing a perfectly
good payii eii I Elnd credit histor') with the utility. Indeed, these stories wanant
investigation into this company's business pmctices by all of the municipalities granting
franchise rights; otherwise the franchise process is obviously a façade. From the oiitside
looking in and based on the letters in the Aylmer Express, one might suspect NRG to be
cash flowing its business using deposit funds from its customers, This includes ¡nany
customers who don't warrant the collection ofa security deposit in the first place. And, if
the information in the AyJiiier Express is accurate, the OEB has no jurisdiction over the
collection and handling of customer' deposits which, foi' a monopoly utilty, providing a
near-essential service, J find incredulous and something that needs to be changed. In the
local telephone service industry, deposit practices are regulated and controlled by the
CRTC through the Tariff process. Bayham's incumbent local telephone service provider
for example is in fact prohibited from collecting deposits from a ciistomer unless the
customer refuses to provide credit information, 01' he has a bad credit and/oJ' payment
history or he presents an abnormal risk of loss. CleaJ'y NRG is entitled to employ
acceptable ineans to limit its exposure to bad debt but this Company appears to have
stepped far over the line of reason.

My wife and 1 have pretty much abandoned any hope of having gas service at oiir new
home in time for fall occupation or in fact anytime in the neal' future but our experiences
with NRG and the growing public sentiment against this company's purported
questionable b.usjness practices and its apparent disregard for customers would suggest
much greater ovei'sight and scrutiny of this utility is required by those in a position to do
so. That would include the Municipality of BayhaJ1, the other municipalities that have

franchise agreements with the utilit)' and the OEB.

Yuurs truly,

l/f¡~U;r~
Michael .i. Andrews
StraffoJ'dville

cc Town of Aylmer, Township of Malahide, OEB,
Hon. Steve Peters lvPP, NRG
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The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street, West, Aylmei~ Ontario NSl- 1J7

Office: 519.773.3164 Fax: S19.765.1446
y.,rW'V\. aylmer.ca

July 23, 2008

Ms. Jeanette Brubacher
184 Elk Street

Aylmer ON N5H 189

Dear Ms. Brubacher;

RE: NRG - Deposit Policy & Business Practices

At its meeting held on July 21, 2008, the Town of Aylmer Council received your
presentation and petition with respect to the above maUer. It was noted that Council had
received a letter from the Township of Malahide about this matter, which has been
referred to Staff to review and submit a report to a future Council meeting.

Town Council resolved:

Resolution No. 277-08

Moved by Councillor French and seconded by CouncillorJ. Vandermeersch.:

"That the petition submitted by Ms.' Jeanette Brubacher, on béhalf of local
residents, with respect to the deposit policy and business practices of
NRG, be referred to Staff for consideration in their review of this matter."

The motion is Carried.

Council extends its appreciation to you for your effons on behalf of local residents.

Yours truly,

~'
Nancie J. I . g

Clerk, Town Clerk

cc M. H.Adams, Administrator

J. Reynaert, Dir of Finance & HumanReso.urces
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The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street, West, A)'lmel~ Ontario N5H 1J7

Office: 519-773-3164 Fax: 519-765.1446
V1'W'. aylmer.ca
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July 23, 2008

Ms. Jeanette Srubacher
184 Elk Street
Aylmer ON N5H 189

Dear Ms. Srubacher:

RE: NRG - Deposit Policy & Business Practices

At its meeting held on July 21, 2008, the Town of Aylmer Council received your
presentation and petiion with respect to the above matter. It was noted that Council had
received a letter from the Township of Malahide about this matter, which has beeh
referred to Staff to review and submit a report to a future Council meeting.

Town Council resolved:

Resolution No. 277-08
(

Moved by Councillor French and seconded by Councilor J. Vandermeersch.:

"That the petition submitted by Ms.' Jeanette Brubacher, on béhalf of local
residents, with respect to the deposit policy and business practices of
NRG, be referred to Staff for consideration in their review of this matter."

The motion is Carried.

Council extends its appreciation to you for your efforts on behalf of local residents.

Yours truly,

Nancie J. I . g

Clerk, Town Clerk

cc M. H.Adams, Administrator

J. Reynaert, Dir of Finance & Human Resources
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MOVED BY:

SECONDED BY:

TOWN OF AYLMER B-3

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

July 21 2008

'17 t1dj 7C,,i

~Jmw~iZ

lrThat the petition submitted by Ms. Jeanette Brubacher, on behaif of local
residents, with respectthe deposit policy and business practices of NRG, be
referred to Staff for con~ideratiol1 in their review of this matter."

l,

l~

dJ~
Head of Council

~J.',!L'c~Clerk

RESOLUTION #). 7 l--ô 6



,.' t

J:
~~

 ~
t:~

.tt
¡ 

i:i
 :(

) 
r~

 t:
 (

~ 
~\

~l
 ~

:~
 i~

i.~
 ~

-:
~l

 i

J
U
l
 
1
 
6
 
2
0
0
8

, ~;
~
t
t
;
;
S
(
)
~
~
~
f
~
~
.
'
;
i
f
~
.
 
t
~
~
~
i
l
~
i
 
t
t
J

C
h~

ii!
1g

t~
"''

', 
~

 ~
 ,~

, ~
~

; a
. i

l'"
1 

,..
..;

¡ 
~

 "
'~

 _
. .

.'.
~ 

l,~
~.

. ~
""

,.l
 ,'

o"
.,i

 ~
 ,,

" 
~ 

~ 
~;

,..
 ~

 ~
""

''''
~

t. 
-t

.'o
Il~

 p
...

...
...

l-.
: "

'. 
:!:

 .,
.; 

,.:
i..

...
:.:

t'I
::,

"'.
,.:

* 
T

 /1
/û

iE
 '.

 F
a 

I.L
 ¡

/É
T

 f 
nO

N
 .B

E
" 

4-
 -

: 7
-

. -
-

¡
V
 
A
 
i
v
(
 
c
-
:

--
A

ct
io

n 
pe

tit
io

ne
d 

fo
r

--
,

W
e,

 th
e 

un
de

rs
ig

ne
d,

 a
re

 a
sk

in
g 

th
at

 N
R

G
 c

ar
ef

ul
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
ei

r 
de

po
si

t p
ol

ic
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. W
e 

as
k 

t1
:ia

t t
he

y 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 le

tte
rs

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 u

til
ity

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 .a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pa

st
 c

re
di

t h
is

to
ry

 w
ith

 th
em

, W
e 

al
so

 a
sk

 th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

re
fu

nd
in

a
de

po
si

ts
. W

e 
as

k 
th

at
 d

ep
os

its
 b

e 
F

U
LL

Y
 r

ef
un

de
d 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 o

ne
 y

ea
r 

to
 th

e 
da

le
 t~

la
t t

he
 d

ep
os

it 
w

as
 m

ad
e 

if 
an

 a
cc

ou
nt

 is
 in

 g
O

;d
st

an
di

ng
. A

ls
o 

th
e 

de
po

si
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ef

un
de

d 
in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f a

 c
he

qu
e 

or
 c

as
h 

an
d 

N
O

T
 in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f c

re
di

t t
o 

th
e 

ac
co

un
t.

\.1
 .-

\)
 n

n'
,'¡

 K
ci

.l 
~

"'J
~

)L
. ,

 \ 
D

. '
1 

.'.
 .

:\~
"I

~£
iU

"(
¿

'"
J 

.
K

Y
,'1

;U
 C

'iV
1¡

JI
~

'"
,

2S
...

...
\-

-.
. -

=
,1

1

'"
 'D

A
N

 k
J.

JG
/-

n 
,l

-U
c:

--

~
I
 
\
 
\
 
~
:
:
"
 
\
~
:
-
\

_J
_C

L
'C

;;"
'..

~"
-,

"'
U

 ..
cp

.i!
õ 

A
o.

A
m

..'

""
 .&

~ 
J)

r~
 'S

,
 
(
7

",
 ~

J 
'"

 0
- 

0"
 \.

~,
~
 
i
J
1
v
-
l
 
S
T
t
(
A
t
f
L
T

.~

A
dd

re
ss

C
om

in
en

t
D

at
e

i
i
 
l
,
'
-
h
 
(
r
C
n
 
~
+
 
Ç
)
'
-
 
\
 
I
'
"
'
~

L
 
'
b
 
w
,
,
,
 
(
r
(
"
 
s
 
t
-
 
f
~
 
(
 
i
r
\
-
€
f

f
~
O
 
.
.
A
 
C
2
T
 
C
.
J
 
A
y
l
/
"
e
.
r
-

((
If

qv
JV

1v
il7

/0
f ~

Q
l~

 / 
+

t/r
v-

Lr
 //

I-
Y

 2
-i.

/'

y?
 c

. t
. s

- 
fJ

.e
y:

 1
; ~

 C
t -

-.
Jú

..0
lj1

J'

"7
'1

 7
0 

f!Q
C

t'e
nC

ld
q

r?
d.

_.
.I

::-
i.=

; c
yo

~

\

~
~.



ø U1 iongas fHf¡Í/~d~ C
800i b i d:i~

(2 - /
/; .~/II,:Ii; t.IIHlt,.," ~.lJiipliii.r

September J 8,2008

VIA COURIER

TO: ALL Clerks 01 MUliicipalitles

l
Union Gas has fied an application with the Ontario Energy Board 011 August J, 2008

seeking approval to discontinue service ofnaturaJ gas to Natural Resource Gas Limited

("NRG") pursuant to section 42( i) of the Ontal'o Energy Board Act, 1998.

Enclosed is a copy of 
the application, as well as a copy of the Notice of Application

issued by tbe Ontario Energy Board on September i 6, 2008 under Docket: No.
EB-2008-0273

Yours tnl!y,

fil(~ lac)
MarJ( Kitchen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

Encl.

ld
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ONTARJO ENERGY BOARD (

IN THE MA TT,ER OF ihe Ontario EiierlJ' Board
¡Jet. /998, S.O. J 998, c. 15 (Schedule. B);

AND IN THE MA TTER OF lin Application b)'
Union Gas Limited for nn order graniing ii le~ve 10
discontinue gas transmission (0 Natua) Resource

Gas Limited;

APPLICA TION

L. Union Gas Limited ("Union") is a business corporation, incorpoi'ated under the laws of

Onliido, with i1s hend offce in the Municipalit)' ófChutliiim-Kenl.

2. Union conducts an integrated natunl gas utilit)' business thai combines the openitions of

selling, distdbuting, transmitting and sioring gas within tbe meaning of the Ontario

Energy Board Act, J 998 (the "Act").

3. Natural Resource Gas Limited ("NRG") delivers gas to Union in firm daily even
(

quantities pursuant to a Bundled T Gas Contract (the "BT Contract") first made ai; of

-_.-(

October 2004.

4. Union re-delivers gas, as a gas transmiller, to NRG pursuunl to an Jv9 Delivery ContrEict

(tbe "Delivery Contracl") firs! made ai; of October 2006.

5. Section 5.04 of 
the General Tenll and Condiiions of 

both the BT Contracl nnd DelivBry

Contract provides as followr,:

5.04 Jìiniiiiciiil AssnriincL

iral any time during the Term oftliii; Gonlnicl, Union ba~
reasonable ground~ to believe ihul Cur-iomer'r, cr¡:òiiwortliirie¡;~
under the Contract ha~ become unsuli¡Jaclory, then Union mny by
written Notice request filHJIcinl u~siiniices from Cuslomer in an
amounl deiermined by Union in a colTlmercially re¡¡soniibJe

(
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manner. Upon receirl of 
such Noiice, ciislome; shall have

fourl~en days 10 provide such financial assurances.

6. Union has reRsonable grounds to believe thai NRG's creditworthiness under the

Conimcls hai become unsaiisfiiciory. Union has held this belief for nearly a year and has

fltcmpied, witJioui success, 10 obtain finiincial assurances from ¡-¡RO.

7. Recently, on June J 6,2008, Union wrote (0 NRG to advise it thai Union was forecasting

a ma,:inium exposure 10 NRG of $~ ,928, J 38.00 (the "Aniicipated M aximuni E,: 

POSLl I'e") ,

Based upon NRG's then available 2006 financial slatemenls and otber financial

informa!ion, Union deiemiined that il could granl NRG nn unsecured credit facility of

$600,000, leaiiing a balanoe of$I,328,138.00.

(~c

B. In its Jetlel', Vnion advised NRG tbar if could satisr)' tbe Anticipated Maximum Exposure

iJ1 one of two ways. First, NRG could provide financial assurances in tbe amount of

CDN $ J ,328, 138, being the difference between the Anticipafed Maximum Exposure and

the unsecured line of credit Union had assigned to NRG (the "Financial Assurances"),

The Financial Assurances could be provided in the form ofa cash security deposit or a

letter of credit. Second, NRG could make arrangements to change tbe renewal date of its

BT Contracl to an annual anniversary dale of Apri I 1, the effect of ""hicb wouJd be to

eliminaie any credit issues arising from NRG's Banked Gas Account (the primary cause

ofNRG's credii exposur.e) òn a going forward basis.

9. Union soughl NRG's positive response to its reguest for Financial Assurances or a

chflnge 10 Ihe lenns of the ÈT Contract prior 10 June 23, 2008, wi th such assurances or

ihe change in ihe renewal unte or Ihe BY Conlriic( to be in place by .Iuly 30,2008 failing

whiciJ l'RG would be in defaulluTJder ¡he General Teiins and Conditiom. Union

infoiiiied NRG (hal sucb dcüiull would elilirJe Union 10 ceriain contractual rellcdie~;

including suspel1:;jon of service anel/or leniiJlolion oflhc Conlracl(I;) between Union unci

NRG.

10. On June 27, 20D&, having nol. received u response 10 j ls leller, UnioJl ¡iguiri wrOIL Lo NRC

seeking Ihe Financial Assurances. In ils June 27, 2008 Jetler Union informed NTzG thai ii

was Union's inlention to file an application with the Bourdio requesi perniii;sion ID

~...
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suspend service and/or ierniinale the Conlracts between Union lind l'.iG pursuani to

section 42.(1) or ihe Acl.

i i. On July 2, 2008, NRG, Ihrough counsel, responded 10 Union (0 advise ii thai NRG would

nol provide (he requested Financial Assurances, nor would ii agree to a change in lhe

renewal daieofthe BT'Contr3cl.

12. Union has been lefi with no alternative but to apply to Ihe Board pursuanllo Section

42(1) of'lie Acl for an order granting Union leave 10 disconlinue service to NRG L1l1ti i

sLlch time as il has provided the Financial Assurances. ui the alternative, Union requests

an order thai NRG be direcled lo provide the Finiincial Assurances wi thin fourteen c1ElYs .

ofthe date olllie order, In Ihe further alternatii1e, Union requests an order that NRG be

directed to change the renewal date of its BT Contract to iin annual anniversary date of

April) witbinsü:ty da)'s afthe date oftlie order.

)3. Absent an order from the Board c.ompelling NRG to provide the Financial Assurances or

a change in the renewElI date of the BT Contract, ii can reasonably be expected that

concerns regarding NRG '8 creditworthiness wi II recur on a yearly basis.

"\

J4. Union fiirtber applies to the Board for all necessary orders and directions concerning pre-

hearing and hearing procedures for the determination of this application.

15. This appJicalion will be supported by writlen evidence. This evidence will be pre-fi led

and wiJl be amended from time to (ime as required by the Board, oras circumstances may

require.

I ú. The personr, affected by this application arc NRG ancl tlie customerr. rcsident or localed in

the niLlnj¿ipal¡lic~, police víJJagel;und Jndian reserver..Bervecl by NRG, together with

those.lo whom Union sells gas, or on whose behalf Union distributes, Iran~ìJ1its or "tares

gas in ils franchise area. 11 is impractical to sci ou I in this applieD tion the names and

lIddresses of such persons because they are 100 numerous.

c.:'



. Pògc 4 .

J 7. The addressoí service (or Union is:

Union Oas Limited
P.O. Box 2001

50 Kei ¡ Dr;v~ 1'onh

Chatham, Ontario
1\711 5/l'fJ

AiienlÎon:

Telephone:
Fax:

E-mHiI:

- and.

Mark Kitchen
Direcior, Regulaiory Affairs

(519) 436.5275
(5 J 9) 436-4641
II kif ch en 0)spectrn en erg)'. co ni

Torys LLP
Suite 3000, TD Waterhousc Tower
p,O, Bm: 270

Toronto- Dominion Centre
Toronto, Ontario

M5K 11'2

~...
,~-~

Attention: Crawford G. Smith

Telephone:
Fa)::
email:

DATED: Augus1J,2008.

~c

(416) 865-8209
(416) 865-7380
csini th0)torys.coni

c-5

UNJON GAS LIMITED

ys

Siiile 3 0, Maritime Life Tower
P.O. Bo. 270
Toronio-Dominion Centre
Toronto, Ontario
Jv.'K 11'2

Aiienlion: Crawford G. Smiili

Telephone:
Fa);:

(4 J 6) ~65-~209
(416) 865.7380
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EB.2008.0273

NOTICE OF APPLICATION AND HEARING

Union Gas limited ("Union") has filed an application with the Ontario Energy Board on

August 1, 2008' seeking approval 
to discontinue service of natural gas to Natural

Resource Gas Limited ("NRG") pursuant to section 42(1) of the Ontario Energy Board

Act, 1998. The Board has assigned the application fie number EB-2008-0273. The
Board's decision on this application may effect all of NRG's customers, as mosl of the

natural gas that NRG distributes to its customers is acquired from Union.

NRG delivers gas to Union in firm daily even quantities pursuant to a Bundled T Gas

Contract first made as of October 2004. Union re-delivers gas, as a gas transmitter, to

NRG pursuant to an M9 Delivery Contract first made as of October 2006.

Union has sough I certain financial assurances from NRG under the terms of a contract

between the parties. In Union's view, NRG has failed to provide the requested

assurances and Union considers this 10 be a breach of the contract between the parties.

(

The Board will begin this proceeding by holding an Issues Day on October 15, 2008.

The purpose of the Issues Day is to clarify the issues and determine procedural matters,

such as the need for the fiing of evidence. At the Issues Day the BDard will also hear

arguments as to whether the ApplicatiDn properly falls under section 42(1) or section 36

of the Ontario Energy Board Act. Section 36 sets out the Board's jurisdiction over the

setting of natural. .9as distrfbution rates.

The Issues Day will take place in Toronto al 2300 Yonge Street, in the Board's hearing

room starling 9:30 a.m. Should the Board determine that it is necessary to proceed

pursuant to section 42(1) then an oral hearing will be held on October 2'0 and 21,2008.

in the lown 01 Aylmer. Details of the oral hearing will be published ala laler date.

(
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How to see Union's Application

Copies of the application are available far inspeclon allhe Board's offce in Toronlo and

on ils websHe, Yiww.oeb.gov.an.ca, and al Union's offce and on its website.

How to Participate

You ma)i parlicipale in this proceeding in one of three ways:

1. Send a Letter with your Comments to the Board

Your leHer with comments will be provided to the Board members deciding the

application, and will be part of the public record for the application. Your letter must

be received by the Board no later than 30 days from the publication or service date

of this notice. The Board accepts letters of comment by either pasl or e-mail at the

addresses below.

~~.

2. Become an Observer
Observers do not actively participate in the proceeding but monitor the progress of

the proceeding by receiving documents issued by the Board.

You may request observer status in order to receive documents issued by the Board

in this proceeding. If you become an observer, you need to contact the applicant

and others in order to receive documents that they fie in this proceeding and they

may charge you For this. Ivosl documents filed in this application will also be

available on the Board's website. Your request for observer status must be made in

writing and be received by the Board no later than 10 days frDm the publication or

service dale Df this nDtice. The BDard accepts observer request letters by either

post or e-mail at the addresses below; however, two paper copies are also required.

YDU musl also provide a copy of YDur letter tD the applicant./

3. BecDme an IntervenDr

You may ask to become an intervenor if you wish to actively participate in the

prDceeding. Intervenors are eligible tD receive evidence and other material

submiHed by participants ¡nthe hearing. Likewise, intervenDrs will be expecled to

send copies of any malerial they fie to all parties to the hearing.

Your requesl for intervenDr status must be made by lstier of interventiDn and be

received by the Board no later than 10 days from the publication Df this notice. Your

letier Df intervention must include a description of hDw you are, or.may be, affected

~..



L 0
Ontario SnDrg)' Board

.3.
(

by Ihe oulcome of this proceeding; and ir you represenl a group, a description of the

group and its membership. The Board may order cosls in Ihis proceeding. You

mus! indicate in your letter 01 inlervenlion whether you expecl 10 seek cosls from the

applicanl and the grounds for your eligjbili~i for costs, You musl provide a copy of

your leNer of inlervention to the applicant.

I f you already have a user 10. please submil your intervention request through the

Board's web portal alwvM.errr.oeb.qov.on.ca. Additionally, two paper copies are

required. If YOll do nol have a user 10, please visit the Board's website under e-filings

and fil oul a user /0 password requesl. For instruc"liOns on how 10 submit and naming

conventions please refer to the RESS Document Guidelines found at

www,oeb.qov.on.ca, e-Filing Services. The Board also accepts interventions bye-mail,

. at the address below, and again, two additional paper copies are required. Those who

dò nol have internet access are required to submit their intervention request on a CD or

diskette in PDF forma!, along with two paper copies.

How to Contact Us

In responding to this Notice, please include Board file number EB-200B-0273 in the

subject line of your e-mail oral 
the tap of your letter. It is also important that you

provide your name, postal address and telephone number and, if available, an e-mail

address and fax number. All communications should be directed to the attention of the

Board Secretary at the addres.s below, and be received no later than 4:45 p,m. on the

required date.

(

Need More Information?

Further information on how ta participate may be obtained by visiting the Board's

website al www.oeb.gov.on.ca ar by callng our Consumer Relalians Centre aI1-877-

632-2727.

IMPORTANT

IF yOU DO NOT FILE AN OBJECTION TO A WRITTEN HEARING OR DO NOT
REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS
NOTICE, THE BOARD MAY PROCEED IN YOUR ABSENCE AND YOU WILL NOT
BE ENTITLED TO ANY FURTHER NOTJCE IN THIS PROCEEDING.

(
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The Board:

Post: .
Ontario Energy Board

P.O. Box 2319
2300 Yonge Streel, 27th Floor
Toronlo ON IMP 1 E4
Atlenlion: Board Secietary

Filngs: www.errr.oeb.gov.on.ca

E-mail: Boardsec(ãoeb.qov.on.ca

Tel: 1-888-632-6273 (t01l free)
Fax: 416-440-7656

(~~

OP,TED al Toionto, Seplember 16, 2008

OI\fTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Original Signed By

Joh n Pickernell
Assislanl Board Secrelary

l~
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Addresses

The Applicant:

Mark Kitchen
Director, Regula lory Affairs'
Union Gas limited
P.O. Box 2001

50 Keil Drive North

Chatham ON 1v7M 51v1
Attention: Mr. iv Kitchen

m kítchen(aspectraenerqy. com
Tel: 51 9~436-527 5

Fax: 519-436-4641

Counsel for the Applicant:

Torys LLP

Suite 3000
TD Waterhouse Tower
P.O. Box 270
Toronto-Dominion Centre
Toronto ON 1V5K 1 N2

Attention: Crawford G, Smith
csmith(Ctorys. com
Tel: 416-865-8209
Fax: 416-865-7380
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Ó r~ IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,8.0.1998, c.15 (8ched. B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Natural
Resource Gas Limited, pursuant to section 36 (1) of the
Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, for an order or orders

approving or fixing just and reasonable rates and other
. charges for the sale, distribution, transmission, and storage
of gas as of July 1, 2008; .

AND IN THE MATTER OF the quarterly rate adjustment
mechanism.

BEFORE: Ken Quesnelle
Presiding Member

(

DECISION AND ORDER 'l

Natural Resource Gas Limited (nNRGn) filed an application with the Ontario Energy

Board (the "BoardlJ) on June 3, 2008, for an Drder or orders approving or fixing just and
reasonable rates fDr the sale and distribution of gas commencing July 1, 2008 (the
"Application"). The Application was made pursuant to NRG's Quarterly Rate Adjustment

Mechanism ("QRAM") and the Board assigned file number EB.2008-0090 tD the

Application.

NRG provided written evidence in supPDrt of the proposed changes contained in the

Application. The Application and pre-filed evidence have been prDvided by NRG to all

parties of record in the main rates proceeding RP-2005-0544.

The Board issued'a Notice of Written Hearing and Procedural Order NO.1 Dn June 11,

2008 allDwing parties Df record to fie written cDmments, The Board did not receive any

comments.

(,
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NA Tl'RA L RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

RATE 1 . Gp.n~.rnJ Service Rille

Rate Ai'iiìlaliilUv
The entire service area of tlie Company.

ElìgibiliD'
All customers.

Rille
Ii) Month!)' Fixed Charge $11.0

b) Oelivery Charge
".2999 ~"" P" m0First 1,000 ni' per miinth

All over 1,000 m) per month I 0,4073 cent~ per ni)

c) Oii SUppl)' Charge (¡tapplicable)
Schedulc A

Meier Riiadlngs
Gas consumption by euch customer under thiR rate schedule shall be detcrmined Iiy monthly meter reading, provided

thiil iii drcumsi.1nce.~ heyond the control of the cornpmiy such as strikes ur nun.access 10 a meter, thè company may estimate
the consump1ion each moiith as of the scheduled date of the regular monthly meter reuding, und rcnder II monthly bil to the

customer thcreof.

Delayed Payment Penally.

When payment is not madc in full by (he due dale noted on the bil, which date shall not be less than 16 calemlar days
after the date of mailing, hmid deliveiy 01' electronic transmission of 

the bill, the balancc owing will be increased by 1.5%

Any balance remaining unpaiu in subsequent months will be increased by II further 1.5% per month, The minimuii uelayed
payment penaliy shall be one dollar ($ 1.00),

Build/I'd Direct Purchiise Delivery
Where û cuslomer elects under this rate schedule to directly purchase .ils gas from a supplier oÙier thon NRG, lhe

cuslomcr or their agent, must enter inlo a Bundled T-Scrvicc Receipt Conlriicl with NRO for delivery ulgas to NRG. Bundled
T-Service Receipt Conlracl rates are described in rate schedule BTl. Thc gus supply charge will nol be applicûble to
customers who elect said Bundlcd T transportation service.

r

Unless oÙierwÎse authorized by NRG, customers who flre delivering gas to NRG under direcl purchase arrangements
miisl obligate to deliver said gns iii a point acceptable to NRG, nnd must ncquire ßnd mAintain finn transportation all all
pipelinc systems upstream of On Hi rio.

Effective: July 01, 2008

iiipJemeiitniioli: All bils rendered on or after July 01, 2008
EB.200R-0090

("
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Rate A v~i1a biltv

Entire service area of the compnny.

RATE 3. Sr¡~dal Large Volume Contract Rate

Ellqibilltv
A customer who enters into a contract wiih the company for Ùie purchase or transportation of gas:

ii) fur a minimum term of one Year;

Ii) that spe~jfes a combined duily conirur.ted demand for firm. and interruptible service ofaileast 700 01); and'

r.) a quolityingannual volume Drat leasl 113,000 nl.

Rute
I. Bils wil be rendered monthly and shall be the total of:

a) A Monthly Custoiiei' CIlDl'ge:

A Monthly Ciistoiiei' Charge of $1 50.00 for finn or intcrruptible customers; or
A Monthly Customer Charge of $1 75.00 tor combined (fmn iid interruptible) customers.

h) A Monthly Demand Charge:

A MonUily Demand Charge of2 5 ,5904 cents per mJ for each nil of daily contracted firm demiid.

c.) A Monthly Delivery Charge:

(i) A Monthly Firm Delivery Charge for all firm volumes of3.731 0 cents per mJ,

L.
(ii) A Monthly Intemiptible Deliver)' Charge for all interruptible volumes to be negotiatedd;ietween the

compmiy mid the customer not to exceed 9.2249 cents per m) anù not to .be less than 6,0992 per m).

d) Ous Supply Churge (ifupplicuble)

See Schedule A.

e) Dve/Tun Gas Charges:

Ovcmin gas is nvajl¡ible without penally provided that it is authorized by llle company in advance, The
company will not uru'easonibly withhold authorization,

If, on any day, the customer should take, without the company's approval in advnnce. n volume of gas in
excess or the maximum quantity of gus which the company is obligated to deliver Ll thc customer on such
day, or if. oa any day, Ihe customer fails to comply with uny curiiiilrncnt notice reducing Ibe customer's take
oj' gas, i hen,

(i) the volume of gas taken in excess orlhe company's maximum deliver)' obligation for such day. or

(ii) the volumc of gas taken in the period on such day covered by sii~h curt¡iilment noticc (as dewrinincd

by the company in accordance with its usual practice) iii excess of lhe volume of gas authorized \0
be laken in such period by such curtailment nolice,

as the cuse may he, shall constitute unauthori7.ed ovemii volume.

Any uimuihori7.ed firm ovorrun L~a~ taken in any month shall be paid for vI ¡he Ratc 3 r'irr Delivery Charge

in effect al the iime the overrun occurs. In addiilon, the ContTact Dcmand Icvel shall be adjusted to the aClual
maximum daily ,'olumc taken and the Demand Charges stated above shall apply for the whole contract year,
including relroacLively, if necessary, thereby reauiring recomputation of bils rendcred previously in the
contract year.

~.~.
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Any unauthorized iniemiptible Qvernin gas talcen in any month shall be. paid for al the Rate J Delivery

Charge iu effect al tJie iime the ovmun occurs plus Bny (ìa~ 0upPlY Charge applicable.

For ony uniiuthorized overrun gas taken, the cuslomer shall, in aduiliun, indemnify the company in respect of
any penaliies or additional costs imposed on the company by ihe company's suppliers, nn)' auiJiliumil gas
cosl incuned or any sales IllargÎJis lost as a COJlscqucncc of the custumer tnking the unauthorized ovemin
volume.

2. In negotiating the Monthly Intemiptible Commodity Charge referred 10 in J(c)(ii) above, the matters 10 be considercd

include:

a) The volume uf gas for which the customcr is wiling to contract;

h) The load factor of the customer's anticipated gas consumption, the patlem of annual usc, and the minimum

aiiiiial quantil)' of gas which the cuslumer is willing to contract 10 take or in any event pay for;
c) Inlemiptible or curtailment provisions;

d) Cuinpclilion.

3. In each contrapl year, the customer shall take delivery from thc compan)', ur in any event p~y for it ¡favailable and not

accepted by the customer, a minimum volume of gas as specified in the contract between the parties. Overrun volumes will nol
contribute to the minimum volume.. The raie ~pplicable In the shortfall from this minimum shall be 3.3853 cents per niJ for
finn gns and 5.7536 cenls per ni3 tor inlerruptible. gas.

4. The conlract may provide thatihe Monthly Demand Charge specified lii Role Sectiun i ahove shall not apply on all or
parI ofihe Jaily contracted firm demand useiJ by ihe customer during the testing, commissioning, phasiiig iii, decommissioning
and phasing 0111 of gas-using equipment lor a period not to exceed one year (ihc transilion period). In such event, Ihe contract

wil provide for a Munthly Fimi Delivery Commodity Charge 10 be applied on such volume during the transitiun of 6.35 iS
cents pel' m1 anel a gas supply comniodify charge as set out in Schedule A, if "pplicable. Gas purchased under this clause wil
not contribute to the minimum volume.

nundled Direct Purchase Delivery
Where a customer elects uniJcr this rule schedule to directly purchase Its gas from a supplier other than NRG, the

customer or their agent, must enter into a Bundled .I.Service Receipt Contract with NRG for delivery of gas to NRU. Bundled
T -Service Receipt Contract rates are described iii rate schedule BTl. The gas supply charge will not be applicable to
customers who elect said Dundled T transportation service.

. Unless otherwise authorized by NItG, customers who are deliveriiig gus tu N)~G under direct purchase arrangements
must obligate to deliver siiiu gas at a point acceplahle to NRG, and must acquire and maintain firm tmnspoi1ation on all

. pipeline systems upstream ofOnlario.

Dr.layr.d laynienl Penalty
When paymi:nl is nul maue in full hy the due date noted on the bill, which dale shall not be I~ss than 16 calendar days

after ihe dale of mailing, haiid delivery or electronic transmission of ib~ bill, lhe biilance owing will be increased by 1.5%.
Any balance remaining unpaid in SUbsiiiiucnl iionths will he increased hy a fiJrihcr 1.5% per month. 111e niinimum dclayed
paymen! penalty shaH be one dollar ($1.00).

Effcclivc: July 01,2008
Implementation: All bills rendered on or ~fter July OJ, 2008
EB.2008.0090
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Ontario

Ontario Energy

Board

Commission de I'ënergie
de l'Ontario

Nôti .
o~.~~rOt

10 U(\~ D0

EB-200S.Q033

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,

8.0.1998, c.15 (Sched. B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas
Limited, pursuant to section 36(1) of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998, for an order or orders approving or fixing'
just and reasonable rates and' other charges for the sale,
distribution, transmission, and storage of gas as of April 1,

2008;

. !

AND IN THE MATTER OF the Quarterly Rate Adjustment

Mechanism approved by the Ontario Energy Board in RP-
2003-0063.

l~.
BEFORE: Ken Quesnelle

Member

DECISION AND INTERIM ORDER

Union Gas Limited ("Union") filed an application (the "Application") dated February 26,

2008, with the Ontario Energy Board (the "Board") for an order or orders approving or

fixing just and reasonable rates and other charges for the sale, distribution,

transmission, 
,and storage of gas. The Application was made pursuant to Union's

approved Quarterly Rate Adjustment Mechanism ("QRAM"). Union's Application has

been given Board File No. EB-2008-0033.

Although this application deals with Union's proposed QRAM rate changes effective

April 1, 2008. Union also proposes to implement concurrently rate changes to reflect the

impacts of Union's Interim Rate Order issued on March 4, 2008 as part of the

EB-2007-0606 proceeding.

(_.
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February 2006

,) UN'ON GAS LIMITED

Soulhern opeialions Area

Summa'" of Chanoes'lo Sales Ralss

//'
EB.2001.0606

APProvoØ

January I, 2008

RaID

laJ
Line~ Pa~i,ul'I' (cenls/m')

M1 Small Volume Gonet.1 Solvlco Rale
MODlhly Ghargo

$11.00

4.9580

4.7030

4.0994
Flrsl

NOxl

Allovor

100m'
160m'

250m'
(0.4494) (1)

Dollvery. PriOB Adjuslment (All Voiumes)
0.9876

storago Service
(0.0149)

SIOrage. Price AdjuslmBnl

Ml Large Voiume GBneral Service R.io
Monlhly ciirgo

S10.00

3,&169

3.&064

3.39&4

3.1446

9

10

11

12

Firs!

Nexl

Nexl

All oVBr

100010'
600010'

13000..'
20000..'

(0.1957) (4)

13 DelivDry' Prico Mjusiment (All Volum..)
0.1213

14 Siorago Service
(0.0098)

15 Sioroge. Price Miuslmonl

16

11

18

M4 Firm commliiid contracl rate
Monlhly dom"nd charge:
Flrsl 8450 m'

Nex! 10 100m'

All ovor 20 150 m'

44.8685

19.4669

16.1662

19
20
21

Monlhly Øelivory commodity charoe:
Flrl block
AM iemRlnlng USB
Delivery. Price MJusimDnl (All Voiumes)

0.0271
0.6081

(0.0747) (7)

1.2450

22 Minimum annual delivery commodity charge

R"ie
Chanoe

(b)

D~b
EB.2008.0033
Append", A
Paoe 7 01 l'Z (

0.1300

EB.2008.0033
Approved

April 1. 2008
R.le

(c)

$11.00

4.0580

4.7030

4.0994

(0.3104) (2)

0.9870

(0.0149) (3)

$70.00

3.8769

3.8064

3.3954

3.1446

(0.0651) (5)

0.7273

(0.0098) (6)

(
44.8585

19.4509

16.1562

0.9277
0.5081

(0.0765) (8)

1.2450

0.1300

(0.0008)

~
(1) Incls. PIOSp Rec 01 (0.0027) (0.0415), (0.0004). (0.0014). a temp ",eoll 10.1275) 101 Jan 1.Mar 31 & 0 lemp crellit (0.2758) tor Apr 1.0ec 31. 2008.
(21lndudes prospoclive Recovery of (0.0416). (0.0004). (0.ii14). (0.0002) anø" lempo/aryciedil (0.2756) ceni.im' lor i~e poriod Apr ¡.Dec 31, 2606.

(3) In,lu~es a ir.mpo/ory c,edll 01 (0.0Id9) ""nlSim' lor Ih_ perio Aprllllo Oec_mboi 31. 200B.
(d) Incls. ProsQ Re' 0110.0027) (O.Od 15).(0.0604), (0.0014). a lemp cicdll (0.1215) lor Jan I.Mar 31 & "iemp tredll (0.02211101 Apr '.Dec 31,2000.
(5) Includes p,ospecliv. Recovery 01 (0.0415). (0.00041,(0.0614). (0.0002) and a leinperary cieØIl (0.0221) cenlsJm' lor the period Apr 1.(Jec 31. 2008.

(6) IncluØes a lemporary "ie~il 01 (0.0096) eenl51m' lor Ihe period April 

1 10 Oecembei 31. 2008..

(7) Incluoes Prospeclive Reco.eiy 01 0.0006. (0.0735), (0.0004) and 10.0014) cents/m'.

(8) In,ludes PioSpecl;ve Recovery 01(0.0735), 10.0004). (o.0014J and (0.0002) cenlSim'.

(
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o miongas
EHeclive

2008.04-01
Rate M1

Paae 1 of 2

SMALL VOLUME GENERAL SERVICE RATE

(A) Availabilty

Available 10 cuslomers iri Union's Southern Delivery Zone.

(B) Applicability

To general service cuslomers whose lolal can 
sump lion is equal to or less than 50, 000103 per year.

(e) Rates

The identified rales (excluding gas supply charges, If applicable) represent maximum prices for service, These rates may

change periodically. Mult-year prices may also be negotialed which may be higher than (he identified rates.

I
i
i

a) Monlhly Charge
$ 17.00

b) Delivery Charge

First

Nexl

AllOver

100m)
150m'
250m'

4.95BOt per 10'

4.7030Ø per 10'

4,0994Ø per 10'

c)

Delivery - Price Adjustmanl (All Volumes) (1)

Storage Charge (if applicable)

Storage - Price Adjustment (2)

(0.3194)Ø per 10'

0.9876 t per 10'

(0.0149)Ø per 10'

Applicable 10 all bundled customers (sales and bundled transportalion service).

d) Gas Supply Charge (if applicable)

The gas supply charge is comprised 01 charges lor transporlation and for commodity and luel.
The applicable rates are provided in Schedule "A",

During any monlh In which a customer terminates service or begins service, the fixed charge lor the month will be prorated 10

such customer.

Noles

(1) The Delivery _ Prite Adjusimenl includes Ð .1emporary croon 01 (0.2756) cenlslm' for Uie period Apnl1 to December 31, 2006.

(2) The Sioroge _ Price Adjuslmenl consists of a lemporary credil 01 (0.0149) ccnlsm' lor Iha period Apiil110 Der.embei 31,2006.

(D) Supplement¡il Service to Commercial and Industrial Customers Under Group Meters

Combination of readings from several melers may be aulhorized by Ihe Company and the Company wiíl no! reasonably

wilhhold authorization in cases where melers are located on.conUguous pieces 01 property of Ihe same owner nol divided by

a public righ.l.ol.way, In such cases, an additional service charge shall be rendered each month in the amount of $15.00 per

monlh for each addilonal meter so combined. .

(E) Delayed Payment

Whenpaymenl of Ihe monlhly bil has nol been made in full 16 days atler the biíl has been issued, the unpaid balance
including previous arrears shall be Increased by 1.5%. .



o miongas
Effective

2008.04.01
Rate M1

Piioe 2 of 2

(

(F) Direct Purchase

Unless otherwise aulhorizad by Union, cuslomers Who are delivering gas 10 Union under direcl purchase arrangements musl

obligate 10 deliver al a poinl(s) specified bi' Union, and must acquire and main 

lain firm \ransporlation on all upstream pipeline

syslems. Cuslomers initialing direct purchase arrangements, who previously received Gas Supply service, musl also accept,

unless otherwise authorized by Union, an assignmenllrom Union of Iransportalion capacily on upslream pipeline systems.

(G) Overrun Charge

In Ihe evenl thaI a direcl purchase customer tails 10 deliver lis conlracled volumes to Union, and Union has the capabilty \0
conlinue 10 supply Ihe customer. Union wil do so. The customer may pay 5.9456i per m' for the delivery and Ihe lata 

I gas

supply charge lor ul/Iiy sales provided in Schedule 'A" per m', plus 7Ø per m'.

(H) Bundled Direct Purchase Delivery

Where a cuslomer elecls Iransporlalion service undei this rale schedule, the customer must enler ¡nlo a Bundled T Gas

Conlrad with Union lor delivery of gas 10 Union. Bundled T Gas Contract Rates and Gas Purchase Contract Rates are

described in rate schedule R1.

(I) Company Policy Relating to Terms of Service

a. Customers who temporarily disconlinue service during any twelve conseculive months without payment 01 the monthly
fixed charge for the months in which the gas is temporarily disconnecled shall pay for disconnection and reconneclion.

b. When gas is delivered at an absolute pressure in excess of 101.325 kilopascals, Ihen for purposes of measurement,
hereunder, such volume 01 gas shall be correcled 10 an absolute pressure of 101.325 kilopascals. Atmospheric
pressure is assumed to be Ihe levels shown below in kilo 

pascals (absolute) regardless of the actual atmospheric

pressure at which the gas is measured and delivered.

(

.,

\,

Assumed
Atmospheric

Pressure

Zone KE

1
100.148

2 99.494

3 90.874

4
98,564

5 9B.185

6 97.754

7
97.582

8 97.065

9 96.721

10 .100.561

11 99,321

12 98.883

Effeclive Apríl1,200B

D.E.B. ORDER # EB.200B.0033
Chatham, Ontario

Supersedes EB.2007-0606 Rale Schedule effective January 1, 200B.

(
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o Effective

2008.04-01
Rate M2

Page 1 of 2

Uliongas

LARGE VOLUME GENERAL SERVICE RATE

(AJ Availabilty

Available 10 customers in Union's Southern Delivery Zone,

(8) Applicability

To general service customers whose lolal consumplion is grealer than 50, 000 m3 per year.

ie) Rates

The identified rales (excluding gas supply charges, If applicable) represent maximum prices for service, These rales may

change periodically, Mull-year prices may also be negolialed which may be higher than the idenlified rales.

a) Monfhly Charge

$ 70.00

b) Delivery Charge

First

Next
Next
AllOver

1 DOOm'

6 DOOm'

13 000 m3

20 DOOm'

3.6769Ø per m'

3.6064Ø per m'

3.3964Ø per m'
3, 1445Ø per m'

cJ

Delivery - Price Adjustment (All Volumes). (1)

Storage Charge (if applicable)

(0.0657)i per m'

0.7273Ø per m'

Storage - Price Adjustment (2)
(0.0098)i per m,

Applicaole 10 all bundled cuslomers (sales and bundled Iransporlation service).

d) Gas Supply Charge (if applicable)

The gas supply charge is comprised of charges lor Iransporlalion and for commodily and fueL. '
The applicable rates are provided in Schedule UN,

During any month in which a cuslomer termínales service or begins servÎce. the fixed charge lor Ihe monlh wil be prorated \0

such cuslomer.

Noles

(1) The Delivel) _ Piice Adjuslmenl includes a temporal) credit (1),0221) cenlslm' lor Ihe period Anril1 10 Derember 31, 2006.

(2) The Siorage _ Prici Adjuslmenl consists 01 a lempoiary credit 01(0.0098) cenlslm' 101 ¡he period April110 Decr.mbei 31.2000.

(0) Supplemental Service to Commercial and Industrial Customers Under Group Meiers

Combination 01 readin9~ Irom several melers may be authorized by the Company and the Company will not reasonably

withhold aulhorizalion in cases where meters are located on contiguous pieces of property ollhe same owner nol divided by

a public righi-of-way. In such 
cases, an addilional service charge shall be rendered each month in the amounl 01$15.00 per

monlh for each addilonal meIer so combined.

IE) Delayed Payment

When paymenl of ihe monthly bil has nol been made in full 
16 days after the bil has been issued, Ihe unpaid balance

including prev'ious aii ears shall be increased by 1.5%.
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EHective

2008.04.01
Rate M2

Paoe 2012

! (

(F) Direct Purchase

Unless olherwise aulhorized by Union, cuslomers who are delivering gas 10 Union under direcl purchase arrangements musl

obligale 10 deliver al a poinl(s) specifed by Union, and must acquire and maintain firm lransportalion on all upslream pipeline

syslems. Customers inllialing direct purchase arrangements, who previously received Gas Supply service, must also accept,

unless otherwise aulhorized by Union, an assignment from Union of transportation capacily on upstream pipeline systems.

(G) Overrun Charge

In Ihe evenlthal a direct purchase cuslomer fails tó deliver lis contracled volumes to Union, and Union has the capabiliy to

conllnue to supply the customer, Union wil do so. The customer may pay 4.4042~ per m' for the delivery and the lotal gas

supply charge for utility sales provided in Schedule "A' per m', plus 7Ø per m'.

(H) Bundled Direct Purchase Delivery

Where a cuslomer elecls transportation service under this rale schedule, Ihe customer must enler inlo a Bundled T Gas
Conlract wllh Union lor delivery or gas 10 Union. Bundled T Gas Conlracl Rates and Gas Purchase Contract Rates are

dèscribed in rate schedule R1.

(I) Company Policy Relating to Terms of Service

a. Customers who temporarily disconllnue service during any twelve consecullve months wilhoul payment of the monlhly
fixed charge lor the months in which the gas is temporarily disconnecled shall pay lor disconnection and reconneclion.

b. When gas is delivered al an absolute pressure in excess 01 101.325 kllopascals, then for purposes of measurement,
hereunder, such volume of gas shall be corrected \0 an absolute pressure of 101.325 kilopascals, Atmospheric
pressure is assumed to be the levels shown below in kilopascals (absolute) regardless of !he aeluel atmospheric
pressure al which the gas is measured and delivered.

Assumed
Atmospheric

Pressure

Zone kPa

1
100.148

2 99.494

3 98.874

4 98.564

5 98.185

6 97,754

7 97.582

8 97.065

9 96.72

10 100.561

11
99.321

12 98.883

Effective April 1, 2008

O.E.B. ORDER # EB.200B-0033
Chalham, Onlario

Supersedes EB.2007.0606.Rate Schedule eflective January 1, 2008. (
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o Efleclive
2008-04.01
Rate M4
Page 1 of 2

U110ngas

FIRM INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL CONTRACT RATE

(A) Availabiliy

Available 10 cuslomers in Union's Soulhern' Delivery Zone.

(a) ApplicabJlty

To a cuslomer who enlers into a conlracl for the purchase or lransportalion of gas for a minimum term of one year Ihal

specifies a dally conlracled demand belween 4 BOO m' and 140 B70 m'.

(e) Rales

The Idenlified rales (excluding gas supply charges, if applicable) riipresent maximum prices for service, These rales may

change periodically. Multi-year prices may also be negolialed which may be higher than the identifed rates.

1. Bils w/l be rendered monthly and shall be the lolal of:

(I) A Monlhly Demand Charge

Firsl 8450 m' of dally conlracled demand
44.B6B5t pot m~

Next 19 700 m' of dally contracled demand
19.4669~ per m'

AllOver 28 150 m' of daily contracted demand
16.1662~ per m'

(ii) A Monthly Delivery Commodily Charge

First 422 250 m' delivered per monlh
0.9277~ per m'

Nexl volume equallo 15 days use of daily

contracted demand
0.9277~ per m'

For remainder of volumes delivered in the month
O.5081~ per m'

Delivery- Price Adjuslmenl (All Volumes)
(0.0755)~. per m'

(ii) Gas Supply Charge (ir applicable)

The gas supply charge is comprised of charges lor lransporlalion and for commodity and
fueL. 'The applicable rales are provided In Schedule "A"

2. Overrun Charge

Authorized overrun gas is available provided thaI ii is authorized by Union in advance, Union will not unreasonably
withhold aulhorizalìon. Overrun means gas laken on any day in excess of 103% of conlriicled dally demand.

Authorized overrun will be available lipril1 through Oclober 31 and wil be paid for at a Delivery Rate of 2.4028t per

m' and, if applicable, the lolal gas supply charge for ulilily sales provided in Schedule" A " per m3 for all volumes
purchased.

lJnaulhorized overruii gas laken in any month shall be paid 101 althe rale of 5,9456~. per m' lor lhe delivery and Ihe
lolal gas supply charge lor ulilily sales provided in Schedule "A' per m' lor all gas supply volumes purchased.

3. Minimum Annual Charge

In each conlracl year. Ihe cuslomer shall purchase from Union or pay lor a minimum volume of gas or Iransporlalion .
services equivalenllo 146 days use 01 conlracled .demand, Ove/run gas volumes wì1 nol con\ribule 10 the minimum

volume. In Ihe evenl Ihallhe customer shall nollake such minimum volume Ihe cuslomer shall pay an amounl equal
10 Ihe deficiency from !he minimum volume limes a Delivery Charge of 1.2450~ per m' and, if applicable a gas supply

commodity charge provided in Schedule "A".

In Ihe evenllhat Ihe conlracl period exceeds one year 1he annual minimum volume will be proraled for any part year.
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Effective

2008.04.01
Rate M4

Page 2 of 2

(

(D) Delayed Payment

When paymenl ollhe monthl)' bil has nol been made in rull 16 days aijer Ihe bil has been issued, the unpaid balance

including previous arrears shall be increased by 1.5%.

(E) Direct Purchas e

Unless olherwise aulhorized by Union, cuslomers who are delivering gas 10 Union under direcl purchase arrangemenls must

obligate to deliver at a point(s) specifed by Union, and must acquire and maintain firm transportalion on all upslream pipeline

systems lor all volumes. Customers iniliating direcl purchase arrangements, who previously received Gas Supply service,

must also accepL, unless otherwise authorized by Union, an assign 

men i from Union of Iransportation capacity on upstream

pipeline systems.

(F) Bundled Direct Purchase Delivery

Where a customer elects Iransportalion service under this rate schedule the customer must enler Into a Bundled T Gas
Conlracl wllh Union tor delivery of gas 10 Union,

Bundled T Gas Conlracl Rales and Gas Purchase Contract Rales are described in rale schedule R1.

(

Effeclíve April 1, 200B

O.E,B. ORDER # EB.200B.0033
Chalham, Ontario

Supersedes EB.2007.0B06 Rale Schedule eHeclive January 1, 200B.

c
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Supporting your natural gas ¿¡,je-Jt¡

rt+!acLv+ t
RECEIVED

SE? 1 5 2008

CJill C!:nZQ

Friday, September 12, 2008

Via Courier

The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot street West

Aylmer, ON N5H 1J7

Attention: Mr. Bob Habkirk, Mayor
Ms. Heather Adams, Administrator

Dear Sirs:

On behalf of Mr. Tony Graat, Mr. Jack Howley and myself, thank you for the
opportunity to meet with you yesterday to discuss various matters as they relate to
Natural Resource Gas Limited and the Town of Aylmer.

We look forward to working together with you going forward, and to building a long

( and prQsperous relationship between The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer and
~ Natural Resource Gas Limited.

Yours truly,
Natural Resource Gas Limited

(L.
Per: Mark Brlstoll
President

cc: Mr. Tony Graat
Mr. Jack Howley

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED 39 Beech St. E., Aylmer. Dntario 1'!5H lA1 TeL. 519-773-5321 Fax. 519-773-5335
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Supporting Your Natl1al GasJ,¡ft;.§.!):.lt

RESIDENTIAL SECURITY DEPOSIT CONTRACT

How does our Security Deposit program work? Why does It exIst?
Thank you for choosing natural gas as your energy source! NRG takes great pride In being a financially
responsible provider of natural gas In our community. Protection of rates and costs associated with
servicing our community are our number one priority. As such, the introduction of security deposits is a
necessary step to try to protect both NRG & our gas customers from Increased rates resulting from. non
oaylng customers,

Security Deposits are not a prepayment of gas.

When do Security Deposits Apply?
Security deposits are requested for all new customers - both commercial & residential. The amount of the
deposit Is determined based on usage history applicable to the specific address In which gas service Is
installed or will be installed. The security deposit can be held Indefinitely with Interest paid annually as a
credit right on your October statementl Accounts with poor payment history with NRG wil likely require a
security deposit prior to the continuation of service,

How do I apply?
Requests for a refund of security deposits can be made after 1 year of service for residential accounts and
3 years for commercial accounts and must be made In writing to our credlt.department. Yow letter must
Include your address, account number and stating you are applying to have your Security Deposit .

refunded. Please include a copy of your original receipt.. Our Credit Department can be contacted:

Fax 519-773-5335
Email credltdept\!nrgas.on.ca
Mail 39 Beech Street, PO Box 307, Aylmer, ON N5H 2S1

Once received, ii thorough examination of tne foiiowing criteria will be performed and a decision made.

1.) If the customer's payment history has no late payments within 12 months'" 50% security deposit
refund.

2.) If the customer's payment history has no late payments within 24 months'" 100% security
.deposlt refund.

3.) If the customer has a disconnection notice within either tlmeframe, or a late payment, than 0%
of the security deposit will be returned. The .customer must then have a full 

12 months of clean

payment history In order to qualify for the 50% refund.

You will be notIfied in writing of our decision and at the discretion of NRG, a portion of your deposit, in
whole or in part, will be returned to you. Interest accrued (1 % per year) will be applied directly to your
account every october, If pre-authorized chequing Is setup on your account, you cannot cancel the pre-
authorized chequing for 2 years.

NRG believes tliat the securIty deposit program is in the best interests of all our natural gas customer's.
These deposits are not a pre-payment of gas, and are intended as an industry accepted best practice to

help manage natural. gas rates for our customers.

Please be advised that any future communications should be in writing,

If you have any questions, please feel free to send via mail address below, or via email at
credltdept(1 nrga s, on. ca,

Thiink You,

Natural Resource .Gas Limited

Credit Department

Customer's Name (Printed):

Customer's Signature:
Date:

NRG Representative:
Date:

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED P.O. Bor. 307. Aylmer, Ontario N5H 2S1 TeL. 519.773-5321 I Fax. 519.773.5335
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RECEIVED

SEP 1 7 Z006~
DEVELOPMENT COIlI'OIlATJON

Friday, September 16, 2008

Via Courier

The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot street West .
Aylmer, ON N5H 1J7

Attention: Mr. Bob Habkirk, Mayor
Ms. Heather Adams, Administrator'

Dear SIrs/Madame:

Please accept this letter as Natural Resource Gas Limited/s confirmation and
commitment to work with The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer on its many
Initiatives Including, but not be limited to:

(J
. To collaborate with the Town of Aylmer on Natural Resource Gas Limited

business and/or customer issues that are of mutual concern
. Attendance at pre-construction meetings

Review of Comsatec transportation costs
. Involvement with and attendance at Emergency Planning Committee meetings

. Actively participate in Business Development Opportunities and work closely

with the Town to assure corporations interested in relocating to Aylmer that
Natural Resource Gas Limited is a community partner willing and able to satisfy
their natural gas needs.

As discussed, our General Manager, Mr. Jack Howley, is 
available at (519) 773-5321

to assist the Town of Aylmer.

Yours truly,
Ayerswood Development Corporation

ri
Per: Mark Bristoll
President

lc Ayerswood Development Corporation I P.O. Boy. 311. Terminal ~.. London. ON Il6A 414 I T 51Y.433-8126 I F 519-433-6132
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Howard i. Wetston, Q.C.
Chair & CEO

Ontario Energy Board

SPEECH

( 1

Ontario Energy Association
Annual Conference

Toronto, Ontario

September 18, 2008

Check against delivery
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I want to congratulate the Ontario Energy Association (OEA) on puttng together
an excellent program for this conference. It deals with a wide range of issues,
offers an excellent roster of panelists.

I look forward to hearing from panelists on Leadership and Innovation in Energy
Regulation. They offer a broad view - from the perspectives of utility companies,
the federal Deparlment of Natural Resources, and the National Round Table on
the Environment and the Economy.

I would like to address the changes we have seen in energy regulation in Ontario
_ and some of the changes we will be seeing in the years ahead. In the time I am
allotted, I can't speak to everything the Board is working on, but I will focus on
four key topics:

. time-of-use pricing;

. the needs of low-income energy consumers;

. transmission connection cost responsibility; and

. the way we are ensuring that consumers have a voice in energy

regulation, and the opportunity to pursue their energy interests.

("

Looking back over the past few years, the Ontario Energy Board (DEB or the
Board) has made two major shifts in how we operate, First, we have engaged in
proactive regulatory policy development. Second, we have focused on improving
our adjudicative processes to increase regulatory efficiency and create positive
and more predictable outcomes for stakeholders.

Among other things, we have issued new service quality requirements for
electricity distributors and staff discussion papers on third generation incentive
rate mechanism (lRM) for electricity distributors, time-of-use pricing and
transmission connection cost responsibility for generators. We are refining our
approach to benchmarking utility costs. We have consolidated and updated our
guidelines for electricity distributor conservation and demand management, and
we are currently in the midst of a process to consider natural gas storage and
transportation access.

Throughout this time, the Board has been making the transition from "regulation
by application" to "anticipatory" regulation - regulation guided by policy,
Through various tools such as codes, rules, filing guidelines and Board reports,
we have developed regulatory policies that help to shape specific outcomes.
They ensure that the Board's expectations are clear and well understood. They
reduce regulatory uncertainty. And they provide structure and focus for our
adjudicative processes. For example, the hearings on the Integrated Power
System Plan (IPSP) and the recently completed hearings on setting payment
amounts for Ontario Power Generation (OPG) both benefited from the advance
policy. development work done by the Board.

l"



r- '- 3

(

Over the past five years, the OEB has created innovative, new ways of doing the
things we are supposed to do, in the context of a mandate that continues to
evolve. It is a r.are day that we do not have to think about our mandate and what
that does and does not allow us to do in this complex sector. And the courts
wrestle with these issues too. Two recent decisions of the Divisional Court are
good examples. One is the decision on the Low Income Energy Network (LIEN)
appeal in relation to the Board's jurisdiction to consider ability to pay in settng
rates. The other is the decision issued just last week on the Toronto Hyd~o
appeal relating to the Board's authority to require that the payment of dividends
be approved by a majority of a distributor's independent directors. In both of
these cases, the court itself was divided in its view of the Board's authority.

Confirming the scope of our mandate and refining our approach to the
development of regulatory policy and adjudication will remain important as the
Board proactively targets new priorities. Specifically, the Board believes that now
is the time to accelerate our initiatives focused on the consumer, We believe it is
an important priority to develop processes that allow us to better communicate
with and understand the perspectives of consumers. !

i

I
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Consumers are no longer content to leave the debate of energy and the
environment to others. They see the debate as something that is vitally important
to them _ one that touches their pocketbooks and their daily lives. What we do as
a regulator - what we all do as an industry - is taking on greater importance in
the minds of consumers.

A shift has occurred. Consumer groups enjoy a higher profile with decision
makers than ever before. They ask probing questions about the price of energy.
They want to know their rights. They want to be more self-suffcient when
considering their energy options. And they want regulation based on clear
principles, transparency and predictabilty. While energy regulators have always
been focused on consumers' interests, we are seeing an increasing interest in
energy regulation by consumers and an increasing focus on consumer
participation by energy regulators. A good example of this new paradigm is the
statement from Britain's Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (OFGEM) in May
2008 that it wil recruit domestic energy consumers from British households for its
new Consumer First panel, which is to be in place by October first of this year.
The Board believes tliat regulation needs to evolve from its half-century-Iong
history of being a complex, detail driven exercise between the' 

regulator, the

applicant and the intervenors. Regulation must become more accessible. It
must become more "user friendly". .

Make no mistake: The Board has always sought the views of cònsumers.
Consumers are an important constituency. Over the past few years, we have
taken a number of steps in the public interest to seek consumer input in shaping
policy.

2
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Over the next few years, we will take that to another leveL.

We will try to improve and enhance our efforts to educate consumers with
respect to industry structure, energy PQlicy and price; inform consumers about
their energy choices, their rights and responsibilities; reduce confusion; and
ensure that the consumers' toolbox is sufficiently equipped so they are better
able to take advantage of conservation and demand initiatives and time-of-use
rates, fulfilling our government's policy objectives. Consumers want us to paint a
clearer picture for them - of the industry, their rights and their options. And we
have been doing that. Through the "Energy Choice is Yours" campaign, we have
put together materials that cut through the clutter and empower.consumers to .
make more informed choices about their energy consumption and' 

supply,

choices that are right for them. And later this year we will be launching a new
website devoted to consumers and their energy options.

In focusing on the consumer, we need to be minçlful that a" fundamental change
in how people will view electricity use is occurring. Consumers will hàve to be
conscious not just of how much energy they use, but when they use it.

We're seeing smart meters installed in residences and small businesses in
communï"ties across the province. Consumers are going to have to learn to think

about what I like to think of as "power by the hour."

~j
We are working on refining our time-of-use pricè structure, designed to recover
the cost of supply at specific periods 

of the day and encourage load shifting -

and also to give consumers the tools they need to help modify their own
consumption. It will be important to communicate to consumers hDW they can do
this.

Consumers are increasingly aware of the need to manage their bills - and nDt
only to bringdDwn their own costs. The OEBimplemented a smart meter pilot
with Hydro Ottawa. One Df the things we learned regarding time-of-use price
structures is that reducing costs is not the only reason consumers are likely to be
mDtivated to manage their consumption. They also understand that they can help
ensure a reliable supply of power - and contribute to a cleaner environment.

One other point I would like to make on time-of-use pricing: We have received 16
submissions in response to our staff discus.sion paper on the issue. The input
includes information from utilities like Newmarket Tay Power Distribution, which
already has a number of customers on tíme-of-use pricing. Their experience and
insight will be very valuable and will infDrm our thinking as we continue to refine
the time-of-use pricing modeL.

In addition to time-of-use pricing, our focus on the consumer includes sDmething
else: a thorough review of energy issues from the perspective of IDw-income

3
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consumers. We have launched a consultation process to examine that, including
a stakeholder conference that will commence next Monday.

We will hear from a number of representatives about what programs currently
exist to assist low income energy consumers, we'll discuss what agencies or
organizations exist that utilities can work with, and we'll hear about the
experience with low-income 

energy assistance programs In other jurisdictions. In

that respect, we have commissioned a study of how the needs of low-income
energy consumers are dealt with elsewhere - that report is on our website. There
are currently 59 participants representing a broad range of interests registered to
take part in the consultation and the stakeholder conference will be available by
webcast for others who want to listen.

We will hear about customer service issues such as disconnection policies and
security deposit rules, conservation and demand programs accessible to low
income consumers, and mechanisms for funding energy assistance programs.
Next week, we will hear many different groups with a diverse set of expertise and
opinions on these challenging issues.

Consumers care about another issue as well: The potential for development of
wind and other renewable resources.

As we are all aware, the government has established a clear policy framework
aimed at increasing investment in renewable forms of generation. This policy
direction has been captured both within and outside of the lPSP process
presently before the Board.

(

As a regulator, the OEB has a role in managing the costs of adapting the
electricity infrastructure to meet the often unique needs associated with
connecting renewable power generation to both the transmission and distribution
systems, province-wide.

That is why we have made it a priority to examine responsibility for the cost of
connecting new generation to the grid. It's a simple question: Who pays? It is
perhaps obvious, but there is no consensus or a simple answer.

In January of this year, we launched a consultation process to examine policies
regarding cost responsibilty for both generation and load connections to
transmission systems. The goal is to ensure we are facilitating optimal
development of transmission infrastructure, in a manner that reflects the direction
of the province and the needs of the electricity sector. We will be extending that
consultation to examine cost responsibility for connections to distribution
systems.

Our immediate focus is on generation connections. Under current practices, with
a few exceptions, new connections to the transmission grid must be 

built and

4
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paid forby the connecting generation customer, This framework is based on a
paradigm of large, single-proponent generators located close to the grid. The
framework promotes efficiency as generators assess costs and benefits of
connection and have maximum incentives to minimize connection costs.

To date, it has not presented obstacles to the connection of rènewables to the
grid. However, the IPSP filed by the Ontario Power Authority in August of 2007
and currently under consideration by the Board identified a new category of
renewable resources, renewable resource clusters, that may not be well served.
by our current generation connection policies,

In considering our connection policies, as in all of our consultation processes, we
recognize the importance of consultation with all affected stakeholders. It is
critical that we are fully. informed by, and benefit from, their experience and
perspectives.

All of the areas I have discussed - consumer involvement in the regulatory
process, time-of-use pricing, the needs of low-income energy consumers, and
transmission connection cost responsibility - are important to the people that all
of us serve.

Their long-term needs must be our focus; their concerns must be reflected in our
agenda and in our processes.

(~"' Thank you.

l."
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BY E-MAIL AND WEB POSTING

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO A RULE

THE GAS DISTRIBUTION ACCESS RULE

BOARD FILE NO: EB-2008-0313

To: All Natural Gas Distributors
All Other Interested Parties

The Ontario Energy Board (the "Board") is giving notice under section 45 of the Ontario

Energy Board Act, 1998 (the "Act") of proposed amendments to the Gas Distribution

Access Rule (the "GDAR").
(

..,

i

i. Background

The Public Utifties Act (Ontario) states that a gas distributor may require that a

consumer give "reasonable security" as a condition cif supplying or of continuing to

supply natural gas.

Currently, gas distributors retain discretion in terms of when they require a security

deposit. Where a gas distributor requires a security deposit, at the present time it

. similarly also retains discretion to determine the amount and form öf the security deposit

as well as the timing and frequency of review and return öf the security deposit. The

lack of consistency in terms of security deposit policies as between gas distributors, and

the inconsistent application of those policies to individual consumers by individual gas
distributors, has been the subject of concern raised with the Board by consumers and

consumer groups.

(
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Security deposit requirements are an important condition of access to gas distribution

services. The Board believes that it is appropriate at this time to standardize those

requirements among gas distributors to ensure that consumers are treated fairly and are

subject to consistent requirements across the Province, regardless of whose. franchise

area they may be located in,

Electricity distributors have, for some time, been subject to standardized security

deposit policies, The Board is not aware of any compelling reason that would support

the continuation of individualized security deposit policies among gas distributors. The

Board notes in this regard that gas distributors are subject to similar rate treatment in
relation to the risk of customer default and exposure to bad debt. Security deposits are

included in rate base for the purposes of calculating a gas distributor's working capital

and therefore of calculating the gas distributor's overall revenue requirement. With the

move to incentive regulation, greater consistency 
in terms of security deposit policies

will also serve to minimize over-collection by a gas distributor in a manner that might

artificially enlarge its pool of low cost working capitaL.

II. Proposed Amendments to the GDAR

~~j A. Introduction

The Board is proposing to amend the GDAR to provide a standardized regulatory

framework for the collection and administration of security deposits by gas distributors.

The Board is also taking this opportunity to include in the GDAR a provision similar to

that which appears in the Board's electricity codes and which refers to the ability of the
Board to make determinations with or without a hearing. This provision, proposed to be

added as a new section 1.6.1 of the GDAR, reflects section 44(2) of the Act.

Security deposits have been identified as an issue in the Board's consultation process. .
regarding issues associated with low income energy consumers (EB-2008-0150). The
Board intends to defer consideration of the particular needs of low income energy
consumers in relation to security deposits until such time as the low income consumer

consultation process has been completed. If warranted, further amendments to the
GDAR regarding security deposits may be proposed at that time.

A summary of the proposed amendments to the GDAR is set out below. The text of the

proposed amendments is set out in Attachment A to this 
Notice.

&~
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B. Summary of Proposed Amendments

The Board is proposing to include in GDAR requirements relating to the following: the

circumstances under which a consumer must be exempted from any requirement to
provide a security deposit; how security deposits are to be calculated; when security

deposits must be reviewed and, where applicable, returned to a customer; the forms of

security deposit that must be accepted; and how interest owed on security deposits is to

be determined. Many of these requirements are proposed to differ by customer class.

The proposed amendments to the GDAR.are based on and largely reflect the provisions
that currently apply to electricity distributors as set out in the Distribution System Code

("DSC"). Security deposits serve the same underlying purpose in both the gas and
electricity sectors', and many conSumers are customers of both gas and electricity

distributors. It is therefore desirable to maximize symmetry between the two sectors to

the extent appropriate. The DSC provisions were developed through extensive

consultation and experience in dealing with security deposit issues in the electricity

sector,1 and have worked well for electricity distributors and electricity consumers alike.

There is no reason, in principle, why the DSC provisions would be inappropriate for the

natural gas sector. As a result, the Board considers that it is appropriate to adopt the

DSC security deposit provisions in the GOAR, with certain modifications.

I /
, (I.

1. Documentation and Communication of Security Deposit Policy (Sections 2,4.2 to
2.4.6)

The Board is proposing that each gas distributor be required to document its policies in
a "Security Deposit Policy", fie a copy of its Security Deposit Policy with the Board and

make its Security Deposit Policy available to the public and to any customer or

prospective customer that requests a copy. Where a gas distributor proposes changes

to its Security Deposit Policy. the distributor must give customers advance notice of

those proposed changes and provide a reasonable opportunity for comment.

1 Materials relating to the development 01 the current security deposit provisions 01 the DSC are available

on the Board's websile al www.oeb.gov.on.ca. See the record of consultation processes RP-2002-0416,
RP-2004-0166 and EB-2006-0030,
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2. Collection and Payment of Security Deposits (Sections 2,4.8 to 2.4.10, 2.4.13

and 2.4.16)

While the Board believes that greater consistency amongst gas distributors is desirable,

the Board also believes that some flexibility should be maintained, Therefore, the Board

is not proposing that gas distributors be required to collect security deposits. However,

the Board is proposing that a gas distributor waive the requirement for a security deposit

in respect of a customer that has or can demonstrate a good payment history, that

provides a satisfactory credit check or that has an MA- or better credit rating.
Customers with a good payment history generally do not represent a material non-

payment risk for the gas distributor, and in the Board's view it is unreasonable to require

that they provide a security deposit as a condition of obtaining service from a gas

distributor.

The Board is also proposing that customers be permitted to provide any required

security deposit in equal installments over four months.

3. Maximum Amount of Security Deposits (Sections 2.4.11 to 2.4.131 2.4.27 and

2.4.28)

(~
The Board believes that flexibility should also be maintained in relation to the calculation

of security deposits, and is therefore proposing that the amount of a security deposit be

left to the discretion of each gas distributor, subject to a maximum that cannot be

exceeded. The maximum amount is to be determined based on the customer's average

monthly gas consumption. The Board is also proposing that larger non-residential

customers with a credit rating of at least BBB- be entitled to a reduction in the amount of

the security deposit that could otherwise be required based solely on the customer's

consumption.

The Board is also proposing that a customer that is a residential condominium be

treated as a residential customer for purposes of determining the form and maximum

amount of the security deposit that can be required.

4. Form of Security Deposits and Interest (Sections 2.4.15 and 2,4.17)

For all customers, the Board is 
proposing that gas distributors be required to accept

payment of security deposits in the form of cash or a cheque. In the case of non-

~.. ~
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residential customers, distributors would also be required to accept a letter of credit.

Gas distributors would retain the discretion to accept other forms of security deposit if

they wish,

The Board is also proposing that interest accrue monthly at a prescribed rate on

security deposits that are in the form of cash or a cheque, and that interest accrued be

paid out at least once every 12 months or earlier in some circumstances.

5. Review and Return of Security Deposits (Sections 2.4. 18 to 2.4.26)

The Board is proposing that each gas distributor be required to review each security

deposit at least once annually, and to return or adjust the amount of a customer's
security deposit where warranted based on more current circumstances.. For example,

a security deposit would need to be returned when a customer has achieved the

required number of years of good payment history, or would need to be adjusted where

a customer's credit rating has improved. The Board is also proposing that a gas

distributor be required to conduct a security deposit review at the request of a customer,

which request cannot be made more than once annually,

A security deposit would be required to be returned with interest (where applicable)

within six weeks of closure of a customer's account, subject to the gas distributor's right

to use the security deposit to offset amounts owing by the customer to the distributor.

Where a security deposit was paid by a third party on a customer's behalf, the Board is

proposing that, where certain conditions are met, the security deposit be returned to the

third party, with interest where applicable.

IIi. Anticipated Costs and Benefits

The proposed amendments to the GDAR address an important element of access to

gas distribution services and do so in a manner that will. in the Board's view, promote

the fair, transparent and consistent treatment of gas customers across the Province.

Harmonization of security deposit policies amongst gas distributors and consistency of

those policies with those applicaqle in the electricity sector will provide 

customers with'

greater predictability and enable them to better manage their energy costs. The Board

therefore believes that the proposed amendments will better protect the interests of
consumers with respect to prices and the reliability and quality of gas service. The

v
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Board also believes that the proposed amendments to .the GDAR strike an appropriate

balance between the interests of consumers and the legitimate needs of distributors in

terms of risk mitigation. The proposed amendments will therefore also faciliate the

maintenance of a financially viable gas distribution sector,

The Board anticipates that gas distributors will incur costs to bring their security policies

into line with the proposed amendments. The Board understands that gas distributors

currently apply security deposit policies that are in at least some respects similar to

those that the Board is now proposing to adopt. As a result, the cost of coming into
compliance with the proposed amendments may not in all cases be material or

substantiaL. The Board also anticipates that gas distributors will incur ongoing

incremental costs in relation to the administration of security deposits, notably in relation

to the annual review of security deposits.

IV. Coming Into Force

~"

The Board anticipates that gas distributors may require some time in order to bring their
security deposit policies into line with the proposed new GOAR provisions. The Board is

therefore proposing that the proposed amendments to the GDAR set out in Attachment
A come into force on the first day of the month that is 6 full months from the date on

which the amendments are published on the Board's website after having been made

by the Board. This is consistent with the time given to electricity distributors to

accommodate the new security deposit provisions of the DSC when they were made,

and is reflected in the proposed addition of a new section 1.4.6 of the GDAR.

V. Cost Awards

Cost awards will be available under section 30 of the Act to eligible persons in relation

to the provision of comments on the proposed amendmelìts to the GDAR set out in

Attachment A, to a maximum of 20 hours. Costs awarded will be recovered from all

rate-regulated gás distributors, based on their respective distribution revenues.

Attachment B contains important information regarding cost awards for this notice and

comment process, including in relation to eligibility requests and objections. In order to

facilitate a timely decision on cost eligibility, the 
deadlines for filing cost eligibility

requests and objections will be strictly enforced.

~,
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Vi. Invitatíon to Comment

All interested parties are invited to provide written comments on the Board's proposed

amendments to the GDAR set out in Attachment A by November 19, 200B.

Three (3) paper copies of each filing must be provided, and should be sent to:

Kirsten Walli
Board Secretary
Ontario Energy Board
P.O. Box 2319
2300 Yonge street, Suite 2700
Toronto Ontario M4P 1 E4

The Board requests that interested parties make every effort to provide electronic
copies of their filings in searchable/unrestricted Adobe Acrobat (PDF) format, and to

submit their filngs through fhe Board's web portal at www.err.l.oeb.gov.on.ca. A user

ID is required to submit documents through the Board's web portal. If you do not have a

user ID, please visit the "e-fiings services" webpage on the Board's website at

WWW.oeb.gov.on.ca. and fill out a user ID password request. Additionally, interested

parties are requested to follow the document naming conventions and document

submission standards outlined in the document entitled "RESS Document Preparation -
A Quick Guide" also found on the lie-filing services" webpage. If the Board's web portal

is not available, electronic copies of filings may be fied bye-mail at

boardsecßYoeb.gov.on.ca.

(

Those that do not have internet access should provide a CD or diskette containing their
fiing in PDF formaL.

Filings to the Board must be received by the Board Secretary by 4:45 p.m. on the

required date. They must quote file number EB-200B-0313 and include your name,
address, telephone number and ,where 

available, your e-mail address and fax number.

This Notice, including the proposed amendments to the GDAR, all other Board

documents referred to in this Notice (including the GDAR) and all written comments

received in response to this Notice will be available for inspection on the Board's
website at www.oeb.gov.on.ca and at the offce of the Board during normal business

hours.

t
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If you have any questions regarding the proposed GDAR amendments, please contact

Barbara Robertson, Project Advisor, Compliance Office, at 416-440-7718, or toll-free at

1-888-632~6273,

DATED at Toronto, October 8, 2008.

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Original signed by

Kirsten Walli

Board Secretary

Attachments: Attachment A Proposed Amendments to the Gas Distribution
Access Rule

Cost AwardsAttachment B

~~
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Proposed Amendments to the Gas Distribution Access Rule

Note: The text of the proposed amendments is set out in italics below, for ease of
identification only.

1. Section 1.4 of the Gas Distribution Access Rule is amended by adding the

following new section 1.4.6 immediately after section 1.4.5:

1.4.6 Section 2.4 of this Rule comes into force on ('j, 2009, (insert date that is
the first day of the month that'is six full months from the date on which the
final amendments to the GDAR adding section 2.4 are posted on the
Board's website)

2. Section 1 of the Gas Distribution Access Rule is amended by adding th.e

following new section 1.6 immediately after section 1.5.1:

1.6 Determinations under this Rule

1.6.1 Any matter under this Rule requiring a determination by the Board may be
determined without a hearing or through an oral, writen or electronic
hearing, at the Board's discretion. .

i (

3. Section 2 of the Gas Distribution Access Rule is amended by adding the
following new section 2.4 immediately after section 2.3.2:

2.4 Security Deposits

2.4.1 In this section 2.4:

(a) "general service consumer" means a consumer that is not a
residentitil consumer and that annually consumes no more than
100,000 m3 of gas; and

(b) "Security Deposit Policy" means the document developed by a gas
distributor in accordance with section 2.4.2 that describes the gas
distributor's policies in relation to the col/ection and administration of
security deposits.

2.4.2 A gas distributor shall develop and maintain a Security Deposit Policy that
describes the gas distributor's policies in relation to the collection and
administration of security deposits. Subject to tl7is Rule and to al/ other
applicable regulatory requirements of the Board, the gas distributor shall
comply with its Security Deposit Policy

(
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2.4,3 A gas distributor's Security Deposit Policy shall be consistent with this
.Rule and with all other applicable regulatory requirements of the Board,
including any rate order issued under section 36 of the Act and shall at a
minimum include the following:

(a) a list of all forms of security that may be accepted;

(b) a detailed description of how the amountof security is calculated;

(c) limits on the amount of security required;

(d) the planned frequency, process and timing for updating security;

(e) criteria that must be met by a consumer in order for the requirement
for a security deposit to be waived or for a security deposit to be
returned; and

(f) the consequences for the consumer if a security deposit is not paid.

2.4.4 A gas distributor shall file a copy of its Security Deposit Policy with the
Board, make a current copy of its Security Deposit Policy publicly available
and provide a current copy of its Security Deposit to any person upon
request.

(. 2.4.5 A gas distributor that proposes to change its Security Deposit Policy shall
give advance notice of the proposed change. At a minimum, advance
notice of the proposed change shall be given by means of a note on or
included with the bil issued to each consumer. The note shall indic.ate the
proposed timeline for implementation of the proposed change, where and
how the consumer may obtain a copy of the proposed change and how
and by when the consumer may provide written comments on the
proposed change. Tha proposed timeline for implementation of the
proposed change shall be suffciently long to allow consumers a
reasonable opportunity to provide written comments on the proposed
change.

2.4.6 Where a gas distributor changes its Security Deposit Policy, the gas
distributor shall file the revised version of the Security Deposit Policy with
the Board, together with a covering letter that clearly identifies all èhanges
relative to the last version filed with the Boardand that summarizes any
writen comments received on those changes.

2.4 7 In managing consumer non-payment risk, a gas distributor shall not
discriminate among.consumers with similar risk profiles or risk related
factors except where expressly-permitted under this Rule.

~.
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2.4.8 A gas distributor may require a security deposit from a consumer who is
not biled by a gas vendor under gas vendor-consolidated billng unless
the consumer has a good payment history of 1 year in the case of a
residential consumer, 5 years in. 

the case of a general service consumer
and 7 years in the case of any other consumer. The time period that
makes up the good payment history must be the most recent period'of
time and some of the time period must have occurred in the previous 24
months. A gas distributor shall provide a consumer with the specific
reasons for requiring a security deposit from the consumer.

2.4.9 For the purposes of section 2.4.8, a consumer is deemed to have a good
payment history unless, during the relevant period of time referred to in
section 2.4.8 any of the following has occurred other than by reason of an
error by the gas distributor:

(a) the consumer has received more than one disconnection notice
from the gas distributor indicating that the gas distributor intends to
disconnect the consumer for non-payment;

(b) more than one cheque given to the gas distributor by the consumer
has been returned by reason of insufficient funds;

(c) more than one pre-authorized payment from the consumer to the
gas distributor has failed to be made by reason of insuffcient funds;
or

(

(d) at least one visit to the consumer's premises has been made by or
on behalf of the gas distributor for the purpose of demanding
payment of an overdue amount or to shut off or limit the supply of
gas to the consumer's premises for non-payment.

2.4.10 Despite section 2.4.8, a gas distributor shall not require a security deposit
from a consumer where:

(a) the consumer provides a Ie 
tier from another gas distributor or an

electricity distributor in Canada confirming a good payment history
with that distributor for the most recent relevant time period set out
in section 2.4.8 where some of 

the time period that makes up the

good payment history has occurred in the previous 24 months; or

(b) the consumer is a residential consumer or a general service
consumer and provides a satisfactory credit cheeJ( conducted at the
consumer's own expense.

2.4.11 Subject to sections 2.4.12 and 2.4.13, the maximum amount of a security
deposit that a gas distributor may require a consumer to pay shall be

(
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calculaled as follows: biling cycle factor x consumer's estimated 

bil. Forthis purpose: .
(a) the biling cycle factor shall be 2.5 if the consumer is billed monthly

and shall be 1,75 if the consumer is biled bi-monthly; and

(b) a consumer's estimated biJl shaJl be' determined based on:

. i. the gas distributor's rates and charges in effect at the

relevant time; and

ii. the consumer's average monthly consumption of gas during

the most recent 12 consecutive months within the past two
years. Where the relevant gas consurnption information is
not available for a consumer for 12 consecutive months
within the past two years or where the distributor does not
have systems capable of making this calculation, the
consumer's average monthly consumption shaJl be based on
a reasonable estimate made by the gas distributor.

(

-

2.4,12 Where in a relevant 12-month period a çonsumerhas received more than
one disconnection notice from a gas distributor indicating that the gas
distributor intends to disconnect the consumer for non-payment, the
consumer's estimated bil may be determined based on the consumer's
highest actual or estimated monthly consumption in the most ;-ecent 12
consecutive months within the past two years.

2.4.13 Where a consumer other than a residential consumer or a general service
consumer has a credit rating from a recognized credit rating agency, the
maximum amount of a security deposit that a gas distributor may require
the consumer to pay shall be reduced in accordance with 1he following
table:

Credit Rating Allowable

(Using Standard and Poor's Rating Terminology)
Reduction
In Security
Deposit

AAA- and above or equivalent
100%

AA-, AA, AA+ or equivalent
95%

A.i From A, A+ to below AA or equivalent
85% .

6BB-, From BBB, BBB+ to below A or
75%

equivalent
Below BBB- or equivalent

0%

~.
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2.4.14 Subjecl to section 2.4,7, a gas distributor may reduce the amounl of a
security deposit that if requires a consumer to pay for any reason,
including where the consumer pays under an interim payment
arrangement or where the consumer makes pre-authorized payments.

2.4,15 A gas distributor shall accept payment of a security deposit by any
consumer in the form of cash or cheque, and shall also accept from a non-
residential consumer security in the form of an automatically renewing,
irrevocable letter of credit from a bank as defined in the Bank Act
(Canada). In either case, the form shall be at the discretion of the
consumer. A gas distributor may also accept qther forms of security.

2.4,16 A gas distributor shall permit a consumer to provide a security deposit in
equal instalments paid over at least four months, or over such shorter
period as the consumer may choose.

2.4.17 Interest shall accrue monthly on security deposits paid by way of cash or

cheque, commencing on the date of receipt of the total amount of the
security deposit required by the gas distributor. The interest rate shall be
the Prime Business Rate published on the Bank of Canada website less 2
percent, updated quarterly. Any accrued interest shall be paid out to the
consumer at least once every twelve months and shall be paid out earlier
upon the return or application of the security deposi~, in whole or in part,)
or the closure of the consumer's account. Payment of accruèd interest
may be effected by crediting the consumer's account or by other means.

. 2.4.18 A gas distributor shall, at least once in each calendar year, review 
each

consumer's security deposit to determine whether:

(a) the security deposit is to be returned to the consumer by reason of
the fact that the consumer has become entitled to the benefit 

of the

exemption set out in section 2.4.8 or 2.4.10; or

(b) the amount of the security deposit is to be adjusted based on a re-
calculation of the maximum amount of the security deposit in
accordance with section 2.4.11,

This section applies to ai/security deposits, whether paid by 
a consumer

before or after the date on which this section came into force, provided
that a gas distributor shall not be required to review a security deposit paid
by a consumer prior to October 1, 2008 during the calendar year 2009.

2.4.19 Subject to section 2.4.20, upon being requested to do so by 
a consumer a

gas distributor shall review the consumer's security deposit to determinewhether: .
(
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(a) the security deposit is to be returned to the consumer by reason of

the fact that the consumer has become entitled to the benefit of the
exemption set out in section 2.4.8 or 2,410; or

(b) the amount of the security deposit is to be adjusted based on a re-
calculation of the maximum amount of the security deposit in
accordance with section '2.4.11.

This section applies to all security deposits, whether paid by a consumer
before or after the date on which this section came into force.

2.4.20 A gas distributor shall not be required to review a security deposit at the
request of a consumer under section 2.4.19 where less than 12' months
has elapsed since:

(a) the date on which the total amount Of the security deposit was paid;
or

(b) the date on which the consumer last made a request for review
under that section.

(
2.4.21 Subjectto section 2.4.22, where a review conducted under section 2.4. 18

or 2.4.19 reveals that some or all of a security deposit mUst be returned to
a consumer, a gas distributor shall promptly return the releyant amount to
the consumer, with interest where applicable, by crediting the consumer's
account or otherwise. .

2.4.22 Where a review conducted under section 2.4.18 or 2.4.19 reveals that a
consumer other than a residential consumer or a general service
consumer has become entited to the benefit of the. exemption set out in
section 2.4.8 or 2.4, 10, a gas distributor. may nonetheless retain up to 50%
of the security deposit.

2.4.23 Where a review conducted under section 2.4,18 or 2.4.19 reveals that
additional security rnay be sought from a consumer based on the re-
calculalion of the maximum amount of the security deposit, a gas
distribútor may require that the additional security be paid at the same
time as the consumer's next regular bil comes due.

2.4.24 A gas distributor shall return any security deposit received from a
consumer, with inlerest where applicable, within six weeks of closure of
the consumer's account, subject to the right of the gas distributor to use a/l
or a part of the security deposit and interest to set off other amounts owing
by the consumer to the gas distributor.

~.
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2.4,25 A gas distributor shall apply a security deposit, with interest where
applicable, to the final bil prior to a change in service where a consumer
changes supply from system gas to a gas vendor that uses gas vendor-
consolidated billng or where a consumer changes biling options from gas
distributor-consolidated billng to split billing or gas vendor-consolidated
biling. However, where a consumer changes billing options from gas
distributor-consolidated biling to split biling, the gas distributor may retain
that portion of the security deposit amount that reflects the gas
distribùtor's reasonable assessment of the non-payment risk associated
with the new billing option. In all cases, the gas distributor shall promptly
return any remaining portion of the security deposit and interest where
applicable to the consumer. A gas' 

distributor shall not pay any portion of

a consLlmer's security deposit to a gas vendor.

2.4..26 Despite sections 2.4.18, 2.4.19, 2.4.21, 2.4.24 and 2.4.25, where all or
parl of a security deposit has been paid by a third party on behalf of a
consumer, a gas distributor shall return the amount of the security deposit
paid by the third party, including interest where applicable, to the third
parly. This obligation shall apply where and 

to the extent that:.

(a) the third parly paid all or parl (as applicable) of the security deposit
directly to the gas distributor;

(b) the third party has requested, at the time the security deposit was
paid or within a reasonable time thereafter, that the gas distributor
return all or pait (as applicable) of the security deposit to it rather
than to the consumer; and

(

(c) there is not then any amount overdue for payment by the consumer
that the gas distributor is permitted by this Rule to off set using the
security deposit.

2.4.27 A consumer that is a corporation within the meaning of the Condominium
Act, 1998 who has an account iNith a gas distributor that:

(a) relate.s to a property defined in the Condominium Act, 1998 and
comprised predominantly of units that are used for residential
purposes; and

(b) relates to more than one unit in the property,

shall'be deemed to be a residential consumer for the purposes of sections
2.4.8 and 2.4.15 provided that the consumer has filed with the gas
distributor a declaration in a form approved by the Board attesting to the
consumer's status as a corporation within the meaning of the
Condominium Act, 1998.

(,



o - ¡fa

(
2.4.28 Sections 2.4.18 and 2.4.19 shall be applied on the basis that a consumer

referred to in section 2.4.27 is a residential consumer even if the
consumer paid the security deposit prior to the date on which section
2.4.27 came into force.

l

l
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Attachment B

Cost Awards

Cost Award Eligibility

The Board will determine eligibility for costs in accordance with its Practice Direction on

Cost Awards. Any person intending to request an award of costs must file with the

Board a written submission to that effect by October 22, 2008, identifying the nature of
the person's interest in this process and the grounds on which the person believes that

it is eligible for an award of costs (addressing the Board's cost eligibility criteria as set

out in section 3 of the Board's Practice Direction on Cost Awards). An explanation of
any other funding to which the person has access must also be provided, as should the

name and credentials of any lawyer, analyst or consultant that the person intends to

retain, if known. All requests for cost eligibilty will be posted on the Board's website.

Rate-regulated gas distributors will be provided with an opportunity. to object to any of

the requests for cost award eligibility. If a rate-regulated gas distributor has any
objections to any of the requests for cost eligibility, such objections must be filed with

the Board by November 5, 2008. Any objections wil be posted on the Board's website.
The Board wil then make a final determination on the cost eligibility of the requesting

pa rticipants.

(
- (

Eligible Activities

Cost awards will be available in relation to the provision of written comments on the

proposed amendments to the GDAR set out in Attachment Ai to a m.aximum of 20 .

hours.

Cost Awards

When determining the amount of the cost awards, the Board will apply the principles set

out in section 5 of its Practice Direçtion on Cost Awards. The maximum hourly rates set

out in the Board's Cost Awards Tariffwill also be applied. The Board expects that

groups representing the same interests or class of persons will make 
every effort to

communicate and co-ordinate their participation in this process.

(
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The Board will use the process set out in section 12 of its Practice Direction on Cost

Awards to implement the payment of the cost awards. Therefore, the Board will act as

a clearing house for all payments of.cost awards in this process, For more information

on this process, please see the Board's Practice Direction on Cost Awards and the

October 27,2005 letter regarding the rationale for the Board acting as a clearing house

for the cost award payments, These documents can be found on the Boards website at

www.oeb.gov.on.caonthe..Rules.Codes.Guidelines and Forms" webpage which can

be found in the "Industry Relations" drop-down menu.

(
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Proud Heritage. Bright Future.

TOWN OF AYLMER

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

October 14 2008

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer hereby endorses the Report dated
October 8, 2008 prepared by the Administrator, regarding Natural Resource
Gas Ltd. (NRG);

MOVED BY:

SECONDED BY:

AND FURTHER THAT Council hereby approves the actions outlined below:

1. Ensure that the Ontario Energy Board is fully aware of the concerns

regarding NRG by:

l . providing a copy of this report and the petitions received from
the local residents regarding the issues with NRG and request
that the OEB use its regulatory and oversight tools to fully
inquire into the issues identified;

· endorsing the OEB proposed amendment to the Gas Distribution
Access Rule provide direction to natural gas distributors .

regarding customer security deposits; and

· intervening at OEB hearings which involve NRG to ensure the
OEB is aware of issues of concern to the Town and its residents
generally identified as follows:

· Qualiy of infrastructure;
· Rates not competitive;
· Reluctance to serve new commerciai/industrial

customers;
· Significant customer service issues;
· Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are

troubling; and
· Deterrent to local economic development..

2. Request that the OEB consider the following regulatory and/or policy
changes in order to improve customer service requirements of natural
gas distributors:

~~. .../2



- 2-

· Require that customer service measures are made available to
the public

· Require that the annual audited financial statements of the
distribution companies are made available to the public

· Provide a clear complaint and enforcement process for natural
gas consumers to have complaints heard and resolved

· Require that consumer security deposits be kept in a trust fund
and not used as working capital for distribution companies; .

3. Request that the OEB establish a process for a review of the legislation
and regulations which require that municipalities and natural gas
distributors enter into franchise agreements. The realities of the
current process for these agreements do not operate such that they
improve the distribution of natural gas to its customers. The
municipality has no real abilty to negotiate even the minimum of
service delivery requirements, no realistic abilty to enforce the
provisions of the franchise agreement when a distribution company
does not meet them and no real abilty to change who provides the
service. The legislation guiding franchises is outdated and its
provisions such as the requirement for a public vote typically are
replaced with the OEB approval process;

~..
4. Circulate this Report to the other municipalities with franchise

agreements with NRG for their consideration and endorsement;

5. . Forward the Report and recommendation to the Minister of Energy and

Infrastructure and our local M.P.P., the Honourable Steve Peters."

g!~
Head of Council~~.Clerk ~
RESOLUTION # c31-0""0 8

~c
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. I n I'A~ The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street, West, Aylmei~ Ontario NSH IJ7

Office: 519-773-3164 Fax: S19-765-1446
ww.aylmer.caProud Heritage. Bright Future.

October 15, 2008

Ontario Energy Board
P.O. Box 2319
2300 Yonge Street
Toronto ON M4P 1 E4

Attn: Howard i. Wetston, Q.C.
Chair & Chief Executive Officer

RE: Natural Resource Gas Ltd. - Franchise Agreements/Business Practices

At its meeting held on October 14, 2008, the Town of Aylmer Council received a
Report from the Town's Administrator about Natural Resource Gas Ltd., and

. resolved:

(~ Resolution No. 257-08

Moved by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin and seconded by Councillor M, French:

"That the letter from the C.A.O.lClerk of the Township of Malahide regarding
NRG be received and be referred to Staff to review and to submit a report to a
future Council meeting."

l/That the Council of the Town of Aylmer hereby endorses the Report dated

October 8, 2008 prepared by the Administrator, regarding Natural Re~ource
Gas Ltd. (NRG);

AND FURTHER THAT Council hereby approves the actions outlined below:

1. Ensure that the Ontario Energy Board is fully aware of the concerns

regarding NRG by:

· providing a copy of this report.and the petitions received from the
local residents regarding the issues with NRG and request that
the OEB use its regulatory and oversight tools to fully inquire into
the issues identified;

. endorsing the OEB proposed amendment to the Gas Distribution
Access Rule provide direction to natural gas distributors
regarding customer security deposits; and

~è- .../2
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. intervening at DEB hearings which involve NRG to ensure the
DEB is aware of issues of concern to the Town and its residents
generally identified as follows:

. . Quality of infrastructure;

· Rates not competitive;
· Reluctance to serve new commercial/industrial customers;

· Significant customer service issues;
· Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are

troubling; and
· Deterrent to local economic development.

2. Request that the OEB consider the following regulatory and/or policy

changes in order to improve customer service requirements of natural
gas distributors:

· Require that customer service measures are made available to

the public

· Require that the annual audited financial statements of the
distribution companies are made available to the public

l . Provide a clear complaint and enforcement process for natural
gas consumers to have complaints heard and resolved

· Require that consumer security deposits be kept in a trust fund
and not used as working capital for distribution companies;

3. Request that the OEB establish a process for a review of the legislation

and regulations which require that municipalities and natural gas
distributors enter into franchise agreements. The realities of the current
process for these agreements do not operate such thatthey improve the
distribution of natural gas to its customers. The municipality has no real
abilty to negotiate even the minimum of service delivery requirements,
no realistic ability to enforce the provisions of the franchise agreement
when a distribution company does not meet them and no real abilty to
change who providesthe service. The legislation guiding franchises is
outdated and its provisions such as the requirement for a public vote
typically are replaced with the OEB approval process;

4. Circulate this Report to the other municipalities with franchise

agreements with NRG for their consideration and endorsement;

5. Forward the Report and recommendation to the Minister of Energy áÍ1d

Infrastructure and our local M.P.P., the Honourable Steve Peters."

The motion is Carried

~~.
.../3
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Council has previously authorized an intervention by the Town in a pending
Application brought by Union Gas in Board File EB-2008-0273, which may relate to
some of the issues raised, and which is set for hearing by a Panel of the Board on
October 20 and 21, 2008. Subject to any disposition in that case, we will look forward
to your response to the balance of the issues.

Yours truly,

~6Nancie J. Ir . 9
Clerk, Town of Aylmer

Enc/.

cc M. H. Adams, Administrator

Márk Bristol!, President, NRG Ltd., 39 Beech St East, Aylmer ON N5H 1A1

l-
Municipality of Central Elgin

Municipality of Bayham
Township of South West Oxford
Municipality of Thames Centre
Township of Malahide

Honourable George Smitherman, Minister of Energy & Infrastructure
Honourable Steve Peters; M.P.P.

~'-
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~C~G RECEIVED

OCT 1,:4 2U08~~ -- ..
Corporation of the Municipality of Thames Centre

4305 Hamilton Road,. Dorchester, Ontario NOL 1 G3 - Phone 519-268-7334 - Fax -519-268-3928 - www.thamescentre.on.ca - Inqulrles(1lhamescentre.on.ca

October 8, 2008

Ontario Energy Board
P.O. Box 2319
2300 Yonge Street, 27'h Floor
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4

. Attention: Board Secretary

Dear Sir/Madam:

RE: UNION GAS V. NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED:
. LEAVE to DISCONTINUE SERVICE APPLICATION FILED AUGUST. 1, 2008

The Municipality of Thames Centre received a request from the Town of Aylmer to support their
request for intervenor status in the upcoming proceedings before the Ontario Energy Board with
respect to the discontinuation of natural gas to Natural Resource Gas Limited.

At its last regular meeting held on October 6, 2008, the Council discussed the above-noted
matter.

"i_

..

I wish to advise that the Council enacted the following resolution:

RESOL VED THA T the Council of The Corporation of the Municipaliy of Thames Centre
hereby supports the request by the Town of Aylmer for intervenor status in any
upcoming procèedings before the Ontario Energy Board (DEB) with respect to the
discontinuation of natural gas to Natural Resources Gas Limited (NRG); and further, that
a letter of support of the Town of Aylmer's request be forwarded to the OEB for their..
consideration. Carried. . .

The Municipaliy also has a vested interest in this matter, and as such would appreciate the
Board's consideration concerning the discontinuation of natural gas to NRG.

Thanking you in advance for your consideration in this matter.

Sincer.eiy, ..0. ..~~
Margaret Lewis

Clerk

Iml
cc. Heather Adams, Administrator, Town of Aylmer
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A proud tradition, a bright future.

67 John Sireel South,

Aylmer, Ontario N5H 2C3
Telephone: 519-773.5344
Fax: 5 i 9.773.5334
ww.lownship.malahide.an.co

M theTOWNSHIPo!ALAHIDII.

October 7, 2008.

Town of Aylmer,
46 Talbot Street, West,
Aylmer, Ontario.
NSH 1J7

Attention: Heather Adams.

Dear Ms. Adams:

RE: Ontario Energy Board Hearing.

Malahide Township Council met on October 2, 2008, and passed the following
Resolution:

¿
THAT Malahide Township Council agree in pdnciple with the Town of Aylmer's
intervener status and joint effort with several municipalities with the issue of NRG
and Union Gas at the Ontario Energy Board Hearing. ~,--.:;;;

n

t

i

lWe trst the above is satisfactory for your records at this time, but ask you to contact this
offce if you have any concerns or additional requests.

Yours very truly,
TOWNSHI OF MALAHIDE(J~
R. MILLARD, C.A.O.lCLERK

~

I

t I'
r
~

H:\diana's fies\Randy 200&\Aylmer - nrg hearing. ocl 7.dao

(~,

I.; .Ü.
~..

._.'.._.~_.............M...'...."....~..........."..,.....,_.."._,._......MN'."'....._.,...~..__........_........~_,......._.........'~.._M_.~.....~...,._..._....,.__........M.,,_........,",..._'.............._....,.-...,................_-.-_..,....._......_"..~....,..,'~~~...-......_~"_._~.........__......_...._..M...'...."......._..

RANDALL R. MILLARD
C.AO'/Clerk

SUSAN E. WilSON
Treasurer

Ireosurerlêlownshi p. molahide .on .co
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TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH - WEST OXFORD

R. R. # 1, Mount Elgin, On. NOJ INO
. 312915 Dereham Line

Phone: (519) 877-2702; (519) 485-0477; Fax: (519) 485-2932

February 9, 2009

Ontario Energy Board
PO Box 2319, 2ih Floor
2300 Yonge Street
Toronto ON .
M4P 1E4

Attn: Kirsten Wall, Board Secretary

RE: EB-2008-0413:. Natural Resource Gas Limited.(NRG) Application
i=or an Order Pursuant to Section 10 of the Municipal Franchise Act
(Ontario)

l . Dear Madam:
South-West Oxford Township Council passed the following resolution on
February 5, 2009:

"RESOLVED that the Ontario Energy Board be informed that, although the
Township of South-West Oxford would be impacted by the Board's
decision in the matter of the Natur~1 Resource Gas limited (NRG)
Application for Renewal of Franchise Agreement with the Town cif Aylmer,
the Township of South-West Oxford supports the position of the Town of
Aylmer and does not seek intervener Status for itself,"

Yours trUly~ ."úf4~
Allen Forrester

Clerk-Treasurer Administrator

Township of South-West Oxford

c.c. Corporation of the Town of Aylmer, Ms. Heather Adams, Administrator

Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street West
Aylmer ON N5H 1J7

~~
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A proud tradition, a brightfuture.

l
\.

67 John Street South,

Aylmer, Onloria N5H 2C3
Telephone: 519.773.5344
Fox: 5 i 9.7735334
ww.township.malahide.on.ca

M theTOWNSHIPojALAN.IDII

Februar 5, 2009,

Town of Aylmer,
46 Talbot Street, West,
Aylmer, Ontario.
N5H 117

Attention: Heather Adams

Dear Ms. Adàms:

. RE: NRG - OEB Submission.

,n,'

(-
Malahide Township. Council passed the following Resolution at a recent Councilmeeting: .
THAT Malahide Township Council supports the Town of Aylmer's status as státed
in the letter of Stockwoods dated January 9, 2009.

Please contact our office if you have any questions with respect to this matter.

Yours very trly,

TOWNSHIP OF MALAHIDE
...(J~

R. MILLARD, C.A.O.lCLERK .

Copy - Council rr
§

\\màlaliäeis.local\usersfies$\diaia\diana's fies\Randy i009\Aylmer. NRG - DEB feb 5.doc

(~/
RANDALL R. MILLARD
C.AO'/Clerk

SUSAN E. WILSON
Treasurer

Ireosurerlilownship.malohide.an.ca

¡
l~".. ._,._____...._._...._______..._.._R_--__...__~......__.i..-.~..._.. _... _..._.....~......~_...__.._._....._....._.......__...~._..._........................ .:........__....._..._.._........._.._...._....._.._._..____.... ._.........,..~.__...~. ....._.....,.......,
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II STOCKWOODS II
Barristers

M. Philp Tunley

Direct Line: 416-593-3495

Direct Fax: 416-593-9345
philt(!stockwoods. ca

January 9, 2009

Delivered

Ms. Kirsten Wall
Board Secretary
Ontario Energy Board
P.O. Box 2319 - 2300 Yonge Street
27th Floor, Suite 2700
Toronto, Ontario M4P 1E4

Dear Ms. Wall:

Re: EB-2008-0413: Natural Resource Gas Limited ("NRG") Application for an Order
Pursuant to Section 10 of the Municipal Franchises Act (Ontario)

We are legal counsel to the Corporation of the Town of Aylmer. We have received the Notice of
Application of NRG dated December 19, 2008 and related materials in the above-noted matter,
as well as the Notice of Application and Notice of Hearing dated yesterday.

The Town intends to respond fully to this Application by way of filing of evidence and
examination and cross-examination of witnesses at the hearing. The Town wil paricipate in the
hearing in the English language, and may wish to seek an award of costs. The representatives of
the Town for the purposes of service and delivery of documents in the proceeding wil be as
follows:

M. Heather Adams
Chief Administrative Offcer
Corporation of the Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street West
Aylmer ON N5H 117

Tel: (519) 773-4901

Fax: (519) 765-1446

Email: hadams(jtown.aylmer.on.ca

STOCKWOODS LLP
SUlTE 2S12,THESUN LIFE TOWER, 150KINGSTIEETWEST,TORONTO,ONTARlO M5H1J9 . PH: (416)593-7200 . FAX: (416)593-9345
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M. Philip Tunley
Stockwoods LLP
2512 - 150 King Street West
Toronto, ON M5H 11 9

. Tel: (416) 593-3495

Fax: (416) 593-9345

email: philtGjstockwoods.ca

In order to assist paries, Board Staff, and the Board, it may be useful briefly to outlne why, at
this time, the Town is not prepared to renew the Franchise Agreement which it has with NRG on
the terms, or for the length of term proposed by NRG in its Application.

The reasons for the Town's position stem from at least two sources.

l-

First, the Board wil be aware from its review of recent proceedings in EB-2006-0243

(Compliance Order dated June 29, 2007, and Order dated March 12, 2008) and EB-2008-0273
(Decision and Order dated November 27, 2008), and of the Town's Submissions in response to
the Board's consultation regarding revisions to its Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-0313)
that circumstances have arisen which have shaken the Town's confdence in NRG as the
incumbent supplier of natural gas to customers within the municipal area of the Town. These
concerns relate both to the financial viability of NRG, and to the quality and reliability of its
service to customers.

Second, the Town is aware that some of its concerns are shared by other muncipalities in which
NRG supplies gas. NRG has One or more Franchise Agreements with each of these
muncipalities, each of which have different renewal dates. To the best of the Town's
knowledge, information and belief, the relevant renewal dates are as follows:

1. The Township of Malahide: 2012 and 2014'

2. Corporation of the Municipality of Thames Centre: 2012

3. Corporation of the Township of Bayham: 2012 and 2015

4. Corporation of the Township of South-West Oxford: 2013

5 Corporation of the Municipality of Cent raJ Elgin: 2016

The Town believes that, in order to allow all affected municipalities to consider the full range of
alternatives with respect to the future supply of gas in these areas, including the option of
renewal with NRG for a longer term, it is important to make provision for these various
Franchise Agreements to have the same renewal terms.

The Town asks. that these municipalities be given formal notice of this App1icàtion and ¡m
opportity to intervene he.rein. . ... . .. .

~:
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In. order to address these issues, the Town has proposed to renew its Franchise Agreement with
NRG fora shorter terrt(proposed at 3 years), duril1g wmchmost the other agteeinents NRG has
with the otherinunicipalities wil come upforreriewal, andwmchis also sufficient to allow
NRG an opportunity to regaintheconfdence of the Town and other municipalities as their
incumbent gas supplier. This position has been developed by the Town and approved by its
Mayor and Council,. in accordance with a public . Report and Resolutiol1. The Draf Agreement
proposed by the Town, and the Report and Resolution wilL be included iri the Towri'spre-fied
evidence. However, as they are alsoaitatfer of public record, rCalprovide copiesin advance to
anyone interested.

The Townalso wishesto noteatthe outset thatitdisputes manyofthe factualallegationssetoiit
NRG'sNotice of Application and in the documeriteritìtIed"History of Franchise Renewal
Negotiations". found at Exhibit D, Tab 1,. as well as many other . positions taken. byNRG iri
siipportofits Application. Ifthese l1attersare relevant to the Application, then the Town wil
wish to address them vigorously at the oral hearing. However, the Town believes they are of
marginal if any relevaricë,and in any eventmay be of little assistance to the Boardin deciding
the substantive issues at stake. We simply raise the question whether a brief "issues day"
attendance at some point in the schedule wotid.assistpa:iesandthë Board on this issue.

We trust this is satisfactory. On beh¡ilf of the Town and the community it represents, we than
the Boardfor its prompt consideration of this matter.

M. Philp Tunley

MPT/scb

c. Heather Adams
Richard King, OgilyY Renault

Mark BrI'stoU, NRG
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. .A(~l..Hi;AJl..".t:I~l' Municipality of

Bayham. :c "!jT " ,',,: ::':' ;""':''"' ", .
:;: ',' ::. E ~r ¡ 0 c ,., i
¡r,pOi'tgUitYl!f~O~ P.O. Box 160,9344 Plank Road,

Straffordvie, Ontario NOJ i YO

Tel: (519) 866-5521 · Fax: (519) 866-3884
emai: bayham(gbayham.on.ca

Januar 29, 2009

Heather Adams
Administrator
Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street West
Aylmer, Ontario
N5H 117

Re: Town of Aylmer, Gas Franchise Hearing

I am wrting to confirm that the municipality of Bayham endorses the position being taken by the town
of Aylmer in connection with the renewal of Aylmer's gas franchise agreement, and in particular, with
respect to the following aspects ofthat position:

1. The agreement should have a term which expires in Februar 2014. By way of explanation, I can
advise that the first of three curent gas francluses agreement between Bayham and NRG expires in
2012, and the other follow in 2015 (thee former muncipalities now amalgamated). Bayham's

intention is to request, at the appropriate time, tht its first gas franchise agreement be extended to
Februar 2014, and its remaining two be considered at the same tie. This will permit Bayha,

Aylmer and any of: Malahide, Central Elgin, Thames Centre and SouthWest Oxford, which may
request the same opportty, the abilty to offer a combined, larger and more populous consumer base

for the consideration of any potential supplier. A joint effort of ths natue could achieve efficiencies

and economies that would benefit the public interest.

2. There should be a requirement that the gas company imediately apply to the OEB for a

comprehensive rate hearing, because it is the view of Bayham, that the rates charged to local
consumers for gas company servces are not competitive with the rates applicable in neighbourng
municipalities, which are served by other franchisees.

3. There should be a requirement in the franchise agreement for Aylmer and, at the appropriate time,
for other muncipalities served by the gas company, that it wil implement proposed amendments to
the Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-0313) regarding customer servce measures, whether or
not the amendments become màndatory.

4. There should to be a requiement that the gas company adopt and adhere to a wrtten and publicly

available consumer security deposit policy which includes clea inormation about these circumstaces
in which a securty deposit is required, how the amount of the deposit is calculated, the circumstces
in which the deposit will be retued to the customer, that all deposits will be retued by cheque
uness otherwise requested in writing by the customer, and that a maximum dollar value for any
securty deposit be calculated using the proposed population in the OEB proposed amendments to the
GDAR.



( 5. There should be a requirement that the gas company keep all monies from consumer securty

deposits in a trust fund and not use such monies as working capitaL.

6. The gas company should be required to make its annual audited financial statements available to
the public every year during the term of the franchise agreement.

7. The gas company should be required to immediately give notice to each municipality within the
service area, of any proceeding before the OEB that the gas company becomes part to.

8. There should be a requirement that by no later in December 15 of each year, the gas company

provide to the municipality a detailed and up-to-date map of system assets, including the estimated age
of those assets and any improvements or additions made during the current year.

Bayham is concerned that in the absence of these requirements consumers in the energy service area
will be exposed to the possibilty of service disruptions, rate hikes and infrastructue deficiencies.
Should anything further be required, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Y01/ttJl' .ill
i ,_ /'
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NEAL, PALLETT & TOWNSENDLL

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS'REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Natual Resource Gas Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of Natural Resource Gas Limited as at September 30,2008
and the statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibilty of the company's management. Our responsibilty is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examig, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statemfmts. An audit also includes assessing the accounting pdnciples used and signficant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

The company has issued and outstanding Class C shares with a redemption value of
$13,461,418. Canadian generally accepted accounting principles require that the company
present and classify shares that are retractable at the option of the shareholder as a liabilty on
the balance sheet. The company has presented these shares as par of Shareholders' equity. If
the shares were classified as liabilties, then the total liabilities would increase by $13,461,418
and share capital would decrease by $13,461,418.

In our opinion, except that the Class C shares of the company have been presented as part of
Shareholders' equity rather than as a liabilty, these fiancial statements present fairly, in all
matëriai respecI.s., the financíal .positiori of .the coripanyas at September 30; 2008 

and the

results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

1i) !l )L.,~ I- Cof .

...___.___._..__....__________London,_Canada__..__..._ ......_ _ ___. ._._.__.____.____.. ..--.------..----.-. .----..-. .__.N eal,. P.allett&_Iowns.end.LLl......____.______.___._________December 12, 2008 Charered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

633 Colborne Street, Suite 300, London, Ontario N6B 2V3 . T: 519-432-5534 . F: 519-432-6544 . www.nptca.com

PKf'North American Network
I' asstiation 01 iegally independent firms



NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED
i
I

Balance Sheet

As at September 30

2008 2007

Assets

Current assets:
Cash $ - $ 1,881,375

... . .. .. Accounts receivable (note 6). .1,612,168 - 1,105,820... ..... ... _...

Inventory 89,856 128,864
Prepaid expenses 54,959 64,426
Income taxes recoverable 60,377
Due from related company (note 6) 492,505 668,347

2,309,865 3,848,832

Property, plant, and equipment (note 2) 14,080,608 9,549,902

Other assets:
Franchises and consents (note 3) 97,261 64,547

C
Deferred finance costs (note 4) 2J,896 33,455
Deferred charges (note 5) 106,636 149,277

227,793 247,279

$ 16,618,266 $ 13,646,013

('
\.,-,

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NATURA RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Balance Sheet

M, at September 30

2008 2007

Liabilties and Shareholders' Equity

Current liabilties:
Bank indebtedness

. Line of credit-.(note7). .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilties (note 6)
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Due to related company (note 6)
Ter note payable (note 8)

$ 217,422 $
.806,.763...

3,012,956

120,193
757,065
795,264

6,257,192

1,620,836
90,712

217,713
602,860

6,359,538

11,966,855 8,891,659

Shareholders' equity:
Share capital (note 11)

Deficit
13,461,439
(8,810,028)

13,461,439
(8,707,085)

4,651,411 4,754,354

Contingent liabilty (note 12)

$ 16,618,266 $ 13,646,013

....-.---_.-_._...-.~_..._------_._._---_._---_.- -_. ..- ._. - _._- ....._._.._-_._-- -----_._. _.._.._..._-----_._----_._.. ....._.._--_.__...__...__._.._..._._..._... ....---_. -- ..__..---_...._...__._._......-_.__.- .._---_.....__.._.-..--_. -_.__._--_._.._._.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Statement of Deficit

Year ended September 30

2008 2007

Balance, beginnng of year

Net income (loss) for the year

$ (8,707,085) $ (9,090,159)

(102,943) 383,074

... .. .. ......- $- ... (8,810,028).$ .(8,707,085) ......... ...... ... .... .. ... .. ... Balance,. end of year

(

...-..-.-_...._--..-_._------_..,.._..._---_....__._--.-.-----_._-_...._---_._----_..__.._-_._----_._..__._-._...._-------_._---.--.._------_._.._._--_._.__.__.-..------_.__....~._.._.._---..._--_.__..._--_._._._-.__.---_._---_..._._---_._-

c
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Statement of Income (Loss)

Year ended September 30

2008 2007

Gas corrodity revenue $ 6,548,084 $ 7,509,837

Gas commodity cost 6,509,145 7,306,666

... . Gross. margin on. commodity .... ..38,9.39. ........20.3,171. ..

Distrbution revenue 3,991,759 3,751,671

Distrbution costs 446,710 439,629

Gross margin on distribution 3,545,049 3,312,042

Other sales 
1,113,891 1,057,476

Other costs 
716,277 637,258

Gross margin on other sales 397,614 420,218
.\
,J

Other revenue 133,415 170,456

Total gross margin 4,115,017 4,105,887

Expenses 3,790,127 3,417,915

Income from operations 324,890 687,972

Decline in value of natural gas well (439,833)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (114,943) 687,972

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes (note 10) (12,000) 304,898

Net income (loss) for the year $ (102,943) $ 383,074

Included in expenses are the following:
.. _. -..--.----.--.-------------Amortization.of- deferred-financing-costs._.-.---...---..----._-.--.$ --------9;-550 ---$------.------9;-$$ 8-.....-------.--...--------.---

Amortization of deferred charges $ 42,650 $ 42,651
Amortization of franchises and consents $ 7,259 $ 7,271
Amortization of property, plant and equipment $ 753,187 $ 720,037
Interest on term note payable $ 476,110 $ 483,490

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NATURA RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended September 30

2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) for the year $ (102,943) $ 383,074

Items not affecting working capital:
Amortization 812,646 779,517

....... ..DëcHhëînva1üeöftiàtial gas well 439,833 ..... .... ................-...

Changes in non-cash workig capital:
Accounts receivable (506,351) 969,462
Inventory 39,008 24,646
Prepaid expenses 9,467 (57,505)
Income taxeS recoverable (note 16) (60,377) 83,647
Accounts payable and accrued liabilties 1,392,120 175,308
Income taxes payable (note 16) (90,712) 90,712
Deferred revenue (97,520) 30,462
Customer deposits 154,205 321,886

1,989,376 2,801,209

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to propert, plant, and equipment (5,723,722) (839,661)
Additions to franchises and consents (39,974)
Advances from (advances to) related company (net) 971,106 (668,347)

(4,792,590) (l,508,008)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances from line of credit 806,763
Repayments of term note payable (102,346) (94,946)

704,417 (94,946)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
during the year (2,098,797) 1,198,255

Cash and cash equivalents, beginnng of year 1,881,375 683,120

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ (217,422) $ 1,881,375

c

. _........____........_______Represente.d..by:__...__...._.__ ......_..._..._.....___.__.._._._...__.._.__._ ___..____.___._..___.__...____.__________.___.______.__._....__...._.._.._...____ __..__Cash $ - $ 1,881,375Bank indebtedness (217,422)
$ (217,422) $ 1,881,375

f( .'-
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NATUR RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies:

These fiancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles, the more significant of which are summarized below. i

I

I

i
i

!
;
!

Regulation;'.. ......

The utilty operations of the company is a rate reguated, natural gas distribution utilty
and operates within a limited area of Southwestern Ontaro under franchise agreements
that are approved by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

The utilty operations are subject to regulations under The Ontario Energy Board Act
and The Energy Act (Ontario). Revenue rate schedules are approved periodically by
the OEB and are designed to permt a fair and reasonable return to the Company on the
utility investment. Realization of the allowed rate of return is subject to actual
operating conditions experienced during the year.

The Company follows Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Such
accounting principles may differ for regulated 

entities from those otherwise expected in
non-regulated entities. These differences occur when the regulatory agencies render

their decisions on the Company's rate applications and generally involve the timing of
revenue and expense recognition to ensure that the Company has achieved a proper
matching of revenues and expenses, and as a result the Company records assets and
liabilties that would not have been recorded under GAA for non-regulated entities.

In addition to definig certain accounting requirements, the regulatory agencies have

jursdiction over a number of other matters, which include the rates to be charged for
the distribution of gas and approval and recovery of costs for major construction and
operations.

Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with. cost behig
determned on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable value is defined as replacement
cost.

Deferred charges:

Certain costs, required or pertted by the OEB, have been deferred for recovery from
future revenues. The period of recovery for these deferrals have been or wil be
determined by decisions of the OEB, and wil determe the classification of these

....................____._.__..__._........._.__chargesjn.the1inancial.statements....--.......--.--..... --.-------. .-.-._.-......-._. -..-...-.......-..... .....-......-....--.-..... .-.......--.-..-.-...------

-7 -
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NATUR RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

Propert, plant, and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, including associated labour and
overhead costs. Expenditures which substantially increase the useful life of existing
pipeline installations and additions to the pipeline are capitalized. Such expenditures

....I1Çlllgt.i:~terlal,. Jft1:Qi,,i.an.a.Qyern~g,. .MailltenaIl~e_ anarepairswl;içn..G9. p()t.e:itepa
the useful life of pipeline installations are charged to income. .

Pursuant to the regulations of the OEB on the disposal of property, plant, and
equipment, excluding major disposals, the company transfers the origial cost of the
retired assets, plus any related removal costs and net of any proceeds on disposition, to
accumulated amortization. Proceeds from disposition are credited to accumulated
amortization. This effectively credits gains, or charges losses on disposition to
accumulated amortization. For major disposals, gains or losses are included in current
earnings.

The company has reviewed its long-lived assets and determed there exists no asset
retirement obligation as of September 30, 2008.

(

l.
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NATURA RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

Amortization:

Pursuant to the periodic review and approval by the OEB of amortization rates,
amortization is calculated using the straight-line method on the total gross cost of each
asset category at the end of the year, rather than on an asset specific basis, at the

. . JOU2\:ii:g a~~~J rat~s. f()rJne pr()peny,pl.~.Ilt.l3i:cl~qiiip~C?Ilt. ~at~g9ri~~)i~.t~4~~l()'.: ..... .

Automotive equipment
Buildings
Computer equipment
Computer software
Furiture and fixtures

Machinery and equipment

Meters and regulators
Pipeline installations

17 %
2 %

33 %
20 %
7 %
6 %to 9 %
3 %to 4 %
3 %to 13%

Amortization of deferred finance costs (related to the issue of debt) is calculated at the
annual rate of 20% using the stright-line method over the life of the related debt
. isstlanc~. In the prior year, the. company refinanced some of its existing debt. The
deferred finance costs associated with the retired debt was amortized in full in the year
of retirement.

Amortization of franchises and consents is calculated using the straight-line method
over the term of the applicable franchise and consent.

Pursuant to the approval of the OEB, the company changes its amortization rates for
the various categories of property, plant and equipment as well as for franchises and
consents based upon OEB Rate Case fiings. The last change was made at the start of
the fiscal 2005 year and any such changes in estimate are applied on a prospective
basis.

Income taxes:

The company's regulated biling rates as established by the OEB, allow for the recovery
of income taxes as calculated on a basis which differs from the amount as determined
under the asset and liability method, but approximates the taxes payable method.
Accordingly, the company accounts for income taxes using the taxes payable method.
This basis does not provide for future income taxes which may be payable in future
years as a result of the difference between curent financial reporting and reporting for
income tax purposes. This method is followed for accounting purposes as there is a
reasonable expectation that all such taxes wil ultimately be recovered though rates

..----....---.-.---....-----..----..----wfiiiiiy6ecomë-pãya6Ie:-FufurëTncoÏIe-faxes - nõìprovíded-intlieseTinanCíãl--.-----------..-.--------
statements would amount to a recovery of $55,000 for the year ended

September 30,2008 (2007 - $41,000) and an accumulated futue liabilty of $332,000
at September 30, 2008 (2007 - $387,000).

- 9-
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

Revenue recogniton:

The Company recognzes revenues when gas has been delivered or services have been
performed. Gas distribution revenues are recorded on the basis of regular meter
readings and estimates of customer usage since the last meter readig to the end of the

r~p.~rttTgp~ri()4... ...... .... _ ..._.. ........... ..... ................. ... .. .. ..... ........._

(

A significant portion of the Company's operations are subject to regulation and

accordingly there are circumstances where the revenues recognzed do not match the
amounts biled. Revenue is recognized in a maner consistent with the underlyig rate
setting mechanism as mandated by the OEB. Ths may give rise to regulatory deferral
accounts on the balance sheet pending disposition by a decision of the OEB.

Gas commodity costs:

Gas commodity costs are recorded using prices approved by the OEB in the
determination of customers sales rates. Differences between the OEB approved
reference prices and those costs actually incurred are deferred in accounts receivable or
accounts payable for. future disposltion subject to the approval of the OE13, usually
within a maximum timeframe of the next fiscal year. In a non-regulated environment
periodic variances between gas commodity sales rates and costs would be reported
through the income statement annually without the use of deferral accounts.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilties and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilties at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses durng the reported period. These estimates are
reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
earnings in the period in which they become known.

(
- 10-



NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

1. Accounting policy cban~e:

Effective October 1, 2007, the company adopted the new recommendations of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) under sections 1530-Comprehensive
income, 3250-Equity, 3855-Financial instrments - measurement and disclosure, 3861-

.... .... l.lll~llçial. ... lrISIl_n:ei:ts._:: ..Present.a.t!9il_.. ari(L~U.s.çJQs:ii:e.Jipcl ... .J~.t:iS:: ij~ges.,...Tliese...)leW..
Handbook sections, which apply to years beginning on or after October 1, 2007 provide
requiements for the recogntion, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruents. Section 1530 establishes standards for reporting and presenting

comprehensive income, which is defined as the change in equity from transactions and
other events from non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income refers to items
recognized in comprehensive income but are excluded from net income calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The adoption of these new recommendations has no material impact on the openig

retained earnings or on the company's financial statements for the year ended September
30,2008.

The C:ómpariy has also adopted Section 1535 _. Capital. Disclosures. which requires
disclosure of the company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capitaL.
Implementation of this section requied furher note disclosure about how the company
defines capital, what externally imposed capital requirements it faces, the consequences of
non-compliance with external capital requirements, if any, and how it monitors and
manages capitaL. Ths section applies to fiscal year ends begig on or after October 1,

2007.

This new standard has been adopted prospectively. Adoption of this standard did not have
an impact on the October 1, 2007 opening balances.

.. .-._...._.-.__....__._.._-_.._.._...._.__.._...__._.__. _.-_........... --_.. .........-_.__. -_... . ......_--_._......._-_...._- ---- .... ._........- ._-_.... .-_._.........- ....__.._- ._.._.- ..,.-.-.- .._.. _...-.- _....... ......-.-....._. .._,.-.. - ..... .-- ---_....__..._---_.__._._._-.--./
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NATURA RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

"

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

2. Property, plant, and equipment:

2008 2007

. ....................-... .... .... .. ..... - ..................... ...... ........_.....- ...............-._... ..... ...... .......... ....... ...................

Accumulated Net Book Net Book 

Cost Amortization Value Value

Land $ 71,700 $ - $ 71,700 $ 71,700
Buildings 682,331 122,137 560,194 575,342
Furnture and

fixtures 55,127 35,541 19,586 23,064
Machinery and

equipment 2,652,774 1,175,348 1,477,426 1,357,923
Computer equipment 196,594 157,923 38,671 38,626
Computer softare 106,519 90,629 15,890 15,890
Automotive

..

(-
equipment 465,655 250,826 214,829 285,463

Meters and

regulators 3,214,423 1,584,978 1,629,445 1,650,855
Pipeline installations 9,911,722 4,223,261 5,688,461 5,531,039
Natural gas well 439,833 439,833
Pipeline under

construction 4,364,406 4,364,406

$ 22,161,084 $ 8,080,476 $ 14,080,608 $ 9,549,902

3. Franchises and consents:

2008 2007

Franchises and consents

Less: accumulated amortization
$ 191,068 $

93,807
151,094
86,547

. . .---.---------.----.-.-.---...-.--------------.-------------.---.--------------.-.--.--. ----- -----.--------..-------$---------97 ,261--$--.------64~541--.-.--.--.. --..-.-..----------------

c_
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NATUR RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

4. Deferred finance costs:

2008 2007

............._...........__._.............._......~,... .._". ..__...........H........_..........

Deferred finance costs $ 47,793 $ 47,793

Less: accumulated amortization 23,897 14,338

$ 23,896 $ 33,455

5. Deferred charges:

2008 2007

Total deferred charges - other assets $ 213,253 $ 213;253

Less: accumulated amortization 106,617 63,976

$ 106,636 $ 149,277

The company has been given approval by the OEB to recover the above costs already
incurred, from rate payers over future periods. The remaining balance wil be recovered
over future years as noted below:

2009
2010
2011

$ 42,651
42,651
21,334

$ 106,636

. .... .__._...__......_._.._.__..._____..__._...._._.~_..__._.__..__.__...... _....._. _._ _. _.. ."__ .__.. ___....._ ..._ .__. __._ "._... ..._._ __.,.. ___.. .____."___'_"_ o. _.__ _..___...... "_".._.__. .._. ...- - .......-......-..----.-..--. ...-.- ... ..._.....- --_...-- ------._- -- .._._-

'1
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('.' NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

6. Related party transactions:

Due from related companies consists of the following:

2008 2007

(

. .. ... ..

Non interest bearing with no set repayment terms $ - $ 203,347

Demand promissory note receivable, beag interest

at 4.59% payable monthly 492,505 465,000

$ 492,505 $ 668,347

Due to related company consists of the following:

2008 . 2007

Non interest bearing with no set repayment terms $ 795,264 $

Included in accounts receivable are amounts receivable from related companies of
$287,594 as at September 30, 2008 (2007 - $nil).

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilties are amounts payable to related
companies of $864,725 as at September 30, 2008 (2007 - $254,575).

During the year, rent of $9,600 (2007 - $9,600) and management fees of $457,000 (2007 -
$1.07,2.50) werepaidt9.a relatedcoJlpany.

During the year, the company purchased gas in the amount of $2,606,281 (2007 -

$2,011,482) from a related company.

('-
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NATURA RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

6. Related party transactions (continued):

During the year, the company earned interest of $27,505 (2007 - $nil) on the demand
promissory note receivable to a related company.

. 
Durig theyear,maitenancechatges .of $58,200" (2007 ~ $58,200) 

were charged to a

related company.

Related companies are companies controlled, directly or indirectly, by trusts, where the
beneficiares of the trusts are common to both trusts, but the trustee or group of trstees
which exercise control over any of the related parties are different than the group of
trstees of the trust which controls Natural Resource Gas Limited.

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties.

7. Operating line of credit:

The company has credit facilties in the amount of $2,000,000 which it obtained in
conjunction with the term note, consisting of:

a) Operating line of credit in the amount of $1,000,000 with interest at the Banló

Prime Rate on any advances, and
b) Revolving line of credit in the amount of $1,000,000 to be used for financing

capital expenditures with interest at the Bank's Prime Rate plus 0.25% on any
advances.

The continuation of the above credit facilities is subject to anual review by the Bank.
These credit facilties are secured by the security agreement in place as disclosed in note 8.

. .__._.._"_ _.____......___.._.. .____ __... ___._.___. .,. ___.._..... .___. _~ ....._.... ._.__._._... ... .._. ". .,__._.__.. .._.__. . __.._ H .__ _. _...._... ___"__._ .__.. ._._. __,__. -".-. ,".--'- .-.----. -.- _._._..-.__.... _.. ..._.- _.....- _. --.------- _._._-_.,- _._._._----- ---
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c
NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

8. Term note payable:

2008 2007

Bank of Nova Scotia term note payable, 7.52%
interest, repayable in blended monthly
installments of$48,201, due March 201 1 $ 6,257,192 $ 6,359,538

Although the above loan is due on demand, the company expects to make installments as
per the amortization schedule which forms part of the loan agreement. The aggregate
amount of principal payments required in each of the next 3 years to meet minium
retirement provisions is as follows:

2009
2010
2011

$ 109,661
118,222

6,029,309

c $ 6,257,192

The company has pledged the following as security against the term note payable, the
operating line of credit, and the revolving line of credit (note 7):

a) General assignent of book debts
b) General Security Agreement over all of the present and future personal property

and undertakig of the company
c) Security under Section 427 of the Bank Act with appropriate insurance coverage

assigned to the Bank
d) Demand Debenture for $15,000,000 secured by a first fixed and floating charge.

over all assets including, but not limited to, the Certificate of Public Convenience
and Necessity and all Municipal Franchise Agreements, with replacement cost fire
insurance coverage, loss if any, payable to the Bank as mortgagee.

c
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

9. Capital management:

The Company defines capital as debt and shareholders' equity. As at September 30,2008,
the company had debt consisting of: bank indebtedness, line of credit, due to related
company, and term note payable.

The company's objectives in managig capital are to:

a) Ensure financial capacity to meet current obligations is maintained and continue

as a going concern;
b) Ensure fiancial capacity to maintai and expand the distribution pipeline

infrastructure of the utilty as determined necessary by the company; and
c) Ensure fmancial capacity to execute strategic plan is maintained.

In order to manage capital, the company reguarly identifies and assesses risks that
threaten the abilty to meet the company's capital management objectives, and determnes
the appropriate strategy to mitigate these risks.

The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements related to the term
note payable (note 8). Specifically, the company must meet the following conditions:

a) maintain a ratio of EBITDA (Earngs before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization) to interest expense plus curent portion of long term debt of 1.25: 1

or better;
b) maintain a ratio of curent assets to current liabilties (excluding term note

payable) of 1: 1 or better; and
c) maintain a ratio of total debt to tangible net worth ofless than 3:1.

At September 30, 2008 the company was not in violation of any of the above conditions.

__...._ .___._._...___._..____..____...____...___. __._....__.. .____...._..._ .._._..._.___...__.___ .._..._ __._._..._._........ H"'__' _"_"'_____ __._._ ___.__.. .._.-_..._-_..... ._-- .--...---....-.-.....-----... --- .__.__.... ...----..-" -.---------._---.--..--.-.----
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

10. Income tax expense:

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the
federal and provincial statutory income tax rates to income before income taxes. The
reasons for the difference and the related tax effects are as follows:

2008 2007

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Statutory tax rate

$ (114,943) $
34.16 %

687,972
36.12 %

Tax. on net income at statutory rates

Amortization on financial statements in excess of
Capital Cost Allowance for tax puroses

Ontano Small Business Deduction utilzed

(39,265) 248,495

35,328

c
Non-deductible expenses

Charitable donations carried forward for tax

purposes

Charges deferred on financial statements
deductible on a cash basis for tax purposes

(2,884)

2,525

61,035

(5,508)

876

33,555

(41,259)

Provision for income taxes $ (12,000) $ 304,898

c.
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30,2008

11. Share capital:

2008 2007

Authorized:
Unlimted Class A shares, non-voting,

redeemable and retractable at the paid up
amount, with non-cumulative dividends

Unlimited Class B shares, participating, non-
voting, with non-cumulative dividends

ranng pari passu with common shares on

dissolution
Unlimited Class C shares non-voting; with

preferential 7% non-cumulative dividends
redeemable and retractable at $100 per share

Unlimted Class Z shares voting, redeemable
and retractable at $1 per share, with no
dividend entitlement

Unlmited number of common shares

Issued and outstanding:

Retractable shares:
50,000 Class A shares
10 Class B shares
134,614.18 Class C shares
10 Class Z shares

$ 1 $ 1

10 10

13,461,418 13,461,418
10 10

$ 13,4~1,439 . $ 13!461 ,439.

12. Contingent liabilty:

The company is aware of a potential regulatory liabilty in an amount of a maximum of
$140,000. The matter is currently under appeal, and in the opinion of 

management, and its
external legal counsel, the company wil be successful in its appeaL. The OEB and its
counsel have made no attempt to defend the appeal and these proceedings, as the

-----.---.-------.-------------.---ëompanys exteinalcounseroeTievesiliere fo.oeñu-precedeiiiñtlieD"Im- regulafionsfõr-..--------------.-..---...-
the regulator to levy such amounts against the company. As such, no liabilty has been
accrued in these financial statements.
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30,2008

13. Gas imbalances:

The Company, in the normal course of its operations experiences imbalances in the
quantity of gas purchased and the quantities of gas sold and provides the gas balancing
servces to customers. The company records the net liability (or net asset) associated with

. gas iI1balaIlcc:yollllle.s.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $936,466 (2007 - $723,354) related to gas
imbalances. Natual gas volumes owed from the Company are valued at the natual gas
reference price as approved by the OEB as of the balance sheet dates.

14. Regulatory matters:

The Company has rates that are approved by the OEB. The fiscal year 2007 was a one
year Cost of Servce Rate filing. The company received the OEB decision dated

September 28, 2006 and the rate order was effective September 28, 2006. The company
did not make a submission for the fiscal year 2008 which left rates unchanged from 2007.

c
Rates for.the sale of gas commodity are adjusted quarterly to reflect updated commodity
price forecasts. The difference between the approved and the actual cost of gas incurred in
the current period is deferred for future recovery subject to approval by the OEB. These
differences are directly flowed through to customers and, therefore, no rate of retur is

earned on the deferred balances. The DEB's approval for recovery of these gas purchase
costs primarly considers the prudence of costs incurred.

l
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

15. Financial instruments and risk:

The caring values of the company's financial curent assets and liabilties, including
cash, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, line of credit, and accounts payable and
accrued liabilties approximate their values due to their short-term maturity..... ...
The fair value of the amount due to related company is less than its carring value. As the
amount is non interest bearg, and the timg of repayment is uncertain, the fair value is
not readily obtainable.

The fair value of the demand pronùssory note receivable from related company is

estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that uses market interest rates currently
charged for simlar debt instruments at September 30, 2008 to expected maturity dates.
Since the market interest rate at the time the demand promissory note receivable was
entered into is not significantly different than the market interest rate around year end, the
carring value approximates its fair value.

The fair value of the term note payable is estimated using a discounted cash flow

. calculation that .uses market interest rates currently charged for similar debt instruments at
September 30, 2008 to expected maturity dates. Since the market interest rate at the time
the term note payable was entered into is not significantly different than the market
interest rate around year end, the carring value approxiates its fair value.

-.

Natural gas prices:

The Company has entered into several material contracts for the supply of natural gas.
The Company employs established policies and procedures in. order to manage the risk
associated with the market fluctuations of natural gas prices. The Company, though the
rate regulations imposed by the OEB, is effectively allowed to fully recover its costs,
reasonably incurred, and as such the ratepayers, and not the Company, are ultimately
exposed to the risk of these market fluctuations.

Interest rate risk:

The term note payable bears a fixed interest rate and, as such, the company is exposed to
the interest rate risk of having a fixed rate, but has the security of a fixed rate for
operational management purposes.

The line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating bank prime related interest rate and, as
such, the company is exposed to interest rate risk.

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from the potential that a trade customer wil fail to pay its account. The
company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the company has a large
number of diverse customers, which nùnimizes concentration of credit risk.

- 21 -
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NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

September 30, 2008

16. Additional cash flow statement information:

2008 2007

Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$
$

476,070 $

183,050 $

483,490
149,896

17. Future accounting changes:

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants has issued a number of new accounting
pronouncements that have not yet come into effect that wil need to be considered for
subsequent years.

(a) Inventary

Section 3031 -Inventories is effeCtive for fiscal periods conmencing after January
1, 2008 and replaces section 3030 of the same name. The impact on the financial
statements is currently being assessed by management.c

(b) Future Income Taxes

Section 3465 - Income Taxes has been amended to include the requirement for
rate-regulated enterprises to recognize future income tax asset or liabilties in

accordance with this asset and liability method, rather than the taxes payable
method as the company is currently using, and is effective for year ends beging
on or after Januaiy i, 2009. The impact on the financial statements is currently
being assessed by management.

l
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NEAL, PALLETT & TOWNSENDLL

CHARTERED ACCOUNANTS

ADDITIONAL COMMNTS OF AUDITORS

The accompanying schedule of expenses is presented as supplementary infonnation only. In
this respect, it does not form part of the financial statements of Natural Resource Gas Limited

for the year ended September 30, 2008 and is hence excluded from the opinion expressed in our
report dated December i 2, 2008 to the board of directors on such fiancial statements. The
inormation in this schedule has b.een subject to audit procedures only to the extent n.ecessar to
express an opinion on the financial statements of the company and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in all respects material to those financial statements.

1iJ~)Ld~¡.i.f
London, Canada
December i 2, 2008

Neal, Pallett & Townend LLP
Chartered Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants
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633 Colborne Street, Suite300, London, Ontario N6B 2V3 . T: 519.432.5534 . F: 5 i 9-432.6544 . WWv.nptca.com
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NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Unaudited Schedule of Expenses

Year ended September 30

2008 2007

c

Advertising
Automotive and maintenance
Bad debts
Bank charges and other interest

.. Capital tax.
Consulting fees
Donations and community sponsorships
Dues and fees
Employee benefits
Insurance
Legal and audit
Management fees - related company
Miscellaneous
Offce
Ontario Energy Board hearngs
Promotional rebates
Property taxes

. Rent - related company
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Travel and promotion
Utilities
Amortization - Automotive equipment

Buildings
Computer equipment
Computer software
Deferred finance costs and charges
Franchises and consents

Furiture and Fixtures

Machinery and equipment

Meters. and i'eguïåtors. .
Pipeline installations

$ 38,006 $

137,569
37,239

509,089
. .21,200

329,025
201,720
32,498

146,885
180,659

11,628
457,000

13,558
110,780

4,345
5,978

334,6l2
9,600

485,669
61,698
7,062

13,879
70,635
15,148
13,543
6,867

52,201
7,259
3,721

.. 4~,l'p..
116,968
323,166

13,850
114,623

505,517
37;900

199,629

17,9l4
113,602
185,199
67,308

107,250
52,709

102,882
48,559

2,652
286,180.

9,600
886,050

54,018
6,972

14,541
77,299
l5,148
14,375
6,441

52,209
7,271
3,705

41)82
113,504
311,197

3,805,320 3,469,286
Equipment expenses capitalized to pipeline
installations (11,436) (15, l52)Interest expense (income) 2,827 (27,490)

.. - -... _.___.._._._____________.___~~~~~~~?~~~~_~~J~~.~~~~!~~~~~~~.~_.._.____.._____.___.__~.~~~L_________i~Z~~l__ .______..____________.....

$ 3,790,127 $ 3,417,915

l
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Ontario Energy
Board

Commission de I'énergie
de l'Ontario

~!2~
~--~1l"

Ontario

EB.2008.0273

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act 1998,
S.0.1998, c.15, (Schedule B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas
Limited for an Order pursuant to Section 36 of the Ontario
Energy Board Act, 1998, seeking changes to reduce its
financial exposure in regard to a Bundled T Gas Contract
and an M9 Delivery Contract with Natural Resource Gas
Limited.

BEFORE: Gordon Kaiser
Presiding Member and Vice-Chair

~¿,

Cathy Spoel
Member

DECISION AND ORDER

On August 1, 2008 Union Gas Limited ('Union") filed an Application pursuant to Section

42( 1) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 seeking the Board's approval to

discontinue service to Natural Resource Gas Limited ("NRG"). The Application was

amended on October 9th and Union requested alternative relief under Sections 23 and

36 of the Act.

The Board has granted intervenor status to two parties, Integrated Grain Processors
Co-operative ("IGPC") and the Town of Aylmer.

(~



- 3 - Ontario Energy Board

Union proposes two alternatives to NRG. First, NRG can provide assurances in the form

of a cash security deposit or a letter of credit in the amount of $1.3 million. Alternatively,

NRG can make arrangements to change the renewal date of its BT Contract to an

annual anniversary date of April 1 st. The result of the date change would be to limit the

credit issues arising from NRG's Banked Gas Account on a going forward basis.!

NRG's response is that its creditworthiness has not deteriorated and it has never failed

to pay its bills to Union. NRG indicated in its letters of July 2 and September 5, 2008

that it would not post additional security nor change the date of the Bundled T Contract.

Union cites two developments as legitimate reasons for believing that NRG's
creditworthiness has deteriorated. First, Union notes that its 2007 credit review of NRG
was based on NRG's 2006 audited financial statements which contain a qualified

auditor's opinion. The reason for the auditor's qualified opinion was that NRG had Class

"C" retractable shares outstanding with a redemption value of about $13.5 million and

under Canadian General Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") rules these shares
must be presented on the balance sheet as a liability.

( NRG's Financial Status

The Class "C" retractable shares have been in existence since 2003 but in previous

audited statements these shares were classified as equity as opposed to liabilities. Mr.
David Pallett of the firm Neal, Pallett and Townsend, the NRG auditors, testified in this

proceeding. He indicated that he was aware that retractable preference shares under

GAAP were to be treated as a liability but believed that there was an exemption for

regulated utilities. Ultimately, he was able to clarify that matter and accordingly, the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended September 30, 2006 stated that the

shares were to be treated as liabilities. According to Union, decreasing NRG's equity by

$13.5 millon and increasing NRG's liabilities by the same amount meant NRG had
negative shareholders equity which "provides no protection for creditors".

! Currently, the renewal date of the Bundled T Contract is September 30th each year. NRG supplies gas to Union in

firm, daily, even quantities throughout the year. However, NRG takes gas from Union according to daily and
monthly demand. That demand is greatest during the winter heating season. That means that by the end ofthe
heating season on March 3 lt, NRG owes Union Gas in an amount valued at approximately $1.9 million dollars.
Chi,inging the renewal date to March 31 st would mean that the balance would have to be zero at that date. This would
reduce Union's liability and would impose a one time gas cost on NRG.

/(
~-~
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r
~.. Financial Disclosure

The Board agrees that Union's concerns are serious. Any allegation that a Utility faces

financial diffculties must always be addressed carefully by the Board. In this

connection, the Board is very concerned that NRG's financial reporting is invariably late.
NRG's year end is September 30th. Under the Board's Rules2, NRG is required to file

its audited Financial Statements within four months of year end, i.e. by January 31 st of

the following year. In 2007 this filing did not occur until July 16th, almost six months late.

It is a condition of this Order that NRG file its 2008 Audited Financial Statements within

the four month deadline. And the Board further orders NRG to provide Union with
unaudited quarterly statements within 60 days of the end of each quarter and to provide

a copy to the Board. This is to begin with the quarter ended December 31,2008. The
Board wil carefully monitor NRG's financial performance on an ongoing basis.

(-

NRG should understand that these filing requirements will form part of the contract with

Union and a failure to provide these Statements to Union in the timeframe specified
would constitute a breach of the Agreement in which case Union would be entitled to

pursue any remedies under the Contract related to the breach including an application

under Section 42 of the Act.

Jurisdiction

The Board recognizes that it is unusual to specify terms such as these in a contract

between a utility and its customer. The Board believes however that in this case it is
important to improve the degree of financial disclosure. This will allow Union to protect

its interests and the Board to monitor the situation more closely.

On previous occasions, the Board has clearly stated that it has the power "to compel the

provision of service by an LDC to any customer including entry into a Board specified

contract. This is part of the inherent jurisdiction which the Board has as a regulator of

gas monopolies,,3. The Board has also previously stated that "rates include more than

2 Natural Gas Reporting and Record Keeping Requirements (RR) Rules for Gas Utilities, December 22,

2004
3 Re Contract Carriage Arangements for the Consumers Gas Company Ltd., ICG Utilities Ltd. and Union Gas

Limited, Ontario Distribution Systems, EBRO 410-11, March 23, 1987 at p. 23

cL
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( In the case of Union's request for security, NRG did not act in a timely manner. The

record suggests that NRG essentially stone-walled Union. This resulted in significant

costs for Union, the Board, the Town of Aylmer and the Integrated Grain Processors

Co-operative. This type of brinkmanship is not helpful where 6,500 customers and a

recently activated ethanol plant supported by substantial Federal and Provincial funding

are involved. The Board also directs that costs being paid by NRG shall be paid by

NRG's shareholder and not passed on to the NRG rate payers.

DATED at Toronto, November 27,2008

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Original signed by

Gordon Kaiser
Vice-Chair and Presiding Member

Original signed by

t Cathy Spoel

Panel Member

~~.
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CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

again only to be told the compa-
ny did not have anyone working
in that deparment at the time.

At Mrs. Bartlett's request,
the receptionist confirmed

receipt of the fax.
"When I asked if she knew

how long it would take before I
shi:uJd expect my deposit
return, she told me that she was
being told to tell customers they
can expect an eight week wail-
ing peiiod."

Mrs. Bartlett wondered why
customers must ask to have their
deposit returned. She thinks it
should happen automatically on
the anniversary of the gas con-

nection "provideù the account is
in good standing.

Why wait?
"Why do I have to wait eight

weeks for my deposit to be
returned to me, but it was

required of me before my gas
would be connected and not a
day later."

And, she asked if NRG
would wait silently for eight
weeks for a customer to pay

their gas bilL. "I think not."

She called the gas company
again in early April and was told
she would get her money in
another two weeks,

Frustrated by the continuing

delay she telephoned the
Ontario Energy Board where

staff took her information and

asked her to inform them what
happens once the two weeks

passed.
The requested two week

delay expired April 
23.

When Mrs. Bartlett tele-
phoned NRG she was told
someone would call her back
later in the day.

She got no telephone call at
work and there was no message
on her answering machine when
she got home,

Steve and Debbi Bumie had
a similar experience.

They have been waiting for
the retum of their deposil since
October.

The couple moved here from i,i
Ottawa when Steve, a police
officer, was seconded to Ontårio.
police College as an instructor. ~

They bought a house in
Aylmer and Mrs. Burnie went to.
the NRG office to have the g~ ~
service put in their name. ~
Had references

Despite having letters of ref-(

erence from other utility fran- (
chises, she was told she 

was

required to pay the deposit.
. Mrs. Burnie questionèd' the

need for the deposit saying they
had a good credit rating and
bought a house in the communi-
ty instead ofrenting.

She was told the deposit
would be needed because they
bought the house and might

"have no money left to pay the
bils" .

Staff at Erie Thames Power
also asked fol' a deposit but
when Mrs. Burnie submitted a
letter of reference from Ottawa
Hydro, they waived that
requirement.

Mr. Burne went to the NRG
office and talked to manager
Steve Miler, who promised to
review the family credit history
and not shut off gas service to
the house before the couple

moved in.
But, when the Burnies

moved in the next day, gas ser-
vice was shut off.

Her husband again contacted
the NRG manager and was told
they would have to pay the $500 '
deposit.

When the serviceman arrived
to reconnect the service, he
asked for the deposit.

Mrs. Burnie asked if he

would issue a receipt and was
told no.

When she refused to give
him the cheque, the manager

was called and came to thehouse. '
Receipt

Mrs. B umie insisted on a
receipt before handing over the
cheque.

;i't?

Hydro connection
Mr. Miler said, he did~'t At the time Ms. Maclntyre

have any, left and returned with and family moved into their nevi
one a short time later" home, they also required a con.

On ùie back of the receipt ~e nection to Hydro One electrical
wrote that it would be rebated ~n sen/ice. '
a year if the gas bils were paid They were charged $50 for'~
on time. He also wrote that ban l'

$500 II uld be new me from the nearest utHit)-interest for the i'ì 0 pole to the house, which she

credited to the couple s account. considereâ~Teáš'önàlil'é')'.lirlIl:r
She telephoned NRG last ,:,' Hytlro CDna.JöiØ"Ïlot/.å'Sk for a

October to ask for return of ~h~ security deposit.,
deposit and was told to subnut 1t 1-, 

'She "sept u~' ipte\\ra.~0!-t ilthe

in writing. matter to Malahide councilexplaining the situation and say.
ing "the ratepayers .of our town.

ship only have one source 01

natural gas and NRG. seems to
no longer offer customer service

When she got norespoiise to but is dictating their service to
her first written request she sent us, the consumer."
a second and third. Stil no She said there are several
response. expenses when moving into a

Last December when she new home and "had I known
wrote that she planned to con- that this deposit would have
tact the Better Business Bureau, applied and been kept by NRG,
Ontario Energy Board, the consideration would have been

Provincial Ombudsman and given to hydro or propane as a
whoever else would listen she source of heat."
got a telephone call from an She sent a similar letter to
NRG representative tellng her Ontario Energy Board but got
she wouldsoon get a letter from no apparent support from thai
the company.. agency or counciL.

'The letter never came nor did Abe and Nettie Froese had /.
a cheque. pay a $600 deposit when thl. .
Shoclted moved into their ,Springfield -
, Terri Maclntyre sold her Road home in September 2006.

home on Ron McNeil Line and They were told the amount

moved to a new house built on was the equivalent of the esti-
Springfield Road last October, mated cost of three months win-

both situated in Springfield. tel' heat at their location. '
When she contacted Natural They 

arranged to pay the

Resource Gas to have services deposit in instalments over three
transferred to her new home, months. Mrs. Froese, a former
she was shocked when told she NRG employee, said they had to
would be required to pay a $500 beg and plead before the compa.
d't ' ny representative agreed to leieposi . '

\' The deposit "is held for one them do so., year and then you .must apply In September that year they

\ for it back and wait for some got a letter of .agreement from
time before this refund is ~ven "Brett Blondia, Controller.
considered." Natural Resource Gas Limited"

She telephoned NRG. and outlin~ng terms for paying the
"was advised that there 1S no depos1t.
way at all to waive this deposit." Company discretion

Ms. MacIntyre lived in It included information thai
, Springfield for more than 30 customers can request NRG to
I years and has been an NRG cus- review the customer's acc~uni
tomer since 1999. after a year and promised

She asked to talk to the man- deposits plus inte;rest would be
agel' responsible for requiring refunded at the discretiop of the
and refunding the deposits '.'but company.
they wouldn't tell me who he is !Ys. Froese submitted l,
or where he's from." wntten request for return of the ~

From answers she did get, 

deposit last September but got a

she had the impression he doesletter tellng her she might have

nol work at the Aylmer offce. to wait another year for themoney. J-. =VI



enewed her request for return
if the money, and was again ,senti letter. '
"'1at letter told the couple

(\ .te decision not to refund ,your

iecurity deposit at tlis time is

Jased on a number of factors
which have been reviewed in
your specifc case: _" "

"1. Paymen,t. history, with

NRG. ' '.
'~2.' Credit 'history (Le.

Beacon,score, ,Credit Utilzation

etc.) .
.'''3 ,Risks ,'based on 

your

unique 'business/industry ,(if
applicable), , . .' . ,:

"We regret thåtwe are unable
to provide a refunöof :'your
security.deposit at'his':time due
to failure to .meet',the.criteria for
one or .alL oUhe ,abov.e, factors.

'We wil,"'be happy,. to ',riwiew
written requests in th'è 'future on
the;anriiversàry:: .'òí' .your
,account..;.\:..:';,',:;-.'!',;: .. :;

, '..TIie:etter -wenton to.ask.that
all future '~oili.nlcations')e
madein writing. . ',,:, ..;,,¡,;¡
'''We' ,appreciate your feed-
back and support; as wùo'ntinu-

I..' .'1 

,strive .for, util~.W :"ser,~ice

'- _~ellence!", .,' ',: ','. :1''' ,.
.. That letter ':wassigned

"Sincerely, The 'NRG-üedit
Department." , , . ' .' '"

Wrong address.. ' . ."

Mrs. Froese said they had

one late 'payment." d '
Itw.as1ate because NRG sent

, the: bil to the wrong. address.

:..~. .she ,;again telephoned ,NRGi 'on Apl'illl :and~poke to a .nian'

identified as the credit 
manager.

She "thought his ,first 'name,.was
Shawn..' .. '

l

tie told her very few..security

!__ ç1epositshad been refunded and
for those that were, only a por-
'tion of the money was retum~d
at one :tie. Repayments were

to be spread ,out ov~r,tie., .

He also told her if her famy
'moved to another 

'house and

. wanted to transfer!tbeiraccount
there, another deposit 

would-be

,required.. " ".
:n,; ::Paü1 Stàaert!.bought the-or- .
:~jñlër )iPornBruc& ,¡Gënéial ,:!Store

biiilding'an'd.aftêr.extensive'.ien-
f'~\tätions"bonyertê"d.,~ntd:it!š'iígle
i.f~iñìy residence where 'he, ~ves.

In November 
2006 he

approachedm:G:!O:g~t g~~ ser-
'vicdorthe:building. ,',:f:i

;, He ..WRS 'required,;to ;pay a

, :$500 deposit despite:having two
credit reference 'letters; one
from'UIiïon'Gas :,the ,other-:rom

: . Hydro 'JOile;.co:mpanies';with
;whichhe dealt fnr,20,years',:,:¡"

t. " ' ::~;paid ,the ,d~p~sit:,:with_ "a
: "credit card.and'was toiait would
, :be;retum(:d iiia year. ',:. ',.

, ,He ,returned .to collecbhis
, .d~positJn J'iovembel' 2007 ,and

despite haviig no 
record of:any

:.late ,paY1lents ,thiit ,ye~ is,.,stil
, waiting for his money,.. ',:J. .

. He was told, to, .subnut 'his
r~qu~st in writing, and ,did, so. He

. fOllQwed up with tele.phone
calls and more writ~n-requests .¡ ,. . .",~,.."... . ",. ,,:_. . ..". .. . .' r." .

vne .tmiio " ',' ,. .... ',', '
In M~ch,he;got,a.ietter fr~m

NRG ~Cr~c:it.Depaient$aying
:.t, r~yiew~d ..bis: regue~t ,and
-offered to repa:y.:.:$i66i~7.; ,one

third of the deposit 'With no indi-

cation when :he :ngh(get :.the
.. rest. 'TJiere.'w.as,no ;legi~le:.ame
i "on "theJettèrJand che,q.às:ncit:yet

,~r~p1ied:;to :i(i,L:';;,~;:\::;~t;~~:.,ò~.;:::::',
,:'¡::¡\.ë(He'::iate(:gqt ~the,:dheqiie :but
.'lla¡é~plaiÌia~*'¡:;~!~~~~~1,\'~~;:;;"/

¡..' ,"M,i:::.':,. :8tällaer(, :;.:':siibmitted
!,..copies ;òf ,;ál;~1ús :paperwor1c ,to
;,. the;;l)t:";lhømas ;'öffice:ofillgii-
;:Middlese~~Lond0n :'MPP,,:Steve
: ~Pet~ts "and'; aske¡f:/him..'\IÓ',;lntel'-

;(~~~Jir;~~~~~~~;~:dg~:~1~6\b;s
;hwliùld¡¡õ¡~cóÌ'ëntl:oii :the;mat ~

,~#~i;;~saYiÌ:g;;iit;!w.å~ :~'Itconstituen t

'.t:1~~f~:~tll!~~i:~~~~~t,~:u~der-

'i'1~taMtW~~J.t.""''''.QiiP~Il¥~4g~,~;not
,: ¡i~1r~t~!:,I,~_,:.''', ,rr:: :!a, ~;f~Mr
. if"" ,Æ~m.,sure;a: ot-, _ eJor-

.t~;~.~l;~...!roiî:...th~:':âepô#f;aîi(l',1sãiil, ',that
t:meant!.ii~';córrpã~:f'!haa :;use'fof
¡his' :!.on~f:~9i~:~~~st::' '::',,',:' '.', .::~1:, '

?J ~3



.._-_. _._--- ._"....._.__.._---_._-------_._._-_.__....-_..__.-------_..._--_.._------_._--

"~'rr~lfepóšìt::':~, ", ,', Y\f\ r\\/ ,l/l/-'..
" ..'1 " int-'f ':' y~not' necessari: ,Y' returneu

Mark Bristoll, ':president of' ~hen 'moving from' one house ,He said one customer' who
Natural Resource Gas Ltd., said ,to ,another. had a'histoiy.of 59,consecutive

.' 'liís cOJIp'any is' ':riot holding Customers' with a 'bad pay- late pa.yiIents, paid promptly
onto, customer security d~posits ' ment hlstory , poor credit pröfùe for' a ye,ar å'ffer bdn.g.â'šked Jor

., jlIst'o'havf; use'of,their'mbney~ . or are n~w to 
the NRG system 'a s~curity dep'òsit.'._ --' .

, ,',. ,. Offcials were'niere1y 'tring would 'liê 'asked to provide a " '''We'tr to òperate'in 'a way
.to 'be, dmgent.i operatig the sécuri~, deposit ,equiyalent .to ;, that:is'Îåirto'everyone.'," .
;businesš to ensure' the company' "'2;5 tiies the 'hlghest monthly .. ": ,."If the debt .load 'gets too
did'not.hayè'10,cll'a'!ffgh bad' ,bilIQrthe',premises.', ' ,-' .'hig4, it .gets ,rolled into :tne

, ,debt'oad 'whidi,'iii 'tum :could Mr. Bristoll said some util~ rates" '(charged to all cus-

, mean: :higherrates' for con- . ties' ,iIght chaige'up to three . tomers). ,..',"

sùmers;':' " ." :"months., ' ,," ,'." " "He:saidNRG,naš'to take,on it,
,;; Y 'Ii 'àç~Itpå~yi¡ettt:rseiittoa ,; ',His,conipany set tlithateat' the 'entire 'risk of ,providing ihé :,~':
r:5custome:r:ášt'December'.it'said ' 25 'because' that was 'how long gas service. ,If ,customers 'fiil: to

':'''NRG. . tii¥è¡greafp#de' in ", it took ~fof.the ,gas,.coJIpanyto pay their.. 'bi1~;" ",NRß .:dias::',~tq ,:,¿
"being ,a financialy responsible "legity ciit.òffa'service:' ", ,', 'assuiie,the'losses:. :,:' .,!: ::,,J; .;t '::..
, utilty coinpany in our coriu- "':: ''H¿' :sa:iä " fit thif time .the ' The 'cörrpan,ý 'also considers

:'¡'nìty:.:"'" ,': ":!' ," ":dëpósif'Ís.'tequeSted; tl~' '-cus- tIe business',or iiièitisti ;bemg : '

,:/: '~Protection.,df'he' rates .and 'tomer is toid th~y caii:Íequest a',: 'serviêëd;;" '" ",':,' '," :.;.::,:' , ~,
"i,ë6sts:,:assödiltëCi with:'serviciiig' . :révíew or their accourit' aftèf ,a ' ,In 'récenL years ;'~'with : 

the ! ',:

, .our' community ',are our number,. .. year and they might get a fu :or 'tobiicëö'. 'indústry ~ dëCliìiê' 'and'

'ohe,priorlty. :. : ';" '....'.':.,,' partal 
'refund depending on' "maiy-kiJnà"firèd' with ;:riitüral:

¿, '''As such,theintroduction of.. ..their,circumstimces;' " gas; :iisks""serviCingtabäêco ~'i
:"security.'deposits:is'~a 'necessar "In response to:àrequest.for a ,''fáis :incieaseddramati¿áily:,
,:' step tø';,tr;anä ,protect both.. -.deposit .:refund' 'ta~company : "Wë ,want ':to . servie-e'.'the
, NRGand our gas ,customers considersthe,¿cûstomer'-s pay- :'tdb'accò""farmersbut'tliey"re .' .
: 'from increased ,rates resultirg ment bistorý:';:and::tleir credit" having.,a tough,tlie:'" "".

from non-paying;ciI,atorters'... " history. ' ,J,:,d';YJ!'¡;';%l! " t1'He sâi~:,custömers confsed
'''Security deposits atè nota "We basicaii)?:;:review their "ábouCtneii' "securit.y' dèposit ,

prepayineiit of gas."':" . credit profùe:'! , .' 'refunds' might"havë':i:sheard ,
Ort Monday, Mr.: Bristoll, ,:, That ,review determines ,. 'the :repâyméiit .pòliè,Y" ,ana 

not

said :iot~vèryåmds' kskeø 'fori ,..,' whether a full or 'partial refund' ',' 'understood 'their account'wolild
, security"depositi i"~t;'... ,~') ,'~ t:to the security ',deposit wil be .'be rèviewed. on' .théli request,
, 'He/said::. l0ii¡("eštablished ¡;¡".Ina'M;~...;¡'~..S~'F,?\,;..) '::¡~: ' ,:after'a-yeat; ,. ',,' ,

:' customers,;' with :a :"good pay- ';~ A customer who gets ,a pàr- ." Tne company, hê saiä,i,nere-
,menf record/'would' ' not ':be, tialTeruiid:cn applyfor':aiioth- '1y tiied to ensure all customers

~';asked :fora'security deposit . er review a'yëar later:' were'ti'eat,~d rairly~'. ..:



. ,- '-i::P ~..IIU at M~~UlllfJlIun
Separate School in Aylmer as she partici-
pated in a "Jump Rope for Heart" fundraise,.

. _...- .., ._...week. All pupils in Grades 1 through 6 took
part,

::: .

qrd ,C , IAE photo)Energy board sets6ut policy
fi L .. ~.~d rrut/ror e ectricity security eposits

10

Brian Hewson, chief com- imposed on electricity utilities. their security deposits,
pliance officer for the OEB. However, a poor credit his- His office was ¡¡tiJJ getting
said despite not being regular- toiy or just one late payment more infonnation about their
ed to do so, gas utility campa- cnn be counted against the cus- complaints and would be in
nies voluntarily follow the tomer. touch with the gas company to
board's guidelines governing He confirmed his office bad ensure customers were being

secul'ty deposits and adopted been contacted, ,bY.: 'se~éral . treated fair~y and re,asonably.
policies similar to those NRG customers tiiihappy ab~t. ' Those applying for electri-

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ,. · ,cal aervice from, :Erie Thames

fl 0 we' I'~' : . 'i"''': :O:~~~;~d~i;~~ h~;;et~d1~~
. on credit history.

. ' Deposits and rates for elec-

, . tricity customers are governed
by the Ontario Energy Board.

· However, while that agency
· also governs rates charged nat-
· ural gas customers. it does not
· regulate deposits demanded by

· gas utilty companies.
· At Erie Thames Power, the
· requirement for a deposit can
. be waived if a new customer

. provides letters of reference

. from utilty companies with

. which they previously dealt.

. The policy governing secu-

. rily deposits is posted on its

web page.
· The amount requested is
· usually 2.5 times the normal
· monthly consumption for that

· location. '
~:r~.~ .

I.

r:a - 5 more greenhouses open to the public"
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happens once the two \'
passed.

The requested two ,
delay expired April 23.

When Mrs. Biirtlett
phoned NRG she was
someone would call her I
later in the day.

She go! no telephone ca.
work and there was no mes~

on her answering machine w
she got home.

Steve and Debbi Burnie i
a similar experience.

They have been waiting
the return of their deposit sir
October.
, The couple mQwed here.fi

Ottawa when Steve, a paJi
officer,was secQnded to Ontiir
Police College as an instrucloJ,

They bought a house
Aylmer and Mrs. Burnie went i
the NRG offce to have the gi
service put in their name.
Had references

Despite having letters of re1
erence from other utilty fran
chises i she was told she wa:
required to pay the deposit.

Mrs. Burnie questioned the
need for the deposit saying they

had a good credit rating and
bought a house in the conuuni- '
ty instead of renting.

She was told the deposit
would be needed because they
bought, the house and might
"have no money left to pay the
bils" .

Staff at Erie Thames Power
also asked for a deposit but

when Mrs. Burnie submitted a
1,.+"".... _-c ... r
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iturday, 8-6; CLOSED SUNDAY
Thomas at Yarinouth Centre

fj g, Dc. ,'. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

_.- --~- -_..u\. U.1 \.uiiaua
· prime rate, less two percent,
. accrued and paid at least once

. every 12 months or on return of

. the deposit.

. The customer can ask in
wiiüng to have their account
reviewed arin\lally after 12
months to determiiie if the
deposit should be returned.

Alleged robber
arrested in court

A man, 22, of no fixed
address wanted by Aylmer
Police in connection with a

robbery at a Talbot Street East
,i apartment on April 13, was

arrested in S1. Thomas provin-
Cial Court last week where he
was appearing on an unrelated
charge.

Chief Btl Segui said infor-
mation about the man, includ-
ing his name and picture, had
Deen posted on the Aylmer

Police computer website after
a warrant, for his arest was
issued.

THe man told police after he
was arested that he had seen
th¿ infonnation about himself
on the website.

He and another, male are'
chiirged with breaking down
the, door of an apartment and

assaulting two males they
found inside while demanding
mone)'.

requirement.
Mr. Burnie went to the NRG

offce and talked to manager

Steve Miler, who promised to
review the family credit history
and not shut off gas sen/ice to
the house before the couple

moved in.
But, when the Burnies

moved in the next day, gas ser-
vice Wel~ ~hut off.

Her husbaM again contacted
the NRG managei and was told ~

they would have to pa)' the $500 l'deposit. 0
When the sen'iceman arhved di

to reconnect the service, 'i C

asked for the deposit.
Mrs. Burnie asked if he Cll

would issue a receipt and was re'told no. afi
When she refused to give de

him the cheque, the manager ref
was called and came to the coi
house.Reccipt wri

Mrs.. Burnie insisted on a dei;
receipt before handing over the leUIcheque. to

Mr. Miler said he didn't mOl ,
have any, left and returned with S
one a short time latèr.

On th~ back of the receipt he F'
wrote that it would be rebated in
a year if the gas bils Were paid B
on time. He also wrote that bank inve.
interest for the $500 would be that
credited to the couple's account, at 5

She tele.phoned NRG last' Tues.
October to ask for return of the Fi:

deposit and was told to submit it said ¡

in writinl!.

ì

~ cR ¡i')



Letter to the l£áitor We-v( d1Cli c: i loe¡/...- i ' /\1 i""~ t'(Jv-
Another deposit in limbo

l

1 just recently submitted my
request to NRG for the return
of my $500 deposit, which 1
paid in February of2007.

1 was shocked to read the
stories about this very subject

in the May 14 edition of the
Aylmer Express.

1 have been tempted in the
past to comment on articles,
especially the pipeline to the

new ethanol plant, but had
decided against it. This issue 1
cannot ignore.

My story begins in 2006
with it takng three phone calls
to NRG before getting the
answer if service was available
at a lot 1 was plannng on pur-
chasing for new constrction.

1 have been an NRG cus-
tomer since 2004. When ser-.
vice was required at my new
lot, NRG told me 1 had to pay a
deposit due to a large number
of late payments.

I found out that an online

bankng payment made on the
invoice's due date is consid-

ered late by NRG due to pay-
ment taking 3 days to reach
their account. I questioned why
no one informed me of my late
payments and I never did
receive an answer.

1 suggested a pre-authorized
payment plan to avoid having
to pay the deposit and 1 was

told I could only submit my
proposal by mail, which was
promptly rejected by a phone
calL.

1 was then concerned that

there wasii't going to be an
invoice issued and 1 was just

expected to hand over my
deposit without even a receipt
to show for it. I fmally did get
one and NRG made me feel
like 1 was the first person to
ever ask for one.

1 even questioned the recep-
tionist when she told me "1
may get my deposit back". She
then assured me it would be
returned but never specified
when.

I think that with PAPP it
should be rehirned once the
waiting period has expired in
the six to eight weeks without
question. Now i trly wonder.

During the week my service
was to be installed NRG even
called me at work to ask ifmy
installation was complete., I
was sure that was a detail they
should have known.

After writing this I fully
expect to never have my
deposit rehirned. I won't dis-
pute the fact that I needed to
pay a deposit.

I am very disappointed in

the way NRG is treating its
customers. i am also confused
as to why the president ofNRG
mentioned the tobacco .iJ;du~tr
in this deposit discussîoff"L""

NRG needs a lesson in cus-
tomer service and a document-
ed deposit policy. It is the
inconsistently applied guide-

lines that upset the public.
They have a monopoly in

this area and it clearly shows.
Mike Hawley

Aylmei; ON
N5H2R5

"" A_ _ .... _ _ ..~.. _ ,__
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eposit held after account closed
I cannot believe the response

from
 N

R
G

 president M
ark

B
ristoll about holding security

deposits. I too have had prob-
lem

s w
ith N

R
G

, but not the
: sam

e as everyone else. I am
 no

¡ionger a custom
er of theirs.

W
e purchased our house in

,F
ebruar 2007 and instead of

i replacing an oil tank, w
e chose

1 to p!lt in a high effciency gas
;fum

ace.
W

e had to pay a deposit of
$500 even though w

e had over
20 years of good credit w

ith
them

. W
e w

ere told that there
w

as a lapse of four years w
hen

w
e had m

oved out of the area
and they do not keep files for
that long. I have a receipt for
m

y deposit because I insisted
on it.

W
e w

ere told that since there
h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
n
o
 
g
a
s
 
i
n
 
O
u
r
 
h
o
u
s
e
,

w
e had to pay an extra $100 for

running gas to us.
M

y husband got sick that
year and w

as no longer able to
keep up the w

ork around the
house, so w

e decided to sell and
m

ove to an aparm
ent that has

utilities included.
I w

ent to the offce w
ith a

letter three w
eeks before clos-

ing, and asked for O
ur deposit

back. I w
as told I did not need

the letter and I w
ould get m

y
deposit w

ith the last bilL.
T

he final bill arrived on
A

pril i, 2008 w
ith no deposit

w
ith it.
I prom

ptly w
ent to the offce

.vhere I w
as told by a very rude

)
f
f
c
e
 
g
i
r
l
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
o
s
t
 
p
e
o
p
l
e

(-"
,

u
s
u
a
l
l
y
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
p
a
y
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
b
i
l

and it com
es off the deposit. I

explained that I have never had
late charges applied, and I w

as-
n
'
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
w
.
 
I
 
p
a
i
d
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
a
l

b
i
l
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
k
e
d

w
hen I could expect the

deposit. She told m
e in about

t
w
o
 
w
e
e
k
~
.

I called to ask w
here m

y

cheque w
as on M

ay 9 and w
as

t
o
l
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
h
o

a
n
s
w
e
r
e
d
.
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
h
e

d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
w
r
t
e
 
c
h
e
q
u
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

person w
ho does, w

as not avail-
able.

I called agai M
ay 21, 2008

and spoke to the credit depan-
m

ent. I w
as told I had to fill out

a release for m
y m

oney. W
e

w
ent to the offce yet again and

filled out the necessar papers.
H

ere w
e sit w

aiting agai.
I
 
w
o
n
d
e
r
 
h
o
w
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y

can claim
 to be financially

responsible w
lule holding onto

deposits of people w
ho are no

longer custom
ers.

S
haron C

ham
berlain

T
ilsonburg, O

N

Perfect credit, deposit needed
I
 
r
e
a
d
 
y
o
u
r
 
M
a
y
 
1
4
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
o
f
 

the
A

¥lm
er E

xpress w
ith great inter-

e
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
o
n

N
R

G
's security deposit policy.

I am
 a new

 resident of
A

ylm
er and w

as also forced to
pay the $500 deposit w

hen I
purchased m

y new
 hom

e,
despite having 10 years of per-
fect credit w

ith E
nbridge G

as.
I heard nothing but negative

com
m

ents from
 m

y :fends and '

neighbours about N
R

G
 w

hen I
m

oved to A
ylm

er. I have found
their staff evasive and un-
form

ed w
hen I asked diect

questions as to w
hy the deposit

w
as collected, and w

hen it
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
r
e
t
u
e
d
.

N
R

G
 obviously feels they

have a m
onopoly on the supply

o
f
 
n
a
t
u
l
 
g
a
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
s
 
a
r
e
a
 
a
n
d

are m
akg thgs diffcult for

their custom
ers.

N
R

G
 should be asham

ed of
the w

ay it treats its custom
ers.

I w
ould rather pay higher gas

r
a
t
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
n
g
 
g
a
s

supplier than be a custom
er of

N
R

G
 any longer.

W
hen I m

ove from
 the area

i
n
 
a
 
f
e
w
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
 
b
e

requestig m
y deposit back, in

full,through m
y law

yer.
A
.
d
a
m
 
K
e
l
l
y

A
.ylm

er, O
ntario

W
orry over rock pier

I
 
a
m
 
w
r
i
t
i
n
g
 
~
n
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
w
a
i
e
d
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
F
i
r
e
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
p
l
a
c
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
n
c
o
u
r
a
g
e
 
s
u
r
-

in connection w
ith -tl~,Pau_i G

roeneveld w
ith its dis- vivors to seek legal c~unsel to

p
i
e
r
 
i
s
s
u
e
"
 
a
t
 
P
o
r
t
 
B
u
i
e
l
l
.
 
.
.
_
 
~
s
 
o
f
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
i
s
l
e
a
d
-
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
t
e
i
m
-

T
h
e
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
g
 
.
 
u
e
n
d
o
s
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
b
u
r
s
e
d
.
 
I
 
a
m
 
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
w
n
s
h
i
p

obtained show
s a com

plete responsibili d liabilities. durg these deliberations is
lack of responsibility and any W

hen the tie e~
es that m

ore vulnerable to liability
sense of security for residents there is a serious accidèn~

 than it realizes.
of B

ayham
 or any visitors to death on the pier because our~ W

ayne T
aylor

Port B
urw

elL
. A

t least thee representatives didn't have the StraffordviZ
e

councillors from
 B

ayham
 have C

ourage to provide a cost-
t
h
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
b
e
h
i
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
r
e
s
c
u
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
i
n
 
,
,
'

',J
J
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õ,"uv.1aUVJ1 Vi UAl'l\:i)~-U-
grams" have been excellent.

So do what you can!
I hope a lot of people

showed up to this past
Monday's council meeting to
support the councilors who do
seem to care about our future.

. Steve Blankenship

A~~~imer
0f\\Q Ll ! ()f5

Deposit promised,
never returned

JVUI
Even though some in town

feel like they are caring their
duty to help pay down the

Complex and,its deficit, that is
fine, but we are not taking the
hand-off from our parents or
grandparents very well!

It is time for the boomers to
step up to the plate and take

more interest in what goes on

, I am writing in regards to

the letter about NRG withold-
ing deposits.

I am a business owner in

Aylmer and have been a resi-
dent ~ith perfect credit for 16

years.
In order for me to open my

business NRG required $4,000
from me. It's been over a year
and after repeated phone cals
and a very angr visit to NRG
I have gotten nowhere.

. Aldina Cavaco
Aylmer

calleCl iCllOts by Mr. Hueston's
late father, who wrote with
"class, style and panache,"

That was because the edito-
rial would not have contained
"venom and vulgarty" when

Mr. Hueston's father wrote it,
Cr. Vandermeersch said. And it
wouldn't have "incited public
disobedience," as Mr. Hueston
did when he suggested oppo-

nents of the house's demolition
chain themselves to the banis-
ter.

"I no longer look forward to
reading the Express-O-Gram,"
Cr. Vandermeersch said. "Any
idiot ful of crap can write an
editoriaL."

He added that when Mr.
Hueston heard chortling
arourid Aylmer Wednesday
morngs, when the newspaper

came out, it wasn't laughter
about the editorial cartoon.

"They're laughing at him,"
he said.

Cr. Vandermeersch, protest-

The old house simp)

n't suitable for a library

sion, she said. ..

She had been appoi
the town heritage CO!L

by council, she said, ( ", I
to be a good member.\.,

But her first and fc
diity was to make decisi
council as she had been
to do, whether they wert
lar or not.

What new business
want to come to a town
"idiot councilors ,'; she i

She had thought the :E
was a positive voice for 1
and area.

"Go figure," she said
cally, echoing a commer
the editorial.

Mayor Habkirk re
that he hadn't read the t
aI, "but I could careless

He was representig t
payers, and that vias

cared about, he said.

Ontario's 
Tobå

!

\
i

As of May 31, 2008, tobacco products cannot be lis. t, '
What does this meån? Tobacco products must be o~t (, .' . ~
on the Tobacco Display Ban, contact your Public ~E

TTY: i -800-387-5559. Or visit www.ontario.ca/smoke-. , . i
f

(\
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 c
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 d
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 f
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ho
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 c
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r
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 c
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B
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B

ur
ea

u,
 e
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e 
O

nt
ar

io
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 m
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 p
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f c
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 d
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s 
w
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, n
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e 

sa
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w
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 d
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h 
lo
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 p
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 d
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 c
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in

 g
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 c
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t
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h
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 C

ol
le

en
 F

itz
el

l
M
i
c
h
a
e
l
 
B
l
y
t
h
,
 
A
n
n
a
m
a
i

L
et

te
rs

 to
 tf

i,

L
e
f
t
 
o
u
t
:

I h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ea
di

g 
th

e 
ai

c1
es

 o
n 

N
R

G
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

ha
d

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 s

im
la

r 
to

 s
o:

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

W
he

n 
I m

ov
ed

 to
 to

w
n 

fi
ye

ar
s,

 a
go

 a
li 

I 
ha

d 
to

 d
o 

v
s
h
o
w
 
t
h
e
m
 

a 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

le
l

fr
om

 m
y 

pr
ev

io
us

 u
tit

y 
co

p
a
n
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
t
 
w
a
s
 
g
c

en
ou

gh
.

H
ow

ev
er

, l
as

t y
ea

r 
I 

bo
u

a 
ho

us
e 

an
d 

m
ov

ed
 a

bo
ut

 tl
b
l
o
c
k
s
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
t
o
w
n
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
i

pa
y 

a 
$3

00
 d

ep
os

it 
fo

r 
an

a
al

 g
as

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

de
sp

ite
 b

,
a 

cu
st

om
er

 fo
r 

al
m

os
t j

ye
ar

s. I a
sk

ed
 th

em
 to

 p
ro

vi
di

w
rt

ig
 h

ow
 th

e 
in

te
re

st
,

p
a
i
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
p
o
s
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
~

w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
r
e
t
u
e
d
.
 
T
h
e
y
 
4

ve
rb

al
y 

to
ld

 m
e 

in
te

re
st

 ~
pa

id
 a

nu
al

y 
at

 th
e 

ba
n'

:r
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
p
o
s
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
I

r
e
t
u
e
d
 
a
f
e
r
 
o
n
e
 
y
e
a
r
 
1

A
fe

r 
as

ki
g 

to
 s

ee
 th

e 
iI

es
t a

cc
um

ul
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
de

p'
no

n 
..'

" 
ni

nn
th

lv
 h

il 
T

w
as

:



~ffQv ~o "f\ A-t'1Yl t-~
/~-
!

June 11,2008

The Mayor and Council of the Municipality of Bay ham

Re: Natural Resource Gas Limited (NRG)

Dear Madame Mayor et al:

I am a long time customer of the local natural gas distributor NRG and a life:'long
resident of Bayham. My wife and I are currently building a new home at 54157 Heritage
Line about one half of a kilometre below Richmond; a community which NRG recently
extended its natural gas distribution service to. We were well aware that there was no' gas
service at this location when we purchased our propert on Heritage Line but NRG's
extension into Richmqnd gave us some hope that perhaps we could indeed connect to
NRG's gas service foi' our home energy needs.

Our building contractor 'frst contacted NRG on our behalf in this regard in October 2007.
I have worked in a utilty industry (telephone and cable) for over thirty years and as we
are not strangers to such requests, we made it very clear to NRG that we recognized there
would likely be a cost assessed to us for construction and that we were prepared to
entertain that. You see, we are ardent fans of the convenience and economics of natural
gas and we use it currently to fire our furnace, hot water heater (NRG rental no less),
stove and even our barbecue. We had plans to extend that to a cozy gas fireplace and a
standby electrical generator at our new location near Richmond. NRG advised our
contractor at that time that they would look at our request and get back to us.

i
We waited patiently for many months for an answer or at least some direction as to the
possibilty of gas from NRG as we planned our new home and we delayed key decisions
on home heating and appliances and such. Our contractor would on occasion remind
NRG of our enquiry and always received the same response; they were working on our
request.

I became quite frustrated at oiir wait and in early March 2008, went to NRG's Aylmer
offce to see the local manager whom I had worked with previously (He apparently has
since left the Company) and thus knew personally. It was not what I would call a pleasant
customer-friendly experience. I was refused access to the manager and after being
ignored for a sufficiently annoying period while the NRG receptionist handled several
calls that came into her switch board (well after I had come in her front door) and after
she had taken a payment from another customer that had come in to pay his bill, I was
finally ushered in to see a sales person. In contrast to the initial reception, the sales person
was very friendly but lrew nothing of our long standing request for consideration, of an

1



c
extension of the gas line to our new home and he brought in the company's engineer who
apparently looked after requests for such, service extensions. This gentleman

acknowledged that he knew of our request but had not yet had an opportunity to look into
it. Remember, this was some 4-5 months following our initial enquIly. I advised the two
of them that another new house was under construction between our home and Richmond
and that there was another home across the road that might perhaps be interested in the
service. There are also two brand new homes a few hundred metres up the hil in addition
to two or three older homes. The engineer promised to revisit our request. The sales
person acknowledged that NRG had some room for improvement in handling such
requests and assured me he would not let this fall through the cracks again.

Now, jump ahead to April 4, 2008. Stil awaiting an answer, I sent a plea for either a yes
or no response or better stil a firm esiimate of the cost of a service extension via email to
NRG to the attention of the sales person and the engineer. I reminded them of their
commitment to improving customer service. I received no answer whatsoever. However,
our contractor did have some communication with them immediately following my
emaiL. NRG advised him they would poll the neighbours to gage interest in natural gas
service and also advised that the cost to extend would likely be in the $6,000 range.

Following this "flurry" of communication, we once again descended into the black hole
ofNRG silence.

(
Now jump ahead to mid May. I received a call from an NRG employee who was
enquiring as to the exact location of our new home. He appeared to be looking on
Richmond Road rather than on Heritage Line. I redirected him and he advised me that he
was going to discuss the matter with our neighbours. He also raised the spectre of a
$6,000 cost ifno other customer was interested in the extension but they had not yet done
any engineering to verify that cost nor had they determined if they (NRG) would even
consider building the extension. He apologized for this matter having fallen through the
cracks (yet again) citing high employee turnover at NRG as the reason and he committed
to staying on top of this until we received an answer. Immediately thereafter, we once
again.descended into the NRG black hole.

I telephoned this employee at NRG on June 2, 2008 and was astounded to hear that since
the engineer had recently left the company, they could not provide me with a firm answer
on cost or even the likelihood of this extension request until a new engineer was hired.
He assured me though that they were conducting interviews.

Obviously, we are frustrated in the extreme by the treatment, or more accurately lack of
treatment, by this company. NRG enjoys a very privileged position in our municipality
through the franchise process and it, is after all a monopoly, near-essential service
provider. I firmly believe that you as our elected offcials bear a clear and distinct
responsibilty to the constituents of the municipality, not the utility, when awarding the
distribution franchise in Bayham. I do not lmow if NRG's franchise is due for
reconsideration, but I would suggest this 'company does not deserve to simply have its
renewal rubber stamped by our municipality. I understand clearly how diffcult it must be
to disenfranchise the utilty if that is deemed to be in Bayham's best long-term interests,
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but I suggest that this is no reason to simply renew NRG's monopoly in the municipality.
I do not suggest this simply because of the shabby treatment that we have received,

although if this is the way all potential customers are dealt with that is reason enough for
some serious scrutiny of this company. I am more compelled to demand this utilty be
carefìilly and thoroughly scrutinized, and sanctioned if warranted, as a result of the
stories of late in the letters to the editor of the Aylmer Express regarding NRG's
draconian deposit policy. I hope you are well aware of the plight and cries for help from
NRG customers who are required to pay substantial deposits to the utilty simply because
they move fi'om one location to another within the utilty's franchise area and the many
people who have been refused repayment of their deposits after establishing a perfectly
good payment and credit history with the utility. Indeed, these stories warrant
investigation into this company's business practices by all of the municipalities granting
franchise rights; otherwise the franchise process is obviously a façade. From the outside
looking in and based on the letters in the Aylmer Express, one might suspect NRG to be
cash flowing its business using deposit funds from its customers. This includes many
customers who don't warrant the collection of a security deposit in the first place. And, if
the information in the Aylmer Express is accurate, the OEB has no jurisdiction over the
collection and handling of customer deposits which, for a monopoly utilty, providing a
near-essential service, I find incredulous and something that needs to be changed. In the
local telephone service industry, deposit practices are regulated and controlled by the
CRTC through the Tariff process. Bayham's incumbent local telephone service provider
for example is in fact prohibited from collecting deposits from a customer unless the
customer refuses to provide credit information, or he has a bad credit and/or payment
history or he presents an abnormai risk of loss. Clearly NRG is entitled to employ
acceptable means to limit its exposure to bad debt but this Company appears to have
stepped far over the line of reason.

.)

My wife and I have pretty much abandoned any hope of having gas service at our new
home in time for fall occupation or in fact anytime in the near future but our experiences
with NRG and the growing public sentiment against this company's purported
questionable business practices and its apparent disregard for, customers would suggest
much greater oversight and scrutiny of this utilty is required by those in a position to do
so. That would include the Municipality of Bayham, the other municipalities that have
franchise agreements with the utilty and the OEB.

Yours truly,1/~~
Michael J. Andrews
Straffordv ile

CC Town of Aylmer, Township of Mala hide, OEB,
Hon. Steve Peters MPP, NRG
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( lfalaliide council.8

Wants NRG

policies 
looked at

c

Malahide council decided to
ontact all municipalities in

"hich Natural Resource Gas
,as a franchise 1 to encourage
he gas company to improve its
ustomer,service. Deadlines for
enewing' franchise agreements
vith NRG are in about two
ieal's.

,The decision by consensus

it the June 19 meeting was

;parked by a letter to Bayham
rownship council by one of its
'atepayers, Mike Andrews. The
,etterwas sent to surrounding

nunicipalities.
In his letter, Mr. Andrews

:old of fillstation at trying to

get gas service to a new home
being constructed on Heritage
Line, near Richmoi~d, an area

to which the gas eompany is
cUlTently expanding service.

perfectly good payment and
credit history with the utilty,

"Indeed i these stories war-
rant investigation into this
company's business practices
by all municipalities granting

c

No confirmation
Since his initial application

last October, he has not been

able to get confinnation that
service would be available or
an accurate cost estimate,

despite a number of personal

and wiitten inquiries,
He was told the service line

might cost $6,000 if none of his
neighbours subscribed to the
service,

Earlier ,this month he
learned the engineer dealing

with his application left the
company and he would have to
deal with a new engineer,
whenever one is hired.

He said the gas conipaiiy,
through its franchise, enjoyed a
monopoly in the municipality,

"I finlll~1 believe that you as
our elected officials bear a

franchise rights; otherwise the
frarchise process is obviously a
façade."
Council also waiting

Malahide Councillor
Chester Glinski said h~ himself

c1eaf and distinct responsibilty
to the constituents of the

municipality, not the utilty,
when awarding the distribution
franchise in Bayham."

He said he was not making
the suggestion based only on
the way he was treated 

but also

because of Aylmer Express sto-
ries and letters to the editor

regarding the company's 'secu-
rity deposit policy.

"I hope you are well aware

of the plight 'and cries for help
from NRG customers who are
required to pay substantial
depçiits to the utilty simply

because they move from one
location to another within the
utilty's franchise area and the
many people who have been
refused repayment of their
deposits after establishing a

had been waiting 10 years for
gas service.

He was always told the sen/-
ice would be available next
year and is stil waiting.

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2
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he park at 7:30 p,m.,
by fireworks at dusk.
jons to help pay for
events will be collect-
ie coniniunity centre

lot gates that night.

r
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.._J~

needy youngsters.neiu uy Ddl UJ IVIVIII\, .., , 'J....-. _..
John looks on. They were among some two
dozen riders to participate in the Aylmer

(AE Photo)

Wants NRG policies looked at
CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

Mayor John Wilson said he too
was frustrated by delays when
he applied to get service from a
gas line near his home.

He asked when the Clllent
franchise agreement expired

and was told 201 0 or 2011.
Clerk Administrator Randy

Milard said the former
Malahide Township tried to
establish five-year terms on the
franchise agreements to ensure
customer concerns w'ere
resolved but was forced into
25-year terms by Ontario

Energy Board.
The reasoning was the com-

pany needed adequate time to
recover its investment in the

service.
Deputy Mayor Dave

1. Mennil asked what would
happen if, the municipality did
not grant a neW franchise.
Mr. Milard said OEB

, .. wo,uld ,grant th~ franchise,
instead.
Keep records
Councilor George

Cleminshaw said he would
encourage customers to keep

accurate written record of their
dealings with NRG and bring
them to council in 2010 when
the franchise renewal was

being considered.

Mayor Wilson said the man-
ner in which customers were

being treated was "not the least
bit acceptable" .

He said he could fil a three-
ring binder with complaints

from people who felt they were
beI11g treated unfairly.

He suggested Malahide staff
consult with Bayham staff to
collectively determine whether
tlie combined municipalities
could do anything to help their
ratepayers, including consult-

ing with legal counseL.
"Maybe there's nothing we

can do but we should look into
it and also talk to our MPP."

After learning NRG provid-
ed service from Nilestown to
the Long point area he said he
would raise the inatter at the
next meeting of the South

excelling at customer rela-
tions," Cr. Ed Ketchabaw said.
Perhaps the municipality
should have a word with the
utility.

Administrator Kyle Kruger
said NRG's three franchise
agreements (for the former

Bayhmn Township and the vil-
lages of Vienna and Port
Burwell) would start coming

up for renewal in 2012.
He didn't believe Bayham

could dictate temis to NRG,
but some conditions would be
open to negotiation then.

Mayor Lynn Acre suggested
staff send a letter to Mr.
Andrews to let him knoW
Bayham would folloW up on
his complaint when the fran-
chise agreements were negofi-
ated.

Central Ontario Region munic-
ipal partnership since most of
its member municipaliies also
had NRG service,

He suggested staff also con-
taèt all those municipalities.

"I don't think we should

take this lying down. The com-
pany can't simply walk away

from people."
No choice

Councilor Max Moore said
NRG customers had no choice,
"they are essentially being held
prisoner. If it was another busi-
ness such as a grocery or car
sales they could go elsewhere.

"It's just not right that the
public is being used that way."

Mr. Andrews's letter was
also discussed at the June 19
Bayham council 

meeting.

NRG "doesn't seem to be. J', ,"' . .' . ;..". -h .),"

ceCA approves perl1iit
for new portBruce house

Catfish Creek Conservation as the former structure.
Authority issued a permit for It would include a foundation

construction of a new house at with a maximum four-foot heat-
3560 Imperial Road in Port ed crawlspace.

Bruce. The main floor and all elec-
At the June CCCA meeting, trical circuits would be above

planning coordinator Tony CCCA's flood proofing eleva-
Difazio said the owners, Dave tion.
and KiIJ Green wanted to On a motion by Bil Aarts
replace a single-family hou~e and George Cleminshaw the
that burned down. permit was granted provided the

They plan to construct a 28- neW structure conformed to
by-51-foot residence with an drawings submitted by the
attached garage. applicants and no neW fil be

He said the new house would brought to the area without prior
have a similar building footprint approvaL.

Karate group gets
rental fee break

Catfish Creek Conservation
Authority voted to cut its rental
rate to Springwater school
house for a karate class being
held at the park, Mondays until
Aug. 25.
General Manager Kim

Smale said the cUl1ent rate was
$10 a. day plus the day-use

entrance fee of $5 per vehicle,

He recommended a flat fee of
$50 a day.

The building would only be
used in the event of rain,
The motion by George

Cleminshaw and Bill Aarts was
passed unanimously,
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(Energy board plans toregulate gas company
security deposits

The Ontario Energy Board
is proposing to regutate the

imposition of security deposits
by gas companies.

In its notice of the proposed
amendment, the OEB said the
proposed regulation would be
similar to that aleady applied

to electricity distributors. '
Under the Public' Utilties

Act, gas distributors can
require a "reasonable security"

deposit as a condition of sup-

plying or continuing to supply

\ natural gas. And, security

\ deposit requirements were attle: disc¡r,etion of the lndiyidual
\':'2:gås:.c.~fi~#a~~;;t::':::"::~",. .' .:

Earlier this year several

Aylmer and area residents told
The Aylmer Express they were
frustrated by delays in the
promised return of security
deposits by Natural Resource
Gas Ltd.

Some moved to this district
in recent years while others

simply moved into new homes
or different neighbourhoods.

All were required to pay a
minimum $500 security
deposit. Some of those dep d, its
have since been ,re:(u' in

full with interest/6th"" it-
ed to the custoir~r's., ac ..', nt, ;,¡

lI~ti'0mINú¡jø~P~ 4\;l
~ :." '. ~:~:~~:~..t'~.;.-.~~ ~-~.:~j :

ö -"". - ._. - - -.c -- ""

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

while several 'received only

partial refunds without detailed
explanation. '

Jeanette Brubacher is a.

member of ail organized group ¡
of Eust Elgin resinents dissatis- !
fied with the NRG policy. .

They investigated P9ssible
legal action but, "A class action'
lawsuit would be very costly i
we have been told, and for a :
$500 deposit, people are not '
interested in merely sinking all
that into a lawsuit if it would
be possible to get deposits

returned without the legal
action."

She said they chose to work
with officials from Elgin-,
Middlesex-London MPP Steve
Peters', office as well as a rep-
resentative of the OEB to make
changes:

As for the pi'oposed changes'
to security deposit policy she

said they "were extremely

excited to see that the OEB is
in fact listening 'to us ,and try-'

ing to help' us out.
"Our ultimate

1)

i

i?
i

have legislation put in place to,

--7, protect gas .consumers acrossthe province, so what has hap-
pened in Aylmer and surround-
ing area doesn't happen else-
where."

shé said some customers

were' ~ettng their deposits I
refunded as credits and did not
consider that fair. '

"We' had to, give NRG a i
lump sum deposit in 'cash, I
cheque or by debit and I was i
personally told that it would be I
retumed in the form of a .cheque. I

"That only seems fair as that
is how I had to give it to them. 

I.

"Now they want to return'
(the deposits) in the form of a 'credit? . I

"The money is' stil' in I
NRG's' hands with this policy I
not the consumer. People are

?ot happy with this, but say it I
is at .least a start. !

"We would like to urge ¡
everyone to check the link and I'
read the proposed amendment i
on the OEB...w&hsite.. and to '/'
comment directly toth~'dEit"¡';.(
. On t~lat"website, OEB off- I

cials sa~d, The lack of consis- i
tency. 11 t~i:ms of security ¡

d~p~sit policies between gas I
distributora, and the Inconsis- I
t~nt appliêation of those poli-
cies to individual consumers

by individual gas distributors
has been the subject of concer~
raised with the board by con-

sumers and consumer groups."
The OEB proposal is to

amend the Gas Distribution
Access Rule "to ensure that
consiimer~ were treåted fairly
and subject to consistent

requirements across .' t1ie
pi:pvince" .

Gas .companies are subject
to the nsk of customer default

ai~d ?ad debt. ,Security deposits
aie 1Icluded' 11 rate base used
to calculate a gas distributor's
working cap,ital and overiill
revenue requirement before theOEB. .

~



(

Ý-'
i

i

i

"Greater consistency in i
, terms of security deposit poli-
cies wil also serve to minimize'
over-col1éction by a gas dis-

tributor in a manner that might.
artificially enlarge its pool of
low-cost working capitaL"

Each gas company would be
required to fif? its Sec~rity

deposit policy with' OEBand
make copies available to the
public and any customer or

prospective customer on
request. .
, They would not be required

to collect a security deposit

from a customèr that has a
good payment history, pro-
vides a satjsfactorY.'arëdit .'1
check or has ån AAA;,: orjJetier "!

credit rating. , ,..,.r', I
"Customers with,' 'if' good

payment history geiÌeraI1ý do
not represent a ?iateri~i. rion-
payment risk fQr the gå~':; dis-
tributor, and in' the Bôard's

view it is unreasonable to

require they provide a security.
deposit." . , , ,

The energy boai:d is also
proposing that customers be

pe:rmitted to' pay any required
security deposit, in four equal
monthly instalments.

Interest on security deposits
would accrue monthly, at a pre-

. scribed rate, and paid out at' r
least once every 12 montns. or
earlier. ", "
. Gas companies would he

required to review eaçti s,~Guri~

ty deposit at least onCe annqal" '
ly; and return or adjust the

amount of a customer's securi-
ty, deposit. where: warrariteQ

based on current circum-
stances.

For example, a sepurity'
deposit ;"ould néeÇi. to be ;,
returned when a custori~r has

.~'~lli~¿~fittt'~b¿fl~~i~R
tory, or would ',need ,to ,be
adjusted where a custonièr's
credit rat,ing ha~ i~pro:e~., '

Reviews of the deposits
would :be, required on customer
demand however, 'such request
can not be made more .than '
once a year.

Deposits would be required
to be repaid with interest with-
in six weeks of a custoiter
closing an account, "subj~ct tö'
the gaa distributor's right to

I Use the security deposit tq off-

set amounts owing by thecus-
, tomerto the distributor".-
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February 2, 2009

Ontario Energy Board
P.O Box 2319, 2th Floor
2300 Yonge Street
Toronto, ON M4P 1 E4

Attn: Kirstin Walli

Board Secretary

Re: EB-2008-0413

Dear Ontario Energy Board:

This letter is to comment on the application by Natural Resource Gas Ltd. to renew its franchise
agreement with the Town of Aylmer. We want the OEB to know that we are in FULL support of
ALL nine conditions The Town of Aylmer has proposed for the renewaL. We feel that all nine of
these conditions would help to correct a lot of the problems The Town of Aylmer's (and others in
NRG's territory) residents have had in the past couple years. While NRG has taken small steps
( mostly in response to many complaints and pressure from the DEB) to correct some of the
issues their customer's have had with the deposit policies, customer service issues, and gas
service issues; we feel there are still a lot of progress to be made by NRG in these areas.
By having these conditions in the franchise agreement, it would ensure that the DEB would be
able to intervene if at any time one or more of these issues should become a problem once

C, again.
Since last spring many people have written letters to the DEB, our MPP Steve Peters, Ministry
of Energy and Infrastructure, Minister of Small Business, and the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing. The answers we have received are that ALL are aware of the problems we have
had with NRG, but ALL seem to pass the problem onto someone else. The conditions in this
franchise renewal give us the protection we have long been seeking. Since NRG has a
monopoly in this area, consumers are left with very little options and NRG has taken full
advantage of that fact).

It is time that we, as consumers get some protection.

So once again, we want to make the OEB aware that we are in FULL support of ALL NINE of
the conditions The Town of Aylmer has proposed for the Franchise RenewaL.

Sincerely,

Jeanette Brubacher
Danielle Lalonde
Russ Monteith
Marcie Tenk
Hans & Mary Giesbrecht
Brian & Kathy Williams

l- enclosures
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Natural Resource Gas Petition to Change Deposit Policy

petition text signatures email friends

The petition

We are asking that NRG carefully review their deposit policy requirements. We ask that they
take into account letters of reference from other utility companies as well as past credit history
with them. We also ask that they have a clear policy for refunding deposits. We ask that
deposits be FULLY refunded automatically one year to the date that the deposit was made if
an account is in good standing. Also the deposit should be refunded in the form of a cheque
or cash and NOT in the form of credit to the account.

Sign the petition

Fields marked * are required.

* Name: i. .............. ...... .................... ........ ...... ............................

* Email: L._______.___J

comm...l
~.

-~

(
C Display my name as anonymous on the signatures list

ø Yes, i want iPetitions to contact me on similar campaigns or petitions.--

Petition sponsor

This petition is from anyone who is or has
been a former Natural Resource Gas
(NRG) customer.

Links

MlobvGoIe ..

Free Online
Backup Trial
Succssful
Businesses
Choose DDS Get
The Award
Winning Service
Now!
DataDepositBox.com

The views expressed in this petition are
solely those of the petition's sponsor and
do not ¡n any way reflect the views of
iPetitions. ¡Petitions is solely a provider
of technical services to the petition
sponsor and cannot be held liable for
any damages or injury or other harm
arising from this petition. In the event no
adequate sponsor is named. iPetitions
wil consider the individual account
holder with which the petition was
created as the lawful sponsor.

iPetitions is owned and operated by Angle Three Associates, LLC - All material (¡ Copyright Angle Three Associates, LLC, 1998-2006 - terms of use
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Signatures I Total: 65

# Name

Anonymous

2 Sharon Brown

3 Larry Brown

4 Merlin
Brubacher

FAF!rlhad - Adi; hv r.nnnlA

Page G7fišlT" prev 11 I 2 I next ;;~8

Comments

NRG should stop using MY $500.00 deposit (along with many other customer
deposits) to keep running their company and return it to my promptly as they
claim they would do when the deposit was made. Stop stallng and coming up
with excuses and pay upl!!!!

NRG needs some competition and then maybe they would treat their customers
honestly and stop all the stall tactics and excuses for not returning deposits made
by customers. What a monopoly for this area.

NRG definitely needs to review iI's deposit policy. Being the only natural gas
5 Lorraine Watters company in our area, the consumer really has no choice but to work with NRG

towards a more customer friendly program.

I have been a customer of NRG's off and on for almost 15 years - I have a rental
propert. Last year when my tenants moved out I was told i had to pay a security
deposit.My tenants didn't have to when they moved to their new housel

6 Kelly Customer service at NRG is rude and condescending. They really need to keep
their stories straight as every time you call them you get a different response. i
thought we lived in a free country? Why don't we have a choice in our gas
supplier in East Elgin???

If you have a perfect payment history with them for your very first year and since
there is no reason that you should not get your deposit back. Especialy when you
only spend $600 - $700 per year. (the deposit is almost a full years worth of
payments BULL SHIT as far as I am concerned)

(

7 Ben VanHarn

8 Anonymous

9 Anonymous

sharon
10 chamberlain

Jeanette
11 Brubacher

12 Heather Anger

13 Debbi Burnie

14 Susan Wiltsie

(..
15 Katherine Burt

What is the reason i cannot get my deposit back? I have not been a customer
since March 10/08. This clearly shows how any utilty, that is a monopoly,
manipulates iI's position.

What a monopoly this is. Give people back their deposits as promised and start
accepting letters of reference. When you decide to go into business you
automatically assume the risk that some people may not pay their bil, or may be
slow. That doesn't mean you can penalize EVERYONE for it. NRG has no idea
what true customer service is and it is no wonder they have an ad in the paper
every other week needing employees. I wouldnl' want to work for them either with
the attitudes in that offce. If they refuse me my deposit I wil see them in court.

Their current 'policy' has discouraged us from installng two gas fireplaces. We
have decided to persue propane.

I agree with the above, but I would be in favour of having the option of the funds
used as a credit to the account.

I just signed on to NRg and might not have had I read the Aylmer Express letters





16 Larry Jeffery

17 Tammi Hawley

18 Anonymous

19 anita

20 Brendan &
Nancy Boverhof

21 Judy Sawatzky

22 Joanne Rokeby

23 jim smith 

24 Marge Friesen-
Loewen

25 Neil & Nettie
Dyck

26 Mary Dyck

27 Melissa Irwin

28 john loewen

29 Anonymous

( 30 Anonymous

31 Cindy Paget

32 Peter&margaretTops

33 Anonymous

34 Doug and JaniceMcCallum

35 Daniel Irwin

36 Brenda Smith

37 Cindy Martin

38 Kathy willams

c.,
39 Russ Monteith

regarding the deposits. NRG's leaders are obviously slimeballs. The NRG at their
annual meeting should take the CEO and give him a one way ticket anywhere.

They are a ripoff and i totally agree with you, they are unreliable and do always
charge a deposit.

I think it is just rude of them to gladly except your money and when it comes to
their end of the bargin, they don't hold it up. I would expect more from a big
company like this. This was my first time owning a house, I had no idea what i
was getting myself into. In good faith I trusted them and they take advantage of
that.

NRG doesn't treat their employees any better than their customers. BEWARE
anyone thinking of applying for a job with them. i haven't worked for them
personally but I know people who have.

I cannot beleive a business can get away with this!!I!!!!!!!!!!!!I!!!!!!I111!11!111I

if nrg had some competion in aylmer they might treat people abil better

its prett sad when decent hards working people are held resposible for the
actions of those in the world who dont care to pay their bills...if someone is in
good standing then their deposit should go back to them on time no questions
asked

i think the current situation with NRG security deposits is outrageous and that a
full investigation into this practice by NRG should be investigated by the OEB,
OPP, the Ministry of Energy and or local MPP. Thank youl

I have been waiting to receive my security deposit since July 06, and stil getting
the run around. At least I am one of the lucky ones because I have a receipt.

To me this is stealing I was told after 12 months we would get our money back
then they tell you we changed our policy.

the time has come foe a better gas supplier,NRG is the only supplier.Nrg needs to
have there knukkles rapped hard for the way the treat the general public. maybe
competition in an area where only one supplier exist would smarten these people
up

II's almost been 2 years since I gave NRG a $500 deposit. They told me I could
get this refund back in 1 year. I sent them a letter requesting my refund & that my
account was in good standing. They replied back, saying that they could not
refund me this year & to re-apply next year, which wil be in August. This is
absolutely ridiculous. They are earning interest on my money. Account has been
in good standing---my payments are automatically taken out of my account
monthly. Unfortunately, I can't attend the meeting on Tuesday, so please keep me
informed of our options that can be taken.

I have been fighting to receive my deposit back for a year. Our credit is in good
standing, no problems what so ever. We own our home of 26 years. NRG finally
returned $250 (half) six months ago after getting the continuos run around from
them. I was told we could apply for the other half next year but it was unlikely I
would receive it. I can't beleive a business can get away with treating numerous
customers so badly. Poor business ethics all around.

i feel that the OEB should look into the practice of deposits with NRG and should
open the markett to other companies





iam not with nrg right now, but a couple of years ago we were. I remember we
40 Susi Neustaeter had to call and go in person several times to argue about getting our money

returned. Finally after several months of frustration we got it back II

NRG should respect its customers. I don't believe in deposits unless of course,
the company has had a bad payment history with them. Credit histories can be
wrong so I don't put much faith in them. Deposits should be refunded in a timely
manner - with interest. If i wasn't a customer now I sure wouldn't start now.

(,

41 Rosemary

42 Paul Hewson

43 Marcie Tenk

44 Bett McCabe

45 Barb Taylor 

46 Anonymous

47 Brenda A. 

Simons

48 Gail Kilough

49 Anonymous

50 Mary Giesbrech

c Signatures I Total: 65

(~

I feel that the money owed to people when you say that they are to get their
refund should be on that day NO later or NRG should be charged a fee just like
they would do to us if we had a late fee. I feel that this deposit should not have to
be given when you have proof of good record. I feel that NRG is using the money
for themselves and no other reason. You are a business like any other and should
be trusted when given money and when you say you are going to give the money
back, then GIVE IT BACK!!II!

I lived in Springfield "YEARS" ago..never did get my propert deposit back.

i have been dealing with NRG for 8 years now (3 houses) and I still had to pay a
deposit that I will probably not get back come Nov

"good standing" should be clarified to indicate "up to date, and not outstanding"
because their definition of "good standing" means you are PERFECT and have
NEVER EVER forgotten to pay on time.

Page L::::.w~!..I.::..P~~I/_W..?.I.D.e,xt.".J..I~~t..".::J
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# Name Comments

51 Netti Wall

52 Gloria Fehr

Bob and
53 Toniette

Giesbrecht

54 Carol Bolt

55 JuliannaDaniel

56 Nelly Peters

57 Peter & Sara
Loewen

58 Ric Murray 

59 MCLELLAN
MARIA

60
Amanda
Smith

61 Anonymous

62 john smith

63 Sabrina
Scrimegour

64 Anonymous

65 David Bell

Signatures I Total: 65

I also think that any new customers should have a written agreement with NRG and
have it ratified by their lawyers as these people obviously cannot be trusted. I would
personally never deal with them again and if i did that is how it would have to be for
me. I want to see the Trust Account where they are keeping our money up front. i
bet you the law says they have to put our money into a trust account in the
consumer protection act.

We have been with NRG for two years and never missed a payment, and they are
not giving us our deposit back. I think that they treat people this way cause they are
the only Natural gas company in Aylmer and i think that they should be booted out.
The township of Aylmer should not allow this to continue. It doesn't matter how good
your Payment history is with them, they wil think up an excuse every time not to
give you your deposit back! They need to be dealt with !!i !!

i really feel that NRG needs to give back to the customers what is theirs. when we
have to make a deposit thaI's one thing, BUT to always being denied is wrong. the
deposit is not given to NRG as a gift. The Golden Rule!!! Do unto others as you
would have them do to you...

Page r~,,..rir~~.E..E~yJ._!W.i:.E,~?:..I..I~~!":'..J
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\. I want to take this opportunity to thank the Mayor and Council for giving me tlus . .

opportnity to speak to you regarding NRG and their deposit policies and customer
service issues. As you are all aware there have been a lot of aricles in our local
newspaper surrounding the unhappiness with NRG and their business practices. More
recently the article in the paper was regarding Bayham and Malahide Townships stepping
up to the plate and doing something about this. I would hope that you would adopt the
same policy as Malahide and Bayham did. I am here tonight to request that The Town of
Aylmer also get involved in such a way as to back up the tax payers in their fight against

. . NRG. You have received a copy of a petition that has been posted at local business
establishments as :,e11 ~s.onli~!lnd i-~J"~cei~ed a hu~e response. There are over 500
names so far on this petit10n arta'dffine *ls still growing, Most of the comments on the
petition call NRG's business dealings a monopoly. People feel like they have no choice
either pay the deposit or you don't get gas, that simple. They feel like they are being held
hostage. The money has been given to NRG in good faith believing what they were told,
that it would be fully returned within one year. However, people are finding out that this
is not the case. Many people in this area are people on fixed incomes or young couples
starting out and were depending on that money being returned in full as promised. Other
people are afraid to come forward in fear öfhaving their gas shut offfor their

involvement. However if an account is paid up to date that cannot happen according to
the Ontaro Energy Board, During ths process of finding out just how many people are
unhappy with NRG's business practices 4 of us have come together and formed a
committee to come up with ideas of what can be done and act on them. So far we have
contacted the Ontaro Energy Board numerous times to ask them to act on these
complaints they have received, and to hold a public hearing regarding NRG. So far the
only response we have received is that they have launched an investigation into NRG, but
have not received any details of that. We also contacted our MPP Mr. Steve Peters
Offce and were told the same thing there, that they are well aware of the situation at
hand, but are in contact with the Ontario Energy Board and they are doing an
investigation into them. On June 17tli, our. committee held a public meeting where
approx. 30 people were in attendance, including Offcer Gus Legrandeur from the
Aylmer Police. He informed us that there is an ongoing police investigation into NRG at
the present time. Anyone who wishes to fie a complaint regarding :NItG should go see
him at the police station. So this is where we stand at this time. Our request to you
Mayor and Councilors is to join forces with the surrounding townships and .our fight
against NRG. This would send a strong message to the Ontario Energy Board in dealing
with of deposit returns, servicing issues and customer service problems. We ask that
council also consider sending the Ontario Energy Board a letter putting pressure on them
to hold a public hearing into these matters. It has also been brought to my attention
recently that NRG's contract is up for renewal in the near future. We ask that this
contract NOT be renewed and that another gas supplier provide us with our natural gas,
We ask that you contact our MPP Mr. Steve Peters as well as the Ontario E:rergy Board
and speak out against what is happening to your tax payers. If you have any further
questions regarding what I have presented to you tonight, I would be happy to try to
answer them for you. Again I thank you for this Opportuiuty and ask that you join our
fight!

(
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N,ATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

Supporting Your Natural. GasI-,~fçstyie

SECURITY DEPOSIT CALCULATION (NEW GAS APPLICATIONS)

When a neW customerwalks through the door andappHes for a new gas
hookup, the customer's information is given to the Credit/Collections
Department. Once approval from the 'customer to-pull a credit report is
obtained via signature, a credit report is pulled and reviewed.

If the customer's credit report shows that they have a Credit Beacon Score of
over 680 and a Credit Utilization Score under 50%, then Natural Resource
Gas'Limited can waive the security deposit entirely. '

New customers coming in to hook up existing gas accounts for gas service -,

,Calculate the security deposit based on 2.5 times the' average of the 3
tiighest months of MCF consumption of the address that thecustorner is
applying for gas. The receptionist wil then inform the customer as to how
much the security deposit wil be paged on the calculation above or if it is
waived if the customer's meet the above criteria.

SECURITY DEPOSIT POLICY

SECURITY DEPOSIT REVIEWS ON ANNIVERSARY OF ACCOÙNIS

In reviewing security deposits, we require our 
customer's to meet the

following requirements: '
1.) If the customer's payment history has no late payments witnin 12
'months= 50% security deposit refund. .

2.) If the customer's payment history 
has no late payments within 24

mOl1ths= 1000/0 security deposit refund.

3.) If the custòmer has a disconnection notice within éither timeframe, or
a late payment, than 0% of the security deposit will be returned. The
customer must then have a full 12 months of clean payment history in
order to qualify for the 50% refund.

':; ~~~\~.

, NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED' P.O. Box 307, Aylmer. Ontario N5H 2S1 I TeI.19-173-5321 I rax.519-17-5335
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RESIDENTIAL SECURITY DEPOSIT CONTRACT

How does our Security Deposit program work? Why does it exist?
Thank you for choosing natural gas as your energy sourcel NRG takes great pride In being a financially
responsible provider of natural gas In our community. Protection of rates and costs associated with
servicing our community are our number one priority. As such, the Introduction of security deposits Is a
necessary step to try to protect both NRG & our gas tustomers from Increased rates resulting from non
paying customers.

Security Deposits are not a prepayment of gas.

When do Security Deposits Apply?
Security deposits are requested for all new customers - both commercial & residential. The amount of the
deposit Is determined based on usage history applicable to the specific address In which gas service Is
Installed or will be Installed. The security deposit can be held Indefinitely with Interest paid annually as a
credit right on your October statementl Accounts with poor payment history with NRG wil likely require a
security deposit prior to the continuation of service.

How do I apply?
Requests for a refund of security deposits can be made after 1 year of servIce for residential accounts and
3 years for commercial accounts and must be made In writing to our credit department. Your letter must
Include your address, account number and stating you are applying to have your SecurIty DeposIt
refunded. Please Include a copy of your original receipt. Our Credit Department can be contacted:

Fax
Email
Mail

519-773-5335
creditdept(§ nrgas.on.ca
39 Beech Street, PO Box 307, Aylmer, ON N5H 2S1

Once received, a thorough examination of the following criteria will be performed and a decision made.
I

C.
i

1.) If the customer's payment history has no late payments within 12 months= 50% security deposit
refund.

2.) If the customer's payment history has no late payments within 24 months= 100% security
deposit refund.

3.) If the customer has a disconnection notIce within either tlmeframe, or a late payment, than 0%
of the security deposit wil be returned. The customer must then have a full 12 months of clean
payment history In order to qualify for the 50% refund.

You wil be notified In writing of our decision and at the discretion of NRG, a portion of your deposit, In
whole or In part, wil be returned to you. Interest accrued (1% per year) will be applied directly to your
account every October. If pre-authorized chequlng Is setup on your account, you cannot cancel the pre-
authorized chequlng for 2 years.

NRG believes that the security deposit program Is In the best Interests of all our natural gas customer's.
These deposits are not a pre-payment of gas, and are Intended as an Industry accepted best practice to
help manage natural gas rates for our customers.

Please be advised that any future communIcations should be In writing.

If you have any questions, please feel free to send via mall address below, or via email at
credltdeptt1nrgas.on .ca.

Thank You,

Natural Resource Gas Limited
Credit Department

Customer's Name (Printed):

I

l-

Customer's Signature: Date:

NRG Representative: Date:

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED P.O. Box 307, Aylmer, Ontario N5H 281 TeL. 519-773-5321 I Fax. 519-773-5335
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Town of Aylmer
46 Talbot Street W
Aylmer, On
N5H 117

January 15,2009

Att: Heather Adams

Re: Customer Notification/ Security Deposit

As previously discussed, we have attached a copy of our Security Deposit Policy. This
policy wil be distributed tö all NRG Customers as an enclosure with their February
biling. Our revised policy notes, that the OEB is presently reviewing the provincial

utilty securty policies and wil be establishing a standard to be followed when finalized.

Our Credit Deparent reviews customer security deposit requests, on a daily basis, and
process refuds for those who qualify. Additionally, we now are automatically reviewig
accounts on the anversary date of original security deposit.

If we can be of any assistance for futue matters, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours truy,-.,~
Jack Howiey - - - - \
General Manager
Natural Resource Gas Limited

.1

, "

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED I P.O. Box 307, Aylmer, Ontario N5H 281 I TeL. 519-773-5321 I Fax. 519.773.5335
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Natural Resource Gas Limited

TO OUR VALUED CUSTOMERS,

FOR YOUR INFORMATION ONLY, BELOW is OUR CURNT SECURITY DEPOSIT POLICY.

RESIDENTIAL SECURITY DEPOSIT POLICY

How does our Security Deposit program work? Why does it exist?
Thank you for choosing natural gas as your energy source! NRG takes great pride in being a financially responsible

, provider of natural gas.iii our conununity. Protection of rates and costs associated with servicing our community are
our number one pl'ority. As such, the introduction of security deposits is a necessary step to tr to protect both NRG &

, our gas customers'fì:om increased rates resulting fi'om non paying customers,

Security Deposits are not a prepayment of gas.

When do Security Deposits apply?
Security deposits are requested for all new customers - both commercial & residentiaL. The amount of the deposit is
determined based on usage history applicable to the specific address in which gas service is installed or wil be
installed. For all security deposits held, interest wil be paid annually as a credit right on your October statement.
Accounts with poor payment history wtth NRG wil likely require a security deposit pdor to the continuation of
service,

How do I apply?
Requests for a refund of security deposits can be made after 1 year of service for residential accounts by writig to our
credit departent. Your letter must include; address, account number and state that you are applying to have your

Secul'ty Deposit refunded. Please include a copy of your original receipt. Our Credit Department can be contacted
at:

'.-!

Fax
Email
Mail

519-773-5335
ci'editdepttãnrgas.on.ca
39 Beech Street E, PO Box 307, Aylmei', ON N5H 2S1

Once received, a thorough examination of the following critel'a will be performed and a decision made.

1.) Iftlie custOl1ei"s paymcnt history has no late payments within 12 months = 50% security deposit refund

2.) If the customer's'payment history has no late payments within 24 months = 100% security deposit refund
3.) If the customer has a disconnection notice within either timeframe, or a late payment, than 0% of the security

deposit wil be returned. The customer must then have a full 12 months of clean payment history in order to
. qualify for the 50% refund.

You wil be notified in writing of our decision and at the discretion ofNRG, a portion of your deposit, in whole, or iii
pait, wil be returned to you. Interest accrued (1 % per yeai') wil be applied dii'ectly to your account every October.

NRG believes that the' security deposit prograni is in the best interest of al natural gas customers. These deposits ai'e
not a prepayment of gas, and are intended as an industry accepted best practice to help maiiage natural gas rates for our
customers.

Please be advised that any future conuuunication should be in writig.

* The Ontai'io Energy Board is currently developing a standardized framework or policy for collection and
administering security deposits by gas distributors. The board has proposed to do this by means of amendments to the
gas distribution access rule ("GDAR") in EB-2008-03 13. No final decision on these proposed changes has yet been
established. NRG wil comply when advised as to the date of commencement of these changes and you wil be
advised of any changes to our current policy. .

If you have any questions, please feel fì:ee to send via mail to the address below, or via email at
creditdept(liu'gas.on .ca.

P.O. BOX 307,39 BEECH ST. EAST, AYLMER, ONTARIO N5H 2S1 (519) 773.5321
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Heather Adams

From: Heather Adams

Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2008 1 :03 PM

To: Mayor; PhilTtIstockwaods.ca; Bob Habkirk

Subject: Summary of meeting with GraaUBristal re NRG

Here's a summary of today's meeting (Thursday i Sept. 11, 08) with NRG natural gas company principles Mark Bristoll and
Tony Graat.

They introduced themselves as Mark is the President and Mr. Graat .Is just and interested party - he represents his family
who own the company" and then explained how they bought is in the 80"s, etc.

Mayor Habklrk outlned the concerns which have been brought to our attention by the public concerning the deposit issue
and customer service and noted that Council and staff stil continue to get complaints about NRG from customers. We
noted that therE! is a real issue with the negative public image of NRG and how that plays In both the community and With
prospective residents/companies, etc. when they consider Aylmer.

NRG outlined how they need to collect their bils, need to keep the company running effciently in order to keep rates low,
etc. etc. They did outlne that they had put resources toward dealin.g with the deposit Issue. They noted they had a new
GM, Jack Howley, they gave us a copy of their written Residential Security Deposit Contract, they noted that they have
recently begun to review the deposit levels and some deposits or partial deposits have been returned following this review.

They assured us the monies were there, they noted the Aylmer Police inquires, etc.

We explored the concerns expressed by some prospective businesses in not wanting to deal with NRG. The Mayor raised
the issue of_and NRG says they !lave a good relationship with the owners and they can't understand this.

We emphasized that whatever the real facts of individual cases, that the public was 
extremely upset with NRG, that 400 +

people had signed a petition and this was precedent setting for that number of people to sign a petition In Aylmer, that our
businesses were upset and that there needed to be significant improvement In the public perception/reputation of NRG in
the community. That the negative Issues out there were hurting the residents, the Town, the community, our businesses
and NRG.

We explored the fact that NRG doesn't deal with the Town at all - they don't return calls (Mark noted he did and we agreed
but not one else does) - they don't respond to requests to review Infrastructure replacement drawings - they don't attend
preconstruction meetings, etc. Mr. Graat promised this would change and they gave the GM - Mr. Howley as the contact
person. They then called and Invited him down to the meeting so we could meet him and he would know us.

We raised the issue of the Union Gas letter to the OEB - Mr. Graat said he .dldn't know about It - Mark did. They
essentially dismissed it as Union causing trouble to further their own interests and dismissed it as none of our concern as
obviously the natural gas would nat be turned off.

Despite the fact that we tried to keep the IGPC Issues out of the discussion, they Insisted In explaining to us that they had
met every deadline and every commitment required. I responded that while It would be better to not discuss IGPC Issues, I
had in fact reviewed a lot of documents 011 the matter and that I could see where that was not always the case. Then Mr. G
agreed that we should Just put that behind us and move forward - that they intend to cooperate with IGPC in the fuure-
that they need the customers/business too, etc.

Mr. Gnoted that he appreciated our frankness during the meeting and that we were very welcoming to them.

At the end we noted that we had received their letter with the franchise agreement and we would be reviewing It, what
conditons we would need and woUld get back to them.

We ended with a mutual understanding that they needed to Improve their customer service reputation. (I think we all
agreed that is) It was a surprising cordial and meeting given the topics discussed.

Heather Adams

1/29/2009
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Heather Adams
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From: Heather Adams

Sent: Wednesday, September 17,20085:47 PM

To: Mark J. Bristoll
Subject: Request for Info re NRG/Comsatec Issues

Importance: High

Hi Mark

Thanks for your phone call requesting information regarding the issues the Town and its natural gas aggregator
Comsatec have had with NRG.

The Town, behalf of the East Elgin Community Complex and all Town accounts entered into a contract with
Comsatec in July 2006 for the purchase of natural gas as part of the Elgin-Middlesex-Oxford Purchasing Group.

These are some of the Issues that we and Comsatec on our behalf have had with NRG.

First even though notice was given to NRG by Comsatec as required by the OEB rules, it was not until more than
3 months after the contract was signed that NRG made the conversion and quit charging us your regular market
commodity rate.

Second, there was an issue regarding the way that NRG bil for the transportation of natural gas. Below is an
excerpt from an e-mail from Comsatec dated Nov 12, 2007 which outlines the issue -

Comsatec has finally cleared up that NRG sites are to be billed separately for transportation of gas on
TransCanada Pipelines. So the Invoices that we have been receiving from NRG for Transport are proper
and we intend to pay the outstanding NRG invoices now.

The rate set by the National Energy Board for pipeline is about 98 cents per GJ or 3.693 cents per cubic
metre. Filngs at the OEB indicate that all direct purchase customers are to receive them. We do not
receive them for the County of Elgin which was bewildering, but I learned in October that they are being
invoiced directly.

In other utilties, transport charges are collected as part of the OEB -approved Delivery charge that goes
to the utilty. NRG is unique in charging it as part of the gas supply charge. The high Delivery charge from
NRG suggested to us that like the other utilities, It included the transportation tolls; it is 15.3 cents/cubic
metre and 10.4 cents per cubic metre after 1000cubic metres). Union Gas charges a litte under 10 cents
for delivery including transportation
hl://ww.oeb.gov.on.ca/documents/grams/uniongas southern 20071001.pdf

In this document filed with the OEB, there is a on page fourte~n a section on Bundled rates "For gas
delivered to NRG at any point other than the Ontario Point of Delivery, NRG wil charge a customer or their agent,
all approved tolls and charges incurred by NRG to transport the gas to the Ontario Point of Delivery". Previous
years filings are the same or similar in language.
http://www.oeb.gov.on.ca/documents/cases/E B-200 7 -

0734/dec order appendices NRG QRAM 20070928.pdf

I am going to add up the invoices that we have received and make a few proposals about billng them. i
think that there are invoices from January through August We can invoice them to the sites, increase the
ABC rates until they are paid off, or a combination of the two.
We can put the rates up by 3.7 cents per cubic metre and then an

Regards,

1/29/2009
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( Paul Waqué Jr.
Operations Manager
Comsatec Inc.

This sets out the anomaly with the biling - bigger issue was that it took more than 18 months to sort it
out due to lack of co-operation and communication from NMRG. E-mails and phone calls would be
made to NRG and no one responded.
The continuing problem now that this par of the issue has been sorted is that Comsatec waits for a very
long time before they get the TransCanada Transport charges and customer charges from NRG. Then
Comsatec canot reconcile our bils and then there are problems with our getting either substantial
retroactive bils and/r our accounts with Comsatec get totally skewed because we don't have the real
costs for natual gas available.

Here is an e-mail from March 28, 2008 from Comsatec noting that they are waiting for reports from
NRG back to September 2007 - that's almost 6 months. That is unacceptable.

We are waiting on ABC reports from the NRG utility going back to September. Though the customers bil
that you have been faxing to us should have everything it would be comforting to us to have this. This
morning we have asked them again for report updates and the dollar remittances from January and
February. I guess until then we can provide a report to you that has a note that states that it is pending
confirmation from the utility.

Regards,
Paul

l_
Here is another e-mail with similar issues:

These are the two pages of reports that shows the most current balance. It reads that as of Nov 2007 we
are owed $11,485.68. The last Commodity remittance from NRG was from August (column I). If the
commodity remittances were caught-up, the monthly balance (in x) would be much smaller and prpbably
positive. We will update this when we receive money from NRG.

Paul
This e-mail was sent on April 1, 2008 and notes that the last Commodity remittance from NRG was
August, 2007. It shows that we would not owe Comsatec $11,485.68 ifNRG's commodity remittances
were up to date.

Third, there was this whole issue with account numbers. It starts with a call from NRG to me saying
that Comsatec uses the wrong account numbers.
Here is an excerpt from the e-mail I sent Comsatec to get this sorted - note: I did this at the request of
NRG and I'm stil not certain why NRG couldn't have done it themselves.

From: Heather Adams (mailto:hadams(§town.aylmer.on.ca)
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2008 1:50 PM
To: Paul Waque Jr
Cc: Jennifer Reynaert
Subject: RE: Town of Aylmer

t
Good Afternoon, Paull

I received a phone call from a staff person (Carrie) at NRG regarding the Town's natural gas accounts
managed by Comsatec. They Indicated that the account number for the "fire hall" being used is
incorrect. They believe that we are using the account number for the old fire hall demolished in 2006
rather than the correct one which is the one for the new fire hall.

1/29/2009
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The old fire hall was on Sydenham street and used account C0011 0-01 - this account should not be used

The new fire hall is on John Street South and the account number is D49528-01. This is the account
which should be used.

Would you please check this for me and adjust as appropriate and advise me?

Thank you very much for your assistance

M. Heather Adams
Administrator
Town of Aylmer

This e-mail was dated April 29, 2008. In the end and after many e-mails - we determine that in fact
NRG is the one using both accounts and Comsatec just used them as well. Here is what Comsatec
eventual found out from NRG in June of 2008.

Attached is a scan of the consumption report from NRG detailing the account numbers.
Unfortunately, the accounts in question are highlighted on the original and they are diffcult to make out
on the scan. It does display clearly on the paper copy that #C0011 0-01 &D49528 are shown together
where all other accounts are shown separately. Also the fact that NRG highlighted this account number
indicates it must be of special concern in some manner or another.

I believe when you contact them they wil be able to verify which account number is active and which one
isn't. They should then be encouraged to change their reporting to reflect the active account number.
Usually when a building is demolished and the meter removed, there is no consumption to report. I hope
it is a simple case of switching accounts and forgetting to update their flies. This should be verified with
meter readings for the "old" account and meter readings for the "new" account to make sure they actually
do match.

So these are the details of the issues that I can remember and kept the e-mails. The biggest issue is lack
of communcation with and from NRG - the staf just doesn't return calls, e-mails, etc. The second
issue is with the unacceptable delays in getting required data from NRG.

Please let me know if you have any questions about this.

Heather Adams
Adminstrator
Town of Aylmer

1/29/2009
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Memo Proud Heritage. Bright Future.

To: Council

From: M. Heather Adams
Administrator

December ii, 2008

Natural Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG) Franchise

Date:

Re:

l Discussion:

The franchise agreement between the Town of Aylmer and NRG expires on
February 27,2009. At its meeting of October 14, 2008, Council considered a
report on issues related to NRG and passed the following resolution:

Resolution No. 370-08

Moved by Councillor M. French and seconded by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer hereby endorses the Report dated
October 8, 2008 prepared by the Administrator, regarding Natural Resource Gas
Ltd. (NRG);

AND FURTHER THAT Council hereby approves the actions outlined below:

1. Ensure that the Ontario Energy Board is fully aware of the concerns

regarding NRG by:
· providing a copy of this report and the petitions received from the

local residents regarding the issues with NRG and request that the
OEB use its regulatory and oversight tools to fully inquired into the
issues identified;

· endorsing the OEB proposed amendment to the Gas Distribution

Access Rule provide direction to natural gas distributors regarding
customer security deposits; and

~
1



( . intervening at OEB hearings which involve NRG to ensure the OEB
is aware of issues of concern to the Town and its residents generally
identified as follows:

Quality of infrastructure;
Rates not competitive;
Reluctance to serve new commercial/industrial customers;
Significant customer service issues;
Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are
troubling; and
Deterrent to local economic development.

2. Request that the OEB consider the following regulatory and/or policy

changes in order to improve customer service requirements of natural
gas distributors

. Require that customer service measures are made available to

the public
. Require that the annual audited financial statements of the

distribution companies are made available to the public

. Provide a clear complaint and enforcement process for natural gas

consumers to have complaints heard and resolved
. Require that consumer security deposits be kept in a trust fund

and not used as working capital for distribution companies

3. Request that the OEB establish a process for a review of the legislation and
regulations which require that municipalities and natural gas distributors
enter into franchise agreements. The realities ofthe current process for
these agreements do not operate such that they improve the distribution of
natural gas to its customers. The municipality has no real abilty to
negotiate even the minimum of service delivery requirements, no realistic
abilty to enforce the provisions of the franchise agreement when a
distribution company does not meet them and no real abilty to change who
provides the service. The legislation guiding franchises is outdated and its
provisions such as the requirement for a public vote typically are replaced
with the OEB approval process.

l_

4. Circulate this Report to the other municipalities with franchise

agreements with NRG for their consideration and endorsement.

5. Forward the Report and recommendation to the Minister of Energy and

Infrastructure and our local M.P.P., the Honourable Steve Peters."

Since that time the following has taken place:

~

. OEB hearing into the application by Union Gas re NRG was held in
Aylmer on October 20, 2008. Town was successful in having its
evidence stay on the record. The OEB has made its decision on
the application and the Union and NRG are to sign new 5 year
agreements for the supply of natural gas, NRG is to provide Union
with regular Financial Statements and NRG is to provide Union with

2
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Goals:
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a postponement agreement related to the retractable shares.
Further, those retractable shares are to be treated as debt not
equity. The NRG shareholder was directed to pay the costs of the
Town and IGPC as interveners in the hearing.

. To date, there has been no response from the DEB or from the

Provincial Minister of Energy to the comprehensive report and
resolution forwarded to them.

. Staff has had several conversations and a meeting with Jack

Howley who is the General Manager of NRG as well as Mark
Bristoll. NRG has attended the most recent meeting regarding the
South Street infrastructure project and have promised to attend
future meetings. They have requested and received information on
our 5 year infrastructure plans. NRG has provided the Town with a
detailed map of its infrastructure in Aylmer. They have met with us
and assured us they are now dealing with all requests and
complaints regarding their customer security deposits. They have
reviewed the issues we have had with the statements for our gas
purchasing contract and they have committed to providing the
required information to Comsatec on a more regular basis.

. The Town has received another letter from NRG requesting that we
meet with them prior to November 30, to outline our position
regarding renewal of the franchise agreement and a meeting has
been scheduled for next week.

. Ensure the continued supply of cost-effective natural gas to Aylmer

. Ensure that the customer service and security deposit concerns

expressed by the residents of Aylmer are dealt with effectively and
efficiently

· Respect the role of the Ontario Energy Board as the regulator of
monopoly natural gas distributors in Ontario

. Ensure that the economic development opportunities for the

community are enhanced by having a supportive natural gas
distributor who supplies a cost-effective alternative source of
energy

. Repair the negative image of Aylmer in the context of our natural

gas distributor
. Restore confidence in and respect for the natural gas distributor by

their consumers, other residents and the Town as they put in place
a permanent acceptable customer relations policy

3



( Staff Recommendation:

After consideration of all of the options, the impact of various options and
previous direction and decisions of Council, Staff recommends the following
approach:

. Meet with NRG and offer to renew the franchise agreement for 3 years
to February 27,2012 with the addition of a list of conditions Council
wants to have NRG commit to undertake during that 3 years.

. Whether or not NRG agrees to the terms, the Town applies to the OEB
for approval of its proposed agreement and conditions and requests
that the OEB hold a hearing in Aylmer where the consumers can
provide c comments to the Board.

. Suggested Conditions for Franchise Renewal:

l_

1. The NRG immediately apply to the OEB for a comprehensive
rate hearing

2. NRG agrees to implement the proposed amendments to the
Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-0313), regarding
customer service measures by the end of 2009 whether or not
the OEB has made them mandatory by the time.

3. NRG makes the distribution company's ànnual audited financial
statements available to the public no later than 4 months
following the close of its fiscal year.

4. NRG adopts, and adheres to a written and publicly available
consumer security deposit policy which includes clear
information about the circumstances in which a security deposit
is required, how the amount of the deposit is calculated, the
circumstances in which the deposit will be returned to the
customer, that all deposits will be returned by cheque unless
otherwise requested in writing by the customer; and that a
maximum dollar value for any security deposit be calculated
using the proposed calculation in the OEB proposed
amendments to the GDAR (EB-2008-0313)

5. NRG adopts, and adheres to a written and publicly available
complaint process for its customers

6. NRG keeps all monies from consumer security deposits in a
trust fund and not used as working capital for distribution
company.

7. NRG ensures that written notice is given to all the municipalities
with whom they have franchises of any application by NRG to
the OEB.

8. NRG provides to the Town of Aylmer annually prior to
December 15, a detailed and up to date system map of its

~
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assets within the Town of Aylmer including the estimated age of
those assets and any improvements or additions during the year
are highlighted.

9. NRG agrees to prepare and adhere to a written policy regarding
meeting with new and relocating retail, commercial and
industrial customers to provide information and natural gas
service cost estimates on a timely basis and at a competitive
rate.

A proposed franchise agreement has been drafted using the terms of the Model
Franchise Agreement and adding the conditions outlined above. A copy of the
agreement is attached.

Council Action:

It is recommended that Council pass the following resolution:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer adopts the staff recommendations
set out in the report of the Administrator dated December 11, 2008
regarding the franchise agreement between the Town and NRG.

l_

That Council approve the draft franchise agreement as presented in that
report and that the agreement be presented to NRG as the Town's
position regarding the renewal of the franchise for a period of 3 years.

And Further that following the meeting with NRG, the Town applies to the
OEB for approval of the franchise agreement as drafted by the Town."

Respectfully submitted

eçctfL~
M. Heather Adams
Administrator

Attachments (1)
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I Franchise Agreement
THIS AGREEMENT effective this _ day of ,2009.

BETWEEN:

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AYLMER

hereinafter called the "Corporation"

- and-

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

hereinafter called the "Gas Company"

~-

WHEREAS the Gas Company desires to distribute, store and transmit gas in the Municipality
upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

AND WHEREAS by by-law passed by the Council of the Corporation (the "By-law"), the duly
authorized offcers have been authorized and directed to execute this Agreement on behalf of the
Corporation;

THEREFORE the Corporation and the Gas Company agree as follows:

Part I - Definitions

1. In this Agreement:

(a) "decommissioned" and "decommissions" when used in connection with parts of
the gas system, mean any parts of the gas system taken out of active use and
purged in accordance with the applicable CSA standards and in no way affects the
use of the term 'abandoned' pipeline for the purposes ofthe Assessment Act;

(b) IIEngineer/Road Superintendent" means the most senior individual employed by
the Corporation with responsibilties for highways within the Municipality or the
person designated by such senior employee or such other person as may from
time to time be designated by the Council of the Corporation;

((, J

(c) "gas" means natural gas, manufactured gas, synthetic natural gas, liquefied
petroleum gas or propane-air gas, or a mixture of any of them, but does not
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( include a liquefied petroleum gas that is distributed by means other than a
pipeline;

(d) "gas system" means such mains, plants, pipes, conduits, services, valves,
regulators, curb boxes, stations, drips or such other equipment as the Gas
Company may require or deem desirable for the distribution, storage and
transmission of gas in or through the Municipality;

(e) "highway" means all common and public highways and shall include any bridge,
viaduct or structure forming part of a highway, and any public square, road
allowance or walkway and shall include not only the travelled portion of such
highway, but also ditches, driveways, sidewalks, and sodded areas forming part of
the road allowance now or at any time during. the term hereof under the
jurisdiction ofthe Corporation;

(f) "Model Franchise Agreement" means the form of agreement which the Ontario
Energy Board uses as a standard when considering applications under the
Municipal Franchises Act. The Model Franchise Agreement may be changed
from time to time by the Ontario Energy Board;

1(..~

(g) . "Municipality" means the territorial limits of the Corporation on the date when

this Agreement takes effect, and any territory which may thereafter be brought
within the jurisdiction of the Corporation; ,

(h) "Plan" means the plan described in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement required to be
fied by the Gas Company with the Engineer/Road Superintendent prior to
comiencement of work on the gas system; and

(i) whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this Agreement, it shall

be considered as if the plural, feminine or masculine has been used where the
context of the Agreement so requires.

Part II - Rights Granted

2. To provide gas service.

Xn,~.£~~~~~t,.~f!~~..S~~E,2r~!i.,~l is hereby given and granted ,,'.,,¡
¡~1J~.:lwr~lfi:::ar;g;¡irltl~pleJiíl~;f~àllw the Gas Company to distribute, store and transmit gas in

¡¡iW¡;Cn¡R,ratiO~.'iit '~~~li
To Use Highways.3.

(ld

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement the consent of the Corporation is
hereby given and granted to the Gas Company to enter upon all highways now or at any
time hereafter under the jurisdiction of the Corporation and to lay, construct, maintain,
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replace, remove, operate and repair a gas system for the distribution, storage and
transmission of gas in and through the Municipality.

4. Duration of Agreement and Renewal Procedures.

hall be for a term of ßl
f during the -'

term of this Agreement, the Model Franchise Agreement is changed, then ~.
~~~~;!~a"~í~Il~I'~¡tlìl~~~~flru!~!.~ij¡~~~H~~¡~~§ù~f:irsiili't~i:~~~~~i;this Agreement shall be
deemed to be amended to incorporate such chan e s in the Model FranchiseAgreemen deemed
amendments shall not apply to alter the, erm of this Agreement.

(b) At any time within two years prior to the expiration of this Agreement, either
pary may give notice to the other that it desires to enter into negotiations for a
renewed franchise upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon. Unti
such renewal has been settled, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
continue, notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement. This shall not

preclude either party from applying to the Ontario Energy Board for a renewal of
the Agreement pursuant to section 10 of the Municipal Franchises Act.

(a)

Part III - Conditions
\.

5. Approval of Construction.

(a) The Gas Company shall not undertake any excavation, opening or work which
wil disturb or interfere with the surface of the travelled portion of any highway
unless a permit therefore has first been obtained from the Engineer/Road

Superintendent and all work done by the Gas Company shall be to his satisfaction.

(b) Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, or any extensions or
changes to it (except service laterals which do not interfere with municipal works
in the highway), the Gas Company shall fie with the Engineer/Road

Superintendent a Plan, satisfactory to the Engineer/Road Superintendent, drawn to
scale and of suffcient detail considering the complexity of the specific locations
involved, showing the highways in which it proposes to lay its gas system and the
particular parts thereof it proposes to occupy.

(c) The Plan filed by the Gas Company shall include geodetic information for a
particular location:

(i) where circumstances are complex, in order to faciltate known projects,
including projects which are reasonably anticipated by the Engineer/Road
Superintendent, or

((
¡

(ii) when requested, where the Corporation has geodetic information for its
own services and all others at the same location.
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(h)
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(d) The Engineer/Road Superintendent may require sections of the gas system to be
laid at greater depth than required by the latest CSA standard for gas pipeline
systems to facilitate known projects or to correct known highway deficiencies.

Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, the Engineer/Road

Superintendent must approve the location of the work as shown on the Plan fied
by the Gas Company, the timing of the work and any terms and conditions
relating to the installation of the work.

(e),

(f) In addition to the requirements of this Agreement, if the Gas Company proposes
to affx any par of the gas system to a bridge, viaduct or other structure, if the
Engineer/Road Superintendent approves this proposal, he may require the Gas
Company to comply with special conditions or to enter into a separate agreement
as a condition ofthe approval of this par of the construction of the gas system.

(g) Where the gas system may affect a municipal drain, the Gas Company shall also
fie a copy of the Plan with the Corporation's Drainage Superintendent for

purposes of the Drainage Act, or such other person designated by the Corporation
as responsible for the drain.

The Gas Company shall not deviate from the approved location for any part of the
gas system unless the prior approval of the Engineer/Road Superintendent to do
so is received.

The Engineer/Road Superintendent's approval, where required throughout this
Paragraph, shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The approval of the Engineer/Road Superintendent is not a representation or
warranty as to the state of repair of the highway or the suitabilty of the highway
for the gas system.

6. As Built Drawings.

The Gas Company shall, within six months of completing the installation of any part of
the gas system, provide two copies of "as built" drawings to the Engineer/Road

Superintendent. These drawings must be sufficient to accurately establish the location,
depth (measurement between the top of the gas system and the ground surface at the time
of installation) and distance of the gas system. The "as built" drawings shall be of the
same quality as the Plan and, if the approved pre-construction plan included elevations
that were geodetically referenced, the "as built" drawings shall similarly include
elevations that are geodetically referenced. Upon the request of the Engineer/Road
Superintendent, the Gas' Company shall provide one copy of the drawings in an electronic
format and one copy as a hard copy drawing.

7, Emergencies.

cc
In the event of an emergency involving the gas system, the Gas Company shall proceed
with the work required to deal with the emergency, and in any instance where prior

approval of the Engineer/Road Superintendent is normally required for the work, the Gas
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Company shall use its best efforts to immediately notify the Engineer/Road

Superintendent of the location and nature of the emergency and the work being done and,
if it deems appropriate, notify the police force, fire or other emergency services having
jurisdiction. The Gas Company shall provide the Engineer/Road Superintendent with at
least one 24 hour emergency contact for the Gas Company and shall ensure the contacts
are current.

8. Reatoration. ..~

The Gas Company shall well and sufficiently restore, to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Engineer/Road Superintendent, all highways, municipal works or improvements which it
may excavate or interfere with in the course of laying, constructing, repairing or
removing its gas system, and shall make good any settling or subsidence thereafter
caused by such excavation or interference. If the Gas Company fails at any time to do any
work required by this Paragraph within a reasonable period of time, the Corporation may
do or cause such work to be done and the Gas Company shall, on demand, pay the
Corporation's reasonably incurred costs, as certified by the Engineer/Road

Superintendent.

9. Indemnification.

The Gas Company shall, at all times, indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from
and against all claims, including costs related thereto, for all damages or injuries
including death to any person or persons and for damage to any property, arising out of
the Gas Company operating, constructing, and maintaining its gas system in the
Municipality, or utilzing its gas system for the carriage of gas owned by others. Provided
that the Gas Company shall not be required to indemnify or save harmless the
Corporation from and against claims, including costs related thereto, which it may incur
by reason of damages or injuries including death to any person or persons and for damage
to any property, resulting from the negligence or wrongful act of the Corporation, its
servants, agents or employees.

10. Insurance.

(a) The Gas Company shall maintain Comprehensive General Liabilty Insurance in
sufficient amount and description as shall protect the Gas Company and the
Corporation from claims for which the Gas Company is obliged to indemnify the
Corporation under Paragraph 9. The insurance policy shall identify the
Corporation as an additional named insured, but only with respect to the operation
of the named insured (the Gas Company). The insurance policy shall not lapse or
be cancelled without sixty (60) days' prior written notice to the Corporation by the
Gas Company.

(b) The issuance of an insurance policy as provided in this Paragraph shall not be
construed as relieving the Gas Company of liabilty not covered by such insurance
or in excess of the policy limits of such insurance.
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'" (c) Upon request by the Corporation, the Gas Company shall confirm that premiums

for such insurance have been paid and that such insurance is in full force and
effect.

11. Alternative Easement.

The Corporation agrees, in the event of the proposed sale or closing of any highway or
any part of a highway where there is a gas line in existence, to give the Gas Company
reasonable notice of such proposed sale or closing and, if is feasible, to provide the Gas
Company with easements over that par of the highway proposed to be sold or closed
suffcient to allow the Gas Company to preserve any part of the gas system in its then
existing location. In the event that such easements canot be provided, the Corporation
and the Gas Company shall share the cost of relocating or altering the gas system to
faciltate continuity of gas service, as provided for in Paragraph 12 ofthis Agreement.

12. Pipeline Relocation.

(a) If in the course of constructing, reconstructing, changing, altering or improving

any highway or any municipal works, the Corporation deems that it is necessary
to take up, remove or change the location of any part of the gas system, the Gas
Company shall, upon notice to do so, remove and/or relocate within a reasonable
period of time such part of the gas system to a location approved by the

Engineer/Road Superintendent.

(~ (b) Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this Paragraph is
located on a bridge, viaduct or structure, the Gas Company shall alter or relocate
that par of the gas system at its sole expense.

( c) Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this Paragraph is.
located other than on a: bridge, viaduct or structure, the costs of relocation shall be
shared between the Corporation and the Gas Company on the basis of the total
relocation costs, excluding the value of any upgrading of the gas system, and
deducting any contribution paid to the Gas Company by others in respect to such
relocation; and for these purposes, the total relocation costs shall be the aggregate
of the following:

(i) the amount paid to Gas Company employees up to and including field
supervisors for the hours worked on the project plus the current cost of
fringe benefits for these employees,

(ii) the amount paid for rental equipment while in use on the project and an

amount, charged at the unit rate, for Gas Company equipment while in use
on the project,

(iii) the amount paid by the Gas Company to contractors for work related to
the project,

~ (iv) the cost to the Gas Company for materials used in connection with the
project, and
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(v) a reasonable amount for project engineering and project administrative
costs which shall be 22.5% of the aggregate of the amounts determined in
items (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above.

(d) The total relocation costs as calculated above shall be paid 35% by the
Corporation and 65% by the Gas Company, except where the part of the gas
system required to be moved is located in an unassumed road or in an unopened
road allowance and the Corporation has not approved its location, in which case
the Gas Company shall pay 100% of the relocation costs.

Part iv - Procedural And Other Matters

13. Municipal By-laws of General Application.

14.

t
15.

(~

The Agreement is subject to the provisions of all regulating statutes and all municipal
bylaws of general application, except by-laws which have the effect of amending this
Agreement.

Giving Notice.

Notices may be delivered to, sent by facsimile or mailed by prepaid registered post to the
Gas Company at its head offce or to the authorized officers of the Corporation at its
municipal offces, as the case may be.

Disposition of Gas System.

(a) If the Gas Company decommissions par of its gas system affixed to a bridge,
viaduct or structure, the Gas Company shall, at its sole expense, remove the par
of its gas system affxed to the bridge, viaduct or structure.

(b) If the Gas Company decommissions any other part of its gas system, it shall have
the right, but is not required, to remove that part of its gas system. It may exercise
its right to remove the decommissioned parts of its gas system by giving notice of
its intention to do so by filing a Plan as required by Paragraph 5 of this Agreement
for approval by the Engineer/Road Superintendent. If the Gas Company does not
remove the part of the gas system it has decommissioned and the Corporation
requires the removal of all or any part of the decommissioned gas system for the
purpose of altering or improving a highway or in order to faciltate the
construction of utiity or other works in any highway, the Corporation may
remove and dispose of so much of the decommissioned gas system as the

Corporation may require for such purposes and neither party shall have recourse
against the other for any loss, cost, expense or damage occasioned thereby. If the
Gas Company has not removed the part of the gas system it has decommissioned
and the Corporation requires the removal of all or any part of the decommissioned
gas system for the purose of altering or improving a highway or in order to
faciltate the construction of utilty or other works in a highway, the Gas
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( Company may elect to relocate the decommissioned gas system and in that event
Paragraph 12 applies to the cost of relocation.

16. Use of Decoinissioned Gas System.

(a) The Gas Company shall provide promptly to the Corporation, to the extent such
information is known:

(i) the names and addresses of all third paries who use decoinissioned parts
of the gas system for purposes other than the transmission or distribution
of gas; and

(ii) the location of all proposed and existing decommissioned parts of the gas

system used for purposes other than the transmission or distribution of gas.

(b) The Gas Company may allow a third party to use a decommissioned part of the
gas system for purposes other than the transmission or distribution of gas and may
charge a fee for that third part use, provided

(i) the third party has entered into a municìpal access agreement with the
Corporation; and

(
(ii) the Gas Company does not charge a fee for the third party's right of access

to the highways.

(c) Decommissioned parts of the gas system used for purposes other than the
transmission or distribution of gas are not subject to the provisions of this
Agreement. For decommissioned parts of the gas system used for purposes other
than the transmission and distribution of gas, issues such as relocation costs wil
be governed by the relevant municipal access agreement.

17. Franchise Handbook.

The Parties acknowledge that operating decisions sometimes require a greater level of
detail than that which is appropriately included in this Agreement. The Parties agree to
look for guidance on such matters to the Franchise Handbook prepared by the

Association of Municipalities of Ontario and the gas utilty companies, as may be
amended from time to time.

'-,'..$

(Ç
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18. Agreement Binding Parties.

This Agreement shall extend to, benefit and bind the parties thereto, their successors and
assigns, respectively.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement effective from the
date written above.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AYLMER

By:
Duly Authorized Officer

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

~- By:
Dily Authorized Officer

(C
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( SCHEDULE 'A'

'Schedule A' to the Franchise Renewal Agreement between Natural Resource Gas Ltd. and
the Corporation of the Town of Aylmer

The Corporation signs this Agreement on the condition that the Gas Company agrees to and
adheres to the following.

1) Immediately upon the execution of this Agreement, the Gas Company wil apply to the
Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") for a comprehensive rate hearing.

2) The Gas Company wil, by December 15,2009,

a) implement the proposed amendments to the Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-
0313) regarding customer service measures, whether or not the OEB has made them
mandatory by such time.

3) The Gas Company wil, by May 15,2009,

l

a) adopt and adhere to a written and publicly available consumer security deposit policy
which includes clear information about the circumstances in which a security deposit is
required, how the amount of the deposit is calculated, the circumstances in which the
deposit wil be returned to the customer, that all deposits wil be retuned by cheque
unless otherwise requested in writing by the customer; and that a maximum dollar value
for any security deposit be calculated using the proposed calculation in the OEB
proposed amendments to the GDAR (EB-2008-0313);

b) adopt and adhere to a written and publicly available complaint process for its customers;
and

c) adopt and adhere to a written policy regarding meeting with and providing written
estimates for providing natural gas services to new and relocating retail, commercial and
industrial customers on a timely basis and at a competitive rate.

4) The Gas Company wil keep all monies from consumer security deposits in a trust fund and it
wil not use such monies as working capitaL.

5) The Gas Company wil make its anual audited financial statements available every year for
the next thee years to the public no later than 4 months following the close of the Gas
Company's fiscal year.

( J

6) The Gas Company wil give notice to the Corporation of any proceeding before the OEB that
the Gas Company is a party to, particularly, but not limited to, any application to the OEB
made by the Gas Company.

7) By no later than December 15 of each year, the Gas Company wil provide the Corporation
with annual detailed and up-to-date maps of its system assets, including but not limited to
system assets within the Town of Aylmer, including the estimated age of those assets and any
improvements or additions during the year are highlighted.
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Council - Dec 15 2008
Regular Session

THIRTY-SEVENTH SESSION
REGULAR SESSION December 15, 2008

The Council of the Corporation of the Town of Aylmer meets in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m.
with Mayor Bob Habkirk presiding.

Present are: Mayor
Deputy Mayor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

B. Habkirk
R. G. Baldwin
J. Couckuyt
G. H. Richer
J. Vandermeersch
M. French
J. L. Wright

Administrator
Clerk
Dir of Finance & HR
Dir of Operations
Dir of Planning
& Munic Services

M. H. Adams
N. J. Irving

J. Reynaert
R. Tapp
D. Dale

1. PRAYER

All rise as Mayor Habkirk reads a brief prayer.

2. ROLL CALL

All are present.

3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

Resolution No. 454-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councillor M. French:

"That Council adopt the Agenda for the meeting of December 15, 2008, as
amended, by adding:

(a) a communication from Andrew Henry, Division Manager, Regional Water
Supply - with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap Water Scare"
which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13, 2008, as Agenda Item
#8(i); and

(b) a communication from Jeanette Brubacher, with respect to the Natural
Resource Gas franchise, as Agenda Item #8(j)); noting that this item relates to
Agenda Item #8(g)."

The motion is Carried.
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Regular Session 2

4. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

There are no disclosures.

5. DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC MEETINGS

Stephen Douglas and Keith Hunt, representatives from the Aylmer Heritage
Committee, present a Heritage Plaque for the Town Hall, to Town CounciL.

6. ADOPTION OF COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

Resolution No. 455-08

Moved by Councilor G. Richer and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That Council adopt and approve the Minutes of the December 8, 2008

Regular Session."

The motion is Carried.

7. CONSENT AGENDA

There are no Consent Items.

8. ACTION ITEMS

(a) Report from Director of Planning & Municipal Services - Extension of HVAC
Service Agreement.

Resolution No. 456-08

Moved by Councilor J. Vandermeersch and Councilor J. Couckuyt:

"That following actions be taken with respect to the extension of HVAC Service
Agreement:

(a) Council receives the report dated December 9, 2008 submitted by the
Director of Planning and Municipal Services as information;

(b) Council extends the Preventative Maintenance Agreement with Pro-Tech
Mechanical for maintenance of all municipal building HVAC systems
including the new Fire Hall, to December 31,2009;

(c)

(d)

Council gives three readings to the required by-law; and

Council directs Staff to tender for a new three-year maintenance
agreement contract to take effective January 1, 2010."

Carried.
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Regular Session 3

The By-law is considered under the By-law portion of the meeting.

(b) Report from Director of Finance & Human Resources - Cheque Disbursements
for November 2008.

Resolution No. 457-08

Moved by Councillor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That Council approves payment of the General Account cheques, including
Payroll, for the Month of November 2008, in the amount of $1,323,912.74."

The motion is Carried.

(c) Report from Director of Finance & Human Resources - 2008 Tax Write-Off
Report.

Resolution No. 458-08

Moved by Councillor G. Richer and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That Council approves tax write-offs of $167,591.34 pursuant to Part X, Section
354 of the Municipal Act R.S.O. 2001, 5.0. 2001, C. 25, as amended, and as
outlined in detail in the Report No. 31-08 dated December 5, 2008 submitted by
the Director of Finance and Human Resources."

The motion is Carried.

(d) Report from the Director of Finance & Human Resources - Reserve Funds.

Resolution No. 459-08

Moved by Councillor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer approves the following with respect to
Reserve Funds:

(a) That funds levied through the 2008 Capital Budget approved by Council
which are not spent on that capital project as specified in the budget be
transferred to the reserve funds;

(b) That where funds have been allocated from the reserve funds for projects
that were not completed or projects where the cost was not as budgeted, that
those funds be left in the reserve funds and not transferred to the revenue fund;

(c) That where funds have 'been allocated for a capital project in the 2008
Budget and where the expenditures on the project exceed the budgeted
expenditure by less than 10% that the monies be transferred from the reserve
funds to the revenue fund, if available, to cover that expenditure: and
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Regular Session 4

(d) That the capital projects or project additions approved by Council
subsequent to the passing of the 2008 budget for which the source of financing
was approved from reserve funds, that those monies be transferred in the
amount required to cover the 2008 expenditures."

The motion is Carried.

(e) Report from the Clerk - Municipal Investigator.

Resolution No. 460-08

Moved by Councillor J. Wright and seconded by G. Richer:

"That the Town of Aylmer supports the appointment of JGM Consulting (Mr.
John Maddox) as the Municipal Investigator for a one-year term to commence
January 1, 2009 on the understanding that the County of Elgin wil pay the
retainer fee for the municipaliy; and further, that Council consider giving three
readings to By-law No. 49-08."

The motion is Carried.

The By-law is considered under the By-law portion of the meeting.

(f) Report from the Administrator - Economic Development/Community
Development Activities.

Resolution No. 461-08

Moved by Councillor M. French and seconded by Councillor J. Couckuyt:

"That the Report submitted by the Administrator with respect to Economic
Development I Community Development Activities for 2008, be received for
information."

The motion is Carried.

(g) Report from the Administrator - Natural Gas Resources Ltd. (NRG) Franchise
Agreement.

Resolution No. 462-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councillor J. Couckuyt:

"That the following actions be taken with respect to the franchise agreement
between the Town of Aylmer and Natural Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG):

(a) that the Council of the Town of Aylmer adopts the staff recommendations
set out in the report of the Administrator dated December 11, 2008 regarding the
franchise agreement between the Town and NRG;

(b) that Council approves the draft franchise agreement as presented in the
report and that the agreement be presented to NRG as the Town's position
regarding the renewal of the franchise for a period of 3 years; and further,
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(c) that following the meeting with NRG, the Town applies to the OEB for
approval of the franchise agreement as drafted by the Town."

The motion is Carried.

(h) Aylmer Police Services Board - Proposed 2009 Budget.

Resolution No. 463-08

Moved by Councillor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That the Proposed 2009 Budget from Aylmer Police Services be referred to the
Finance Committee for consideration during the 2009 Budget deliberations."

The motion is Carried.

(i) a communication from Andrew Henry, Division Manager, Regional Water
Supply - with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap Water Scare"
which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13, 2008, as Agenda Item
#8(i)

Resolution No. 464-08

Moved by Councillor J. Wright and seconded by Councillor G. Richer:

"That the communication received from Andrew Henry, Division Manager,
Regional Water Supply, with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap
Water Scare" which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13, 2008,
be received for information purposes."

The motion is Carried.

Additional Items:

ü) a communication from Jeanette Brubacher, with respect to the Natural
Resource Gas franchise - relates to Agenda Item #8(g)

Resolution No. 465-08

Moved by Councillor M. French and seconded by Councilor J. Wright:

"That the communication received from Jeanette Brubacher with respect to the
Natural Resource Gas franchise, be received for information purposes; noting
that this item relates to Agenda Item #8(g)."

The motion is Carried.

9. NEW BUSINESS AND MATTERS OF URGENCY

There are no matters.
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10. READING OF BY-LAWS AND PROCEEDINGS THEREON

Resolution No. 466-08

Moved by Councilor M. French and seconded by Councilor J. Wright:

"That Council suspend the procedural polices and proceed with first, second
and third reading of By-laws 49-08, 50-08 and 51-08."

The motion is Carried.

Resolution No. 467-08

Moved by Councillor J. Wright and seconded by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin:

"The following By-laws be read a first, second and third time, be finally passed,
signed, sealed and numbered by the Mayor and Clerk:

(i) By-law No. 49-08 - Being a By-law to re-appoint JGM Consulting (Mr. John
Maddox) as the Municipal Investigator.

(ii) By-law No. 50-08 - Being a By-Law to authorize the signing of an
Agreement between The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer and Pro-Tech
Mechanical Services Limited to provide Preventative Maintenance for the Town
of Aylmer Municipal Buildings.

(iii) By-law No. 51-08 - Being a By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council
at all of its meetings held during the calendar year 2008."

The motion is Carried.

11. INQUIRIES BY MEMBERS

(a) Councillor Couckuyt reminds the public to attend the open house about the Town
Square development to be held on Thursday, December 18, 2008 from 4:00 p.m. to
8:00 p.m. at the Old Town HalL.

12. REPORT OF MAYOR

There is no report.

13. NOTICE OF MOTION

There are no notices of motion.
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14. CLOSED SESSION

There are no matters.

15. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 468-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councillor M. French:

"That Council do now adjourn at 7:45 p.m."

The motion is Carried.

MAYOR

CLERK

7
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Memo Proud Heritage. Bright FutUle.

To: Council

From: M. Heather Adams
Administrator

December 11, 2008

Natural Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG) Franchise

Date:

Re:

l Discussion:

The franchise agreement between the Town of Aylmer and NRG expires on
February 27,2009. At its meeting of October 14, 2008, Council considered a
report on issues related to NRG and passed the following resolution:

Resolution No. 370-08

Moved by Councilor M. French and seconded by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer hereby endorses the Report dated
October 8, 2008 prepared by the Administrator, regarding Natural Resource Gas
Ltd. (NG);

AN FURTHER THAT Council hereby approves the actions outlined below:

1. Ensure that the Ontario Energy Board is fully aware of the concerns

regarding NRG by:
· providing a copy of this report and the petitions received from the

local residents regarding the issues with NRG and request that the
OEB use its regulatory and oversight tools to fully inquired into the
issues identified;

· endorsing the OEB proposed amendment to the Gas Distribution

Access Rule provide direction to natural gas distributors regarding
customer security deposits; and

L
1



( . intervening at OEB hearings which involve NRG to ensure the OEB
is aware of issues of concern to the Town and its residents generally
identified as follows:

Quality of infrastructure;
Rates not competitive;
Reluctance to serve new commercial/industrial customers;
Significant customer service issues;
Financial issues raised by customers and suppliers are
troubling; and
Deterrent to local economic development.

2. Request that the OEB consider the following regulatory and/or policy

changes in order to improve customer service requirements of natural
gas distributors

· Require that customer service measures are made available to

the public
· Require that the annual audited financial statements of the

distribution companies are made available to the public

· Provide a clear complaint and enforcement process for natural gas
consumers to have complaints heard and resolved

· Require that consumer security deposits be kept in a trust fund
and not used as working capital for distribution companies

3. Request that the OEB establish a process for a review of the legislation and
regulations which require that municipalities and natural gas distributors
enter into franchise agreements. The realities of the current process for
these agreements do not operate such that they improve the distribution of
natural gas to its customers. The municipality has no real abilty to
negotiate even the minimum of service delivery requirements, no realistic
abilty to enforce the provisions of the franchise agreement when a
distribution company does not meet them and no real abilty to change who
provides the service. The legislation guiding franchises is outdated and its
provisions such as the requirement for a public vote typically are replaced
with the OEB approval process.

l

4. Circulate this Report to the other municipalities with franchise

agreements with NRG for their consideration and endorsement.

5. Forward the Report and recommendation to the Minister of Energy and

Infrastructure and our local M.P.P., the Honourable Steve Peters."

Since that time the following has taken place:

c

· OEB hearing into the application by Union Gas re NRG was held in
Aylmer on October 20, 2008. Town was successful in having its
evidence stay on the record. The OEB has made its decision on
the application and the Union and NRG are to sign new 5 year
agreements for the supply of natural gas, NRG is to provide Union
with regular Financial Statements and NRG is to provide Union with

2
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Goals:

c=_

a postponement agreement related to the retractable shares.
Further, those retractable shares are to be treated as debt not
equity. The NRG shareholder was directed to pay the costs of the
Town and IGPC as interveners in the hearing.

· To date, there has been no response from the OEB or from the

Provincial Minister of Energy to the comprehensive report and
resolution forwarded to them.

· Staff has had several conversations and a meeting with Jack
Howley who is the General Manager of NRG as well as Mark
Bristoll. NRG has attended the most recent meeting regarding the
South Street infrastructure project and have promised to attend
future meetings. They have requested and received information on
our 5 year infrastructure plans. NRG has provided the Town with a
detailed map of its infrastructure in Aylmer. They have met with us
and assured us they are now dealing with all requests and
complaints regarding their customer security deposits. They have
reviewed the issues we have had with the statements for our gas
purchasing contract and they have committed to providing the
required information to Comsatec on a more regular basis.

· The Town has received another letter from NRG requesting that we
meet with them prior to November 30, to outline our position
regarding renewal of the franchise agreement and a meeting has
been scheduled for next week.

· Ensure the continued supply of cost-effective natural gas to Aylmer
· Ensure that the customer service and security deposit concerns

expressed by the residents of Aylmer are dealt with effectively and
efficiently

· Respect the role of the Ontario Energy Board as the regulator of
monopoly natural gas distributors in Ontario

· Ensure that the economic development opportunities for the
community are enhanced by having a supportive natural gas
distributor who supplies a cost-effective alternative source of
energy

· Repair the negative image of Aylmer in the context of our natural
gas distributor

· Restore confidence in and respect for the natural gas distributor by
their consumers, other residents and the Town as they put in place
a permanent acceptable customer relations policy

3



( Staff Recommendation:

After consideration of all of the options, the impact of various options and
previous direction and decisions of Council, Staff recommends the following
approach:

· Meet with NRG and offer to renew the franchise agreement for 3 years
to February 27, 2012 with the addition of a list of conditions Council
wants to have NRG commit to undertake during that 3 years.

· Whether or not NRG agrees to the terms, the Town applies to the OEB
for approval of its proposed agreement and conditions and requests
that the OEB hold a hearing in Aylmer where the consumers can
provide c comments to the Board.

· Suggested Conditions for Franchise Renewal:

l

1. The NRG immediately apply to the OEB for a comprehensive
rate hearing

2. NRG agrees to implement the proposed amendments to the
Gas Distribution Access Rule (EB-2008-0313), regarding
customer service measures by the end of 2009 whether or not
the OEB has made them mandatory by the time.

3. NRG makes the distribution company's annual audited financial
statements available to the public no later than 4 months
following the close of its fiscal year.

4. NRG adopts, and adheres to a written and publicly available
consumer security deposit policy which includes clear
information about the circumstances in which a security deposit
is required, how the amount of the deposit is calculated, the
circumstances in which the deposit wil be returned to the
customer, that all deposits wil be returned by cheque unless
otherwise requested in writing by the customer; and that a
maximum dollar value for any security deposit be calculated
using the proposed calculation in the OEB proposed
amendments to the GDAR (EB-2008-0313)

5. NRG adopts, and adheres to a written and publicly available
complaint process for its customers

6. NRG keeps all monies from consumer security deposits in a
trust fund and not used as working capital for distribution
company.

7. NRG ensures that written notice is given to all the municipalities
with whom they have franchises of any application by NRG to
the OEB.

8. NRG provides to the Town of Aylmer annually prior to
December 15, a detailed and up to date system map of itsc

4



( assets within the Town of Aylmer including the estimated age of
those assets and any improvements or additions during the year
are highlighted.

9. NRG agrees to prepare and adhere to a written policy regarding
meeting with new and relocating retail, commercial and
industrial customers to provide information and natural gas
service cost estimates on a timely basis and at a competitive
rate.

A proposed franchise agreement has been drafted using the terms of the Model
Franchise Agreement and adding the conditions outlined above. A copy of the
agreement is attached.

Council Action:

It is recommended that Council pass the following resolution:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer adopts the staff recommendations
set out in the report of the Administrator dated December 11, 2008
regarding the franchise agreement between the Town and NRG.

l
That Council approve the draft franchise agreement as presented in that
report and that the agreement be presented to NRG as the Town's
position regarding the renewal of the franchise for a period of 3 years.

And Further that following the meeting with NRG, the Town applies to the
OEB for approval of the franchise agreement as drafted by the Town."

Respectfully submitted

eçWe~~
M. Heather Adams
Administrator

Attachments (1)

/ha
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I Franchise Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT effective this _ day of ,2009.

BETWEEN:

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AYLMER

hereinafter called the "Corporation"

- and-

NATURL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

hereinafter .called the "Gas Company"

(
WHEREAS the Gas Company desires to distribute, store and transmit gas in the Muncipality
upon the terms and conditions of ths Agreement;

AN WHEREAS by by~law passed by the Council of the Corporation (the "By-law"), the duly
authorized offcers have been authorized and directed to execute this Agreement on behalf of the
Corporation;

THEREFORE the Corporation and the Gas Company agree as follows:

Part I - Definitions

1. In this Agreement:

(a) "decommssioned" and "decommssions 

II when used in connection with pars of

the gas system, mean any pars of the gas system taken out of active use and
purged in accordance with the applicable CSA standards and in no way affects the
use of the term 'abandoned' pipeline for the purposes of the Assessment Act;

(b) "Engineer/Road Superintendent" means the most senior individual employed by
the Corporation with responsibilties for highways within the Municipality or the
person designated by such senior employee or such other person as may from
time to time be designated by the Council of the Corporation;

c__

(c)
II 

gas 
II means natual gas, manufactued gas, synthetic natural gas, liquefied

petroleum gas or propane-air gas, or a mixture of any of them, but does not
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( include a liquefied petroleum gas that is distributed by means other than a
pipeline;

(d) "gas system" means such mains, plants, pipes, conduits, services, valves,
regulators, curb boxes, stations, drips or such other equipment as the Gas
Company may require or deem desirable for the distribution, storage and
transmission of gas in or through the Muncipality;

(e) "highway" means all common and public highways and shall include any bridge,
viaduct or structure forming par of a highway, and any public square, road
allowance or walkway and shall include not only the travelled portion of such
highway, but also ditches, driveways, sidewalks, and sodded areas forming part of
the road allowance now or at any time during the term hereof under the
jurisdiction of the Corporation;

(f) "Model Franchise Agreement" means the form of agreement which the Ontario
Energy Board uses as a standard when considering applications under the
Municipal Franchises Act. The Model Franchise Agreement may be changed
from time to time by the Ontario Energy Board;

(
(g) . "Municipality 

II means the territorial limits of the Corporation on the date when

this Agreement takes effect, and any territory which may thereafter be brought
withn the jurisdiction of the Corporation; .

(h) "Plan" means the plan described in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement required to be
filed by the Gas Company with the Engineer/Road Superintendent prior to
commencement of work on the gas system; and

(i) whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this Agreement, it shall

be considered as if the plural, femine or masculine has been used where the
context of the Agreement so requires.

Part II - Rights Granted

2. To provide gas service.

''=''¡ij!(:=;¡':;:~ri;i'¡';t:,=.i;¿r~¡;5"F.;:''~:i!:'iaz.-;'''';~!Er:;'''i'~~;;~¡;~~

~3~i~¥~Iftf;æ~~~l¡1~~¡i~oi~~e~z; ~:npa:nydt~~~:fb~~,-~~~;~~~;!~~~~g'¡~~~i;n....;~,:..;,;.~';~.:.:_-:;;;.4~.:....:...,;....~.a~~uiclfiiiirationiF.f~~
To Use Highways.3.

(
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement the consent of the Corporation is
hereby given and granted to the Gas Company to enter upon all highways now or at any
time hereafter under the jurisdiction of the Corporation and to lay, construct, maintain,
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(,\,
I

I

!

replace, remove, operate and repair a gas system for the distribution, storage and
transmission of gas in and through the Municipality.

4. Duration of Agreement and Renewal Procedures.

(a) hall be for a term of ~~

If during the f ë:

term of this Agreement, the Model Franchise Agreement is changed, then ._,:i

1;;1fal'lJiWi~liìÎlllD~l~lIl¡~i~sllllt¡(I\his Agreement shall be
deemed to be amended to inco orate such chan e s in the Model FranchiseAgreemen deemed
amendments shall not apply to alter the erm of this Agreement.

(b) At any time within two years prior to the expiration of this Agreement, either
pary may give notice to the other that it desires to enter into negotiations for a
renewed franchise upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon. Until
such renewal has been settled, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
continue, notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement. This shall not

preclude either party from applying to the Ontario Energy Board for a renewal of
the Agreement pursuant to section 10 of the Municipal Franchises Act.

Part III - Conditions

5. Approval of Construction.

(a) The Gas Company shall not undertake any excavation, opening or work which
wil disturb or interfere with the surace of the travelled portion of any highway
unless a permit therefore has first been obtained from the Engineer/Road

Superintendent and all work done by the Gas Company shall be to his satisfaction.

(b) Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, or any extensions or
changes to it (except service laterals which do not interfere with muncipal works
in the highway), the Gas Company shall file with the Engineer/Road

Superintendent a Plan, satisfactory to the Engineer/Road Superintendent, drawn to
scale and of sufcient detail considering the complexity of the specific locations
involved, showing the highways in which it proposes to lay its gas system and the
paricular parts thereof it proposes to occupy.

( c) The Plan fied by the Gas Company shall include geodetic information for a
paricular location:

(i) where circumtances are complex, in order to faciltate known projects,
including projects which are reasonably anticipated by the Engineer/Road
Superintendent, or

:C_-

(ii) when requested, where the Corporation has geodetic information for its
own services and all others at the same location.
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(d) The Engineer/Road Superintendent may require sections of the gas system to be
laid at greater depth than required by the latest CSA standard for gas pipeline
systems to faciltate known projects or to correct known highway deficiencies.

Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, the Engineer/Road

Superintendent must approve the location of the work as shown on the Plan fied
by the Gas Company, the timing of the work and any terms and conditions
relating to the instalation of the work.

(e) .

(t) In addition to the requirements of this Agreement, if the Gas Company proposes
to affix any par of the gas system to a bridge, viaduct or other structure, if the
Engineer/Road Superintendent approves this proposal, he may require the Gas
Company to comply with special conditions or to enter into a separate agreement
as a condition of the approval of this par of the construction of the gas system.

Where the gas system may affect a municipal drain, the Gas Company shall also
fie a copy of the Plan with the Corporation's Drainage Superintendent for

puroses of the Drainage Act, or such other person designated by the Corporation
as responsible for the drain.

(g)

(h) The Gas Company shall not deviate from the approved location for any part of the
gas system uness the prior approval of the EngineerlRoad Superintendent to do
so is received.

(i) The Engineer/Road Superintendent's approval, where required throughout this
Paragraph, shall not be uneasonably withheld.

G) The approval of the EngineerlRoad Superintendent is not a representation or
warranty as to the state of repair of the highway or the suitabilty of the highway
for the gas system.

6. As Built Drawings.

The Gas Company shall, within six months of completing the installation of any part of
the gas system, provide two copies of "as built" drawings to the Engineer/Road

Superintendent. These drawings must be suffcient to accurately establish the location,
depth (measurement between the top of the gas system and the ground surface at the time
of installation) and distance of the gas system. The "as built" drawings shall be of the
same quality as the Plan and, if the approved pre-construction plan included elevations
that were geodetically referenced, the "as built" drawings shall similarly include
elevations that are geodetically referenced. Upon the request of the Engineer/Road
Superintendent, the Gas Company shall provide one copy of the drawings in an electronic
format and one copy as a hard copy drawing.

7. Emergencies.

(
In the event of an emergency involving the gas system, the Gas Company shall proceed
with the work required to deal with the emergency, and in any instance where prior

approval of the EngineerlRoad Superintendent is normally required for the work, the Gas
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Company shall use its best efforts to immediately notify the Engineer/Road

Superintendent of the location and natue of the emergency and the work being done and,
if it deems appropriate, notify the police force, fire or other emergency services having
jurisdiction. The Gas Company shall provide the Engineer/Road Superintendent with at
least one 24 hour emergency contact for the Gas Company and shall ensure the contacts
are current.

8. Restoration.

The Gas Company shall well and sufficiently restore, to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Engineer/Road Superintendent, all highways, municipal works or improvements which it
may excavate or interfere with in the course of laying, constructing, repairing or
removing its gas system, and shall make good any settling or subsidence thereafter
caused by such excavation or interference. If the Gas Company fails at any time to do any
work required by this Paragraph withn a reasonable period of time, the Corporation may
do or cause such work to be done and the Gas Company shall, on demand, pay the
Corporation's reasonably incured costs, as certified by the Engineer/Road

Superintendent.

9. Indemnification.

The Gas Company shall, at all times, indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from
and against all claims, including costs related thereto, for all damages or injuries
including death to any person or persons and for damage to any propert, arising out of

the Gas Company operating, constrcting, and maintaining its gas system in the
Municipality, or utilzing its gas system for the carriage of gas owned by others. Provided
that the Gas Company shall not be required to indemnify or save harmless the
Corporation from and against claims, including costs related thereto, which it may incur
by reason of damages or injuries including death to any person or persons and for damage
to any propert, resulting from the negligence or wrongful act of the Corporation, its
servants, agents or employees.

10. Insurance.

(a) The Gas Company shall maintain Comprehensive General Liabilty Insurance in
suffcient amount and description as shall protect the Gas Company and the
Corporation from claims for which the Gas Company is obliged to indemnify the
Corporation under Paragraph 9. The insurance policy shall identify the
Corporation as an additional named insured, but only with respect to the operation
of the named insured (the Gas Company). The insurance policy shall not lapse or
be cancelled without sixty (60) days' prior written notice to the Corporation by the
Gas Company.

(b) The issuance of an insurance policy as provided in this Paragraph shall not be
construed as relieving the Gas Company of liabilty not covered by such insurance
or in excess of the policy limits of such insurance.
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(c) Upon request by the Corporation, the Gas Company 
shall confirm that premiums

for such insurance have been paid and that such insurance is in full force and
effect.

11. Alternative Easement.

The Corporation agrees, in the event of the proposed sale or closing of any highway or
any part of a highway where there is a gas line in existence, to give the Gas Company
reasonable notice of such proposed sale or closing and, if is feasible, to provide the Gas
Company with easements over that par of the highway proposed to be sold or closed
sufficient to allow the Gas Company to preserve any part of the gas system in its then
existing location. In the event that such easements canot be provided, the Corporation
and the Gas Company shall share the cost of relocating or altering the gas system to
faciltate continuity of gas service, as provided for in Paragraph 12 of this Agreement.

12. Pipeline Relocation.

(a) If in the course of constructing, reconstructing, changing, altering or improving

any highway or any muncipal works, the Corporation deems that it is necessary
to take up, remove or change the location of any par of the gas system, the Gas

Company shall, upon notice to do so, remove and/or relocate within a reasonable
period of time such part of the gas system to a location approved by the

EngineerlRoad Superintendent.

l_ (b) Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this Paragraph is
located on a bridge, viaduct or strcture, the Gas Company shall alter or relocate
that par of the gas system at its sole expense.

(c) Where any par of the gas system relocated in accordance with ths Paragraph is.
located other than on a bridge, viaduct or structue, the costs of relocation shall be
shared between the Corporation and the Gas Company on the basis of the total
relocation costs, excluding the value of any upgrading of the gas system, and
deducting any contribution paid to the Gas Company by others in respect to such
relocation; and for these purposes, the total relocation costs shall be the aggregate
ofthe following:

(i) the amount paid to Gas Company employees up to and including field
supervisors for the hours worked on the project plus the current cost of
fringe benefits for these employees,

(ii) the amount paid for rental equipment while in use on the project and an

amount, charged at the unit rate, for Gas Company equipment while in use
on the project,

(ii) the amount paid by the Gas Company to contractors for work related to

the project,

L (iv) the cost to the Gas Company for materials used in connection with the
project, and
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a reasonable amount for project engineering and project administrative
costs which shall be 22.5% of the aggregate of the amounts determined in
items (i), (ii), (ii) and (iv) above.

(d) The total relocation costs as calculated above shall be paid 35% by the
Corporation and 65% by the Gas Company, except where the part of the gas
system required to be moved is located in an unassumed road or in an unopened
road allowance and the Corporation has not approved its location, in which case
the Gas Company shall pay 100% of the relocation costs.

(v)

Part iv - Procedural And Other Matters

13. Municipal By-laws of General Application.

14.

(
15.

c_

The Agreement is subject to the provisions of all regulating statutes and all municipal
bylaws of general application, except by-laws which have the effect of amending this
Agreement.

Giving Notice.

Notices may be delivered to, sent by facsimile or mailed by prepaid registered post to the
Gas Company at its head offce or to the authorized offcers of the Corporation at its
muncipal offices, as the case may be.

Disposition of Gas System.

(a) If the Gas Company decommssions par of its gas system affixed to a bridge,
viaduct or structure, the Gas Company shall, at its sole expense, remove the par
of its gas system affixed to the bridge, viaduct or strcture.

(b) If the Gas Company decommissions any other part of its gas system, it shall have
the right, but is not required, to remove that par of its gas system. It may exercise
its right to remove the decommissioned parts of its gas system by giving notice of
its intention to do so by filing a Plan as required by Paragraph 5 of this Agreement
for approval by the EngineerlRoad Superintendent. If the Gas Company does not
remove the par of the gas system it has decommissioned and the Corporation

requires the removal of all or any par of the decommissioned gas system for the
purose of altering or improving a highway or in order to faciltate the
construction of utilty or other works in any highway, the Corporation may
remove and dispose of so much of the decommssioned gas system as the
Corporation may require for such purposes and neither pary shall have recourse
against the other for any loss, cost, expense or damage occasioned thereby. If the
Gas Company has not removed the part of the gas system it has decommissioned
and the Corporation requires the removal of all or any par of the decommissioned
gas system for the purose of altering or improving a highway or in order to
faciltate the construction of utilty or other works in a highway, the Gas
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Company may elect to relocate the decommissioned gas system and in that event
Paragraph 12 applies to the cost of relocation.

16. Use of Decommissioned Gas System.

(a) The Gas Company shall provide promptly to the Corporation, to the extent such
information is known:

(i) the names and addresses of all third paries who use decommissioned pars
of the gas system for purposes other than the transmission or distribution
of gas; and

(ii) the location of all proposed and existing decommissioned pars of the gas

system used for purposes other than the transmission or distribution of gas.

(b) The Gas Company may allow a third part to use a decommissioned par of the
gas system for puroses other than the transmission or distribution of gas and may
charge a fee for that third par use, provided

(i) the third party has entered into a muncÌpal access agreement with the
Corporation; and

(ii) the Gas Company does not charge a fee for the third pary's right of access
to the highways.

(c) Decommissioned parts of the gas system used for purposes other than the
transmission or distribution of gas are not subject to the provisions of this
Agreement. For decommissioned parts of the gas system used for purposes other
than the transmission and distribution of gas, issues such as relocation costs wil
be governed by the relevant municipal access agreement.

17. Franchise Handbook.

The Parties acknowledge that operating decisions sometimes require a greater level of
detail than that which is appropriately included in this Agreement. The Parties agree to
look for guidance on such matters to the Franchise Handbook prepared by the

Association of Municipalities of Ontario and the gas utilty companies, as may be
amended from time to time.

~~
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(
18. Agreement Binding Paries.

This Agreement shall extend to, benefit and bind the parties thereto, their successors and
assigns, respectively.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement effective from the
date written above.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AYLMER

By:
Duly Authorized Offcer

NATURAL RESOURCE GAS LIMITED

( By:
Du1y Authorized Officer

(~
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( SCHEDULE 'A'

'Schedule A' to the Franchise Renewal Agreement between Natural Resource Gas Ltd. and
the Corporation of the Town of Aylmer

The Corporation signs this Agreement on the condition that the Gas Company agrees to and
adheres to the following.

1) Immediately upon the execution of this Agreement, the Gas Company wil apply to the
Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") for a comprehensive rate hearing.

2) The Gas Company wil, by December 15,2009,

a) implement the proposed amendments to the Gas Distribution Access Rile (EB-2008-
0313) regarding customer service measures, whether or not the OEB has made them
mandatory by such time.

3) The Gas Company wil, by May 15,2009,

(

a) adopt and adhere to a written and publicly available consumer security deposit policy
which includes clear information about the circumstances in which a security deposit is
required, how the amount of the deposit is calculated, the circumstaces in which the
deposit wil be retuned to the customer, that all deposits will be retuned by cheque
unless otherwse requested in writing by the customer; and that a maximum dollar value
for any security deposit be calculated using the proposed calculation in the OEB
proposed amendments to the GDAR (EB-2008-0313);

b) adopt and adhere to a written and publicly available complaint process for its customers;
and

c) adopt and adhere to a written policy regarding meeting with and providing written
estimates for providing natural gas services to new and relocating retail, commercial and
industrial customers on a timely basis and at a competitive rate.

4) The Gas Company wil keep all monies from consumer security deposits in a trust fund and it
will not use such monies as working capitaL.

5) The Gas Company will malce its anual audited financial statements available every year for
the next three years to the public no later than 4 months following the close of the Gas
Company's fiscal year.

c

6) The Gas Company wil give notice to the Corporation of any proceeding before the OEB that
the Gas Company is a pary to, paricularly, but not limited to, any application to the OEB
made by the Gas Company.

7) By no later than December 15 of each year, the Gas Company wil provide the Corporation
with annual detailed and up-to-date maps of its system assets, including but not limited to
system assets within the Town of Aylmer, including the estimated age of those assets and any
improvements or additions during the year are highlighted.

._"-_..._-- -_..__._--....._. - ......._.__....." _._'........._.._----'._._--....
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Council - Dec 15 2008
Regular Session

THIRTY-SEVENTH SESSION
REGULAR SESSION December 15, 2008

The Council of the Corporation of the Town of Aylmer meets in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m.
with Mayor Bob Habkirk presiding.

Present are: Mayor
Deputy Mayor
Councilor
Councilor
Councillor
Councillor
Councilor

B. Habkirk
R. G. Baldwin
J. Couckuyt
G. H. Richer
J. Vandermeersch
M. French
J. L. Wright

Administrator
Clerk
Dir of Finance & HR
Dir of Operations
Dir of Planning
& Munic Services

M. H. Adams
N. J. Irving
J. Reynaert
R. Tapp
D. Dale

1. PRAYER

All rise as Mayor Habkirk reads a brief prayer.

2. ROLL CALL

All are present.

3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

Resolution No. 454-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councillor M. French:

"That Council adopt the Agenda for the meeting of December 15, 2008, as
amended, by adding:

(a) a communication from Andrew Henry, Division Manager, Regional Water
Supply - with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap Water Scare"
which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13,2008, as Agenda Item
#8(i); and

(b) a communication from Jeanette Brubacher, with respect to the Natural
Resource Gas franchise, as Agenda Item #8(j)); noting that this item relates to
Agenda Item #8(g)."

The motion is Carried.
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4. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

There are no disclosures.

5. DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC MEETINGS

Stephen Douglas and Keith Hunt, representatives from the Aylmer Heritage
Committee, present a Heritage Plaque for the Town Hall, to Town CounciL.

6. ADOPTION OF COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

Resolution No. 455-08

Moved by Councillor G. Richer and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That Council adopt and approve the Minutes of the December 8, 2008

Regular Session."

The motion is Carried.

7. CONSENT AGENDA

There are no Consent Items.

8. ACTION ITEMS

(a) Report from Director of Planning & Municipal Services - Extension of HVAC
Service Agreement.

Resolution No. 456-08

Moved by Councilor J. Vandermeersch and Councilor J. Couckuyt:

"That following actions be taken with respect to the extension of HVAC Service
Agreement:

(a) Council receives the report dated December 9, 2008 submitted by the
Director of Planning and Municipal Services as information;

(b) Council extends the Preventative Maintenance Agreement with Pro-Tech
Mechanical for maintenance of all municipal building HVAC systems
including the new Fire Hall, to December 31,2009;

(c)

(d)

Council gives three readings to the required by-law; and

Council directs Staff to tender for a new three-year maintenance
agreement contract to take effective January 1, 2010."

Carried.
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The By-law is considered under the By-law portion of the meeting.

(b) Report from Director of Finance & Human Resources - Cheque Disbursements
for November 2008.

Resolution No. 457-08

Moved by Councillor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

'That Council approves payment of the General Account cheques, including
Payroll, for the Month of November 2008, in the amount of $1,323,912.74."

The motion is Carried.

(c) Report from Director of Finance & Human Resources - 2008 Tax Write-Off
Report.

Resolution No. 458-08

Moved by Councilor G. Richer and seconded by Councillor J. Vandermeersch:

"That Council approves tax write-offs of $167,591.34 pursuant to Part X, Section
354 of the Municipal Act R.S.O. 2001, 5.0. 2001, C. 25, as amended, and as
outlined in detail in the Report No. 31-08 dated December 5, 2008 submitted by
the Director of Finance and Human Resources."

The motion is Carried.

(d) Report from the Director of Finance & Human Resources - Reserve Funds.

Resolution No. 459-08

Moved by Councillor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councilor J. Vandermeersch:

"That the Council of the Town of Aylmer approves the following with respect to
Reserve Funds:

(a) That funds levied through the 2008 Capital Budget approved by Council
which are not spent on that capital project as specified in the budget be
transferred to the reserve funds;

(b) That where funds have been allocated from the reserve funds for projects
that were not completed or projects where the cost was not as budgeted, that
those funds be left in the reserve funds and not transferred to the revenue fund;

(c) That where funds have been allocated for a capital project in the 2008
Budget and where the expenditures on the project exceed the budgeted
expenditure by less than 10% that the monies be transferred from the reserve
funds to the revenue fund, if available, to cover that expenditure: and
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(d) That the capital projects or project additions approved by Council
subsequent to the passing of the 2008 budget for which the source of financing
was approved from reserve funds, that those monies be transferred in the
amount required to cover the 2008 expenditures."

The motion is Carried.

(e) Report from the Clerk - Municipal Investigator.

Resolution No. 460-08

Moved by Councilor J. Wright and seconded by G. Richer:

"That the Town of Aylmer supports the appointment of JGM Consulting (Mr.
John Maddox) as the Municipal Investigator for a one-year term to commence
January 1, 2009 on the understanding that the County of Elgin wil pay the
retainer fee for the municipality; and further, that Council consider giving three
readings to By-law No. 49-08."

The motion is Carried.

The By-law is considered under the By-law portion of the meeting.

(f) Report from the Administrator - Economic Development/Community
Development Activities.

Resolution No. 461-08

Moved by Councillor M. French and seconded by Councillor J. Couckuyt:

"That the Report submitted by the Administrator with respect to Economic
Development I Community Development Activities for 2008, be received for
information."

The motion is Carried.

(g) Report from the Administrator - Natural Gas Resources Ltd. (NRG) Franchise
Agreement.

Resolution No. 462-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councilor J. Couckuyt:

"That the following actions be taken with respect to the franchise agreement
between the Town of Aylmer and Natural Resource Gas Ltd. (NRG):

(a) that the Council of the Town of Aylmer adopts the staff recommendations
set out in the report of the Administrator dated December 11, 2008 regarding the
franchise agreement between the Town and NRG;

(b) that Council approves the draft franchise agreement as presented in the
report and that the agreement be presented to NRG as the Town's position
regarding the renewal of the franchise for a period of 3 years; and further,



(

l-

l_

Council - Dec 15 2008
Regular Session 5

(c) that following the meeting with NRG, the Town applies to the OEB for
approval of the franchise agreement as drafted by the Town."

The motion is Carried.

(h) Aylmer Police Services Board - Proposed 2009 Budget.

Resolution No. 463-08

Moved by Councilor J. Couckuyt and seconded by Councilor J. Vandermeersch:

"That the Proposed 2009 Budget from Aylmer Police Services be referred to the
Finance Committee for consideration during the 2009 Budget deliberations."

The motion is Carried.

(i) a communication from Andrew Henry, Division Manager, Regional Water
Supply - with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap Water Scare"
which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13, 2008, as Agenda Item
#8(i)

Resolution No. 464-08

Moved by Councillor J. Wright and seconded by Councilor G. Richer:

"That the communication received from Andrew Henry, Division Manager,
Regional Water Supply, with respect to a newspaper article entitled "Erie Tap
Water Scare" which appeared in the London Free Press on December 13,2008,
be received for information purposes."

The motion is Carried.

Additional Items:

0) a communication from Jeanette Brubacher, with respect to the Natural
Resource Gas franchise - relates to Agenda Item #8(g)

Resolution No. 465-08

Moved by Councilor M. French and seconded by Councilor J. Wright:

"That the communication received from Jeanette Brubacher with respect to the
Natural Resource Gas franchise, be received for information purposes; noting
that this item relates to Agenda Item #8(g)."

The motion is Carried.

9. NEW BUSINESS AND MATTERS OF URGENCY

There are no matters.
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10. READING OF BY-LAWS AND PROCEEDINGS THEREON

Resolution No. 466-08

Moved by Councilor M. French and seconded by Councilor J. Wright:

"That Council suspend the procedural polices and proceed with first, second
and third reading of By-laws 49-08, 50-08 and 51-08."

The motion is Carried.

Resolution No. 467-08

Moved by Councilor J. Wright and seconded by Deputy Mayor R. G. Baldwin:

"The following By-laws be read a first, second and third time, be finally passed,
signed, sealed and numbered by the Mayor and Clerk:

(i) By-law No. 49-08 - Being a By-law to re-appoint JGM Consulting (Mr. John
Maddox) as the Municipal Investigator.

(ii) By-law No. 50-08 - Being a By-Law to authorize the signing of an
Agreement between The Corporation of the Town of Aylmer and Pro-Tech
Mechanical Services Limited to provide Preventative Maintenance for the Town
of Aylmer Municipal Buildings.

(iii) By-law No. 51-08 - Being a By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council
at all of its meetings held during the calendar year 2008."

The motion is Carried.

11. INQUIRIES BY MEMBERS

(a) Councilor Couckuyt reminds the public to attend the open house about the Town
Square development to be held on Thursday, December 18, 2008 from 4:00 p.m. to
8:00 p.m. at the Old Town HalL.

12. REPORT OF MAYOR

There is no report.

13. NOTICE OF MOTION

There are no notices of motion.
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14. CLOSED SESSION

There are no matters.

15. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 468-08

Moved by Councillor J. Vandermeersch and seconded by Councillor M. French:

"That Council do now adjourn at 7:45 p.m."

The motion is Carried.

MAYOR

CLERK

7
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